

CALIFORNIA TECHNOLOGY ASSESSMENT FORUM[™]

Controversies in Obesity Management

A Technology Assessment

Final Report Appendices

August 10, 2015

Completed by:

Institute for Clinical and Economic Review



AUTHORS:Daniel A. Ollendorf, PhDChief Review Officer, Institute for Clinical and Economic Review

Karen K. Shore, PhD Program Director, Institute for Clinical and Economic Review

Chris Cameron, MSc Senior Decision Scientist, Institute for Clinical and Economic Review

Jed Weissberg, MD, FACP Senior Fellow, Institute for Clinical and Economic Review

Anne M. Loos, MA Research Associate, Institute for Clinical and Economic Review

Patricia Synnott, MALD, MS Research Associate, Institute for Clinical and Economic Review

Steven D. Pearson, MD, MSc President, Institute for Clinical and Economic Review

DATE OFPUBLICATION:August 10, 2015

We would also like to thank Erin Lawler and Matt Seidner of ICER for their contributions to this report.

Table of Contents

Appendix A: Literature Search Strategy	4
Appendix B: Evidence Tables for RCTs and Comparative Cohort Studies	6
Appendix C: Patient and Programmatic Factors Associated with the Effectiveness and Safety of Bariatric Surgery	145
Appendix D: Treatment Success with Medication or Lifestyle Management	152
Appendix E: Evidence Tables for Harms of Bariatric Surgery & Medication	154
Appendix F: Economic Modeling	162
Appendix G: ICER Evidence Matrix	165
Appendix H: Head-to-Head Comparisons of Surgical Procedures	170
Appendix I. Public and Representative Private Insurer Coverage Policies	176
Appendix J. Previous Systematic Reviews	181
Appendix K. Ongoing Studies	184
Appendix L. Outcomes by Baseline Mean BMI Category	188
References	190

Appendix A: Literature Search Strategy

<u>Ovid</u>

- Vagus Nerve Stimulation/ or (vag* nerve block/ or gastric electrical stimulation or maestro).ti,ab
- 2. gastric balloon/ or (intragastric balloon or gastric balloon).ti,ab
- 3. (gastric sleeve OR bypass liner OR endobarrier OR endoluminal sleeve OR duodenaljejunal bypass OR gastrointestinal liner OR duodenal jejunal bypass).ti,ab
- 4. (Glucagon-Like Peptide 1/ and (liraglutide or saxenda or victoza)) or (saxenda or victoza or liraglutide).ti,ab
- 5. (Benzazepines/ and (lorcaserin or belviq)) or (lorcaserin or belviq).ti,ab
- 6. ((drug combinations/ or fructose/ or phentermine/) and (qsymia or (phentermine and topiramate))) or qsymia.ti,ab. or (phentermine and topiramate).ti,ab.
- ((drug combinations/ or naltrexone/ or bupropion/) and (contrave or mysimba or (naltrexone and bupropion))) or contrave.ti,ab. or mysimba.ti,ab. or (naltrexone and bupropion).ti,ab.
- 8. 1 or 2 or 3 or 4 or 5 or 6 or 7
- 9. (overweight/ or obesity/ or obesity, morbid/) or (overweight or obesity).ti,ab
- 10. 8 and 9
- 11. Limit 10 to (English language and humans and year="2000 2015")

<u>Embase</u>

- 'implanted vagus nerve stimulator'/ OR (vag* NEAR/2 stimulat*):ab,ti OR (vag* NEAR/2 block):ab,ti OR 'maestro':ab,ti OR 'gastric electrical stimulation':ab,ti
- 2. 'gastric balloon' OR 'intragastric balloon':ab,ti OR 'gastric balloon':ab,ti
- 'gastric sleeve' OR 'bypass liner':ab,ti OR 'endobarrier':ab,ti OR 'endoluminal sleeve':ab,ti OR 'duodenaljejunal bypass':ab,ti OR 'gastrointestinal liner':ab,ti OR 'duodenal jejunal bypass':ab,ti
- 4. 'liraglutide' OR 'saxenda':ab,ti OR 'victoza': ab,ti
- 5. 'lorcaserin' OR 'belviq':ab,ti
- 6. 'phentermine plus topiramate' OR ('phentermine' AND 'topiramate') OR 'qsymia':ab,ti
- 7. 'amfebutamone plus naltrexone' OR ('naltrexone' AND 'bupropion') OR 'mysimba':ab,ti OR 'contrave':ab,ti
- 8. #1 OR #2 OR #3 OR #4 OR #5 OR #6 OR #7
- 9. 'obesity'/exp OR obes*:ab,ti OR overweight:ab,ti
- 10. #8 AND #9 AND [humans]/lim AND [embase]/lim AND [2000-2015]/py

Include:

- **Population:** Adults and adolescents (age 12-17) with BMI>=25 (overweight and/or all categories of obese)
- Interventions:
 - Bariatric surgery procedures (RYGB, VSG, LAGB, BPD/DS)
 - Devices
 - <u>Gastric electrical stimulation</u> (primarily Maestro system)
 - Synonyms: vagus nerve block, vbloc, vagal block
 - <u>Duodenal-jejunal bypass sleeve</u> (Endobarrier)
 - Synonyms: endoluminal sleeve, gastric sleeve, gastrointestinal liner
 - Intragastric balloon (e.g. Silimed BIS, ReShape duo, Bioenteric BIB, etc.)
 - Note: should be temporary intervention (i.e. approximately 6 months)
 - Medications
 - Naltrexone/bupropion sustained release (Contrave in US; Mysimba in EU)
 - Phentermine/topiramate extended-release (Qsymia)
 - Lorcaserin (Belviq)
 - Liraglutide (Saxenda)
- **Comparator:** head-to-head with any of listed interventions or active comparator (sham, placebo, usual care, lifestyle intervention)
- Outcomes:
 - Mortality
 - Reduction in BMI, %EWL
 - Improvement/resolution of comorbidity
 - Quality of life, pain, function
 - Complications/adverse events
 - Economic outcomes (payer costs, patient productivity, cost-effectiveness, possibly costs to employers)
- **Timing:** >=6 months for comparative studies; >=2 years for case series. EXCEPTION: harms data from comparative studies with less than 6 months follow-up is ok
- **Sources:** Systematic reviews, meta-analyses, RCTs, comparative studies, case series with >50 patients and >=2 years follow-up

Date of search: April 10, 2015

Appendix B: Evidence Tables for RCTs and Comparative Cohort Studies

Table B1. Good Quality Studies

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators/ Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow- up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Angrisani 2007 ¹	RCT	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=51 1) 27 2) 24	5 years	BMI >35 & <50 Age >16 & <50 No hiatal hernia No previous major abdominal operations	Mean age 34 18% male Mean BMI 43.6 Mean weight 117.6kg	Mean BMI at 5 years 1) 34.9 2) 29.8 Mean %EWL at 5 years 1) 47.5 2) 66.6 Mean weight at 5 years (kg) 1) 97.9 2) 84.0 All outcomes p<0.001 All comorbidities (T2DM, sleep apnea, hyperlipidemia) present before surgery had resolved after 5 years	Reoperations 1) 4/26 (15.2%) 2) 3/24 (12.5%) Early complications 1) 0 2) 2 Late complications 1) 2 2) 1 No deaths in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators/ Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow- up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Aronne 2013 ²	RCT	1) PHEN/TPM 7.5/46 2) PHEN/TPM 15/92 3) Placebo 4) PHEN 7.5 5) PHEN 15 6) TPM 46 7) TPM 92 4), 5), 6), 7) not reported here	n=756 1) 107 2) 108 3) 109 4) 109 5) 108 6) 108 7) 107	28 weeks	Age 18-70; BMI 30-45; no use of PHEN/TPM in past 3 months; no WL or participation in WL in past 3 months or weight gain >5 kg	Mean age 1) 44.6 2) 44.6 3) 45.0 % female 1) 79.4 2) 78.7 3) 78.9 Mean BMI 1) 36.6 2) 35.9 3) 36.2	Mean % WL 1) -8.46 2) -9.21 3) -1.71 p<0.05 for 1) and 2) vs. 3) Participants with >=5% WL 1) 62.1 2) 66.0 3) 15.5 p<0.0001 for 1) and 2) vs. 3)	Mortality: 0 Serious AE 1) 1 2) 2 3) 0 Not considered related to drugs Discontinuation (%) 1) 15.1 2) 21.3 3) 7.3
Arterburn 2014 ³	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=7,457 1) 5,950 2) 1,507	2.3 years	Not reported	Mean age 46 17% male Mean BMI 44.17	BMI reduction (%) 1) 14.8 2) 8.0 p<0.001	30 day major AE Hazard ratio LAGB vs. RYGB: 0.46; p=0.006 Subsequent hospitalization Hazard ratio LAGB vs. RYGB: 0.73; p<0.001

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Astrup 2012 ⁴	RCT extension of Astrup 2009	1) LIRA 1.2 2) LIRA 1.8 3) LIRA 2.4 4) LIRA 3.0 5) Orlistat 6) Placebo Note: All LIRA/placebo switched to LIRA 2.4 at week 52 then to LIRA 3.0 mg between weeks 70-96	n=564 1) 95 2) 90 3) 93 4) 93 5) 95 6) 98	2 years	See Astrup 2009 ⁵	See Astrup 2009 ⁵	Yr. 2 mean weight change (kg) Pooled LIRA: -5.3 Orlistat: -2.3 p<0.001 % with >5% WL Pooled LIRA: 52 Orlistat: 29 p<0.001 Prediabetes/ Metabolic syndrome (%) Pooled LIRA: 16/16 Orlistat: 32/20	Patients who reported hypoglycemia (n) LIRA: 8 Placebo: 1 Participants with any SAEs (%) 1) 5.3 2) 4.4 3) 4.3 4) 5.4 5) 4.2 6) 3.1 Withdrawal due to AEs 1) 3.2 2) 6.7 3) 1.1 4) 2.2 5) 0 6) 3.1

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Astrup 2009 ⁵	RCT	1) LIRA 1.2 2) LIRA 1.8 3) LIRA 2.4 4) LIRA 3.0 5) Orlistat 6) Placebo	n=564 1) 95 2) 90 3) 93 4) 93 5) 95 6) 98	20 weeks	Age 18-65 BMI 30-40 <5% change in weight during previous 3 months Fasting plasma glucose <7mmol/L	Mean age 45.9 % female 76 Mean BMI 34.7 Mean weight (kg) 97.3 % prediabetes/ metabolic syndrome 1) 31/25 2) 36/21 3) 36/22 4) 31/28 5) 29/23 6) 36/34	Mean weight change (kg) 1) -4.8 2) -5.5 3) -6.3 4) -7.2 5) -4.1 6) -2.8 2), 3), 4) vs. 6) p<0.0001 1) vs. 6): $p=0.003$ 3) vs. 5): $p=0.003$ 4) vs. 5): $p=0.003$ 5) $q=0.0001$ 6) $q=0.0001$ 7) rediabetes only	Withdrawal due to AE (%) 1) 4.2 2) 5.6 3) 9.7 4) 5.4 5) 3.2 6) 3.1 Overall AE (%) 1) 11 2) 18 3) 22 4) 12 5) 17 6) 19 Participants with any SAE (%) 1) 1.0 2) 4.4 3) 2.2 4) 1.0 5) 0 6) 1.0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Benaiges 2012 ⁶	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=102 1) 51 2) 51	12 months	1991 NIH criteria Age 18-55	Mean age 46 18% male Mean BMI 45.2 Mean weight 120.4kg	BMI at 12 months 1) 29.1 2) 28.5 p=NS Mean %EWL at 12 months 1) 45.0 2) 43.6 p=NS	None reported
Bowne 2006 ⁷	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=106 1) 46 2) 60	16.2 months	1991 NIH criteria	Mean age 43 20% male Mean BMI 56 Mean weight 153.1kg	Length of stay (days) 1) 3.5 2) 1.8 p<0.002 Mean change in BMI 1) -26.5 2) -9.8 p<0.001 Mean %EWL 1) 52 2) 31 p<0.001 RYGB had more significant resolution of T2DM ($p=0.05$) and sleep apnea ($p=0.01$) compared to LAGB	Conversion to open surgery 1) 0 2) 1 Early complications 1) 8 2) 11 p=NS Late complications 1) 11 2) 43 p<0.05 Reoperations 1) 3 2) 15 p=0.04 Mortality 1) 0 2) 1

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Campos 2011 ⁸	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=200 1) 100 2) 100	1 year	1991 NIH criteria	Mean age 47 14% male Mean BMI 1) 45.7 ± 25 2) 46 ± 28 Mean weight (kg) 1) 128kg 2) 129kg	Mean %EWL 1) 36 2) 64 p<0.01 Resolution of T2DM 1) 17 (50%) 2) 26 (76%) p=0.04 RYGB significantly better measures in components of MA	Early/late complications 1) 2/9 2) 11/3 p=0.02/p=NS Reoperations 1) 12 2) 2 p=0.009 No deaths in either group
Carlin 2013 ⁹	Retro- spective cohort	1) VSG 2) RYGB 3) LAGB	n=8,847 (2,949 in each group)	≤3 years	Not specified	Mean age 46 26% male Mean BMI 47.5	II (p<0.001) Mean %EWL at 3 years 1) 56 2) 67 3) 44 p<0.0004 Comorbidity remission at 1 year (%) 1) 40-66 2) 45-80 3) 18-37 No differences in QoL; patient satisfaction significantly worse for LAGB at 3 years (p=0.0001)	% overall complications 1) 6.3 2) 10.0 3) 2.4 p<0.0001 % serious complications 1) 2.4 2) 2.5 3) 1.0 p<0.0001 % 30-day reoperations 1) 1.4 2) 1.6 3) 0.4 1 & 2 vs. 3, p<0.0001 Mortality (%) 1) 0.07 2) 0.10 3) 0.07 p=NS

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Courcoulas 2014 ¹⁰	RCT	1) RYGB 2) LAGB 3) intensive lifestyle weight-loss intervention (ILWLI)	n=69 1) 24 2) 22 3) 23	12 months	T2DM diagnosis Age 25-55 BMI 30-40	Mean age 47 19% male Mean BMI 35.5	Mean BMI change 1) -9.7 2) -6.2 3) -3.6 p<0.001 Mean weight change (%) 1) -27.0 2) -17.3 3) -10.2 p<0.001 Cease antidiabetic meds (n) 1) 14 2) 8 3) 1 p<0.001 Partial remission of T2DM (%) 1) 50 2) 27 3) 0 p<0.001 Complete remission of T2DM (%) 1) 17 2) 23 3) 0 p=0.047	Serious adverse events: 1) 1 2) 2 3) 0 No deaths in any group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Dixon 2008 ¹¹	RCT	1) LAGB 2) life-style change	n=60 1) 30 2) 30	2 years	BMI 30-40 Age 20-60 T2DM ≥2 years	Mean age 47 47% male Mean BMI 37.1 Mean HbA1c 7.7%	Mean weight Loss (kg) 1) 21.1 2) -1.5 p<0.001 Mean %EWL 1) 62.5 2) 4.3 Mean change in BMI 1) -7.4 2) -0.5 T2DM remission (%) 1) 73 2) 13 p<0.001 HbA1c (%) 1) -1.81 2) -0.38 p<0.001	No major complications in either group Reoperations (LAGB) 2 revisions 1 reversal surgery Mortality not reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Dix011 2012	NCT	2) conventional weight loss	1) 30 2) 30		BMI 33-55 Diagnosed with	1) 47.45 2) 50.0	(kg) 1) -27.8	1) 1 2) NR
		reatment			months OR AHI ≥20 events/hour	18% male	p<0.001	No deaths in either group
					At least 3 prior weight loss attempts	Mean BMI 1) 46.3 ± 6.0 2) 43.8 ± 4.9	(%) 1) 20.6	
						Mean weight 1) 134.9	2) 2.9 p<0.001	
						2) 126.0 AHI (events/hour)	Mean BMI at 2 years 1) 36.6	
						1) 65.0 2) 57.2	2) 42.3 AHI	
							1) -25.5 2) -14.0 n=NS	
							QoL (SF 36): Physical role, general health,	
							vitality, physical component summary was significantly better for LAGB (n=0.04)	
							101 LAGD (p=0.04)	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Fidler 2011 ¹³	RCT	1) Lorcaserin 10 BID 2) Lorcaserin 10 QD 3) Placebo	n=4,004 1) 1,602 2) 801 3) 1,601	52 weeks	Age 18-65 BMI 30-45 (or 27- 29.9 with comorbidity)	% female: 79.8 Mean age: 43.8 Mean BMI 1) 36.0 2) 36.8 3) 35.9	% with >=5% WL 1) 47.2 2) 40.2 3) 25.0 p<0.001 Mean weight change (%) 1) -5.8 2) -4.7 3) -2.8 p<0.001 Mean BMI change 1) -2.1 2) -1.7 3) -1.0 p<0.001	Overall (%) 1) 82.6 2) 81.5 3) 75.3 Serious AE (%) 1) 3.1 2) 3.4 3) 2.2 Discontinuation due to AE (%) 1) 7.2 2) 6.2 3) 4.6
Fuller 2013	RCI	1) IGB + behavioral modification 2) behavior modification alone ("control group")	n=66 1) 31 2) 35	1) 6 months of balloon with 12 months follow- up 2) 12 months follow-up	Age 18-60 BMI 30-40 for 2 years Failed supervised weight loss program Metabolic syndrome	Age 1) 43.4 2) 48.1 33% male Weight 1) 104.6 2) 103.4 BMI 1) 36 2) 36.7	% WL @ 6 & 12 months 1) -14.2/-9.4 2) -4.8%/5.3 p<0.0001/p=0.008 BMI reduction 1) 3.4 2) 1.9 p=.01 %EWL 1) 32.7 2) 17.8 p=.006	Removal of the balloon in 3 patients (only 1/3 related to excessive nausea and vomiting)

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Gadde 2011 ¹⁵	RCT	1) PHEN/TPM 7.5/46 2) PHEN/TPM 15/92 3) Placebo	n=2,487 1) 498 2) 995 3) 994	56 weeks	BMI 27-45 with 2 or more comorbidities age 18-70	Mean age 1) 51.1 2) 51.0 3) 51.2 % female: 70 Mean BMI 1) 36.2 2) 36.6 3) 36.7 % Hypertension 1) 52 2) 52 3) 53 % T2DM/impaired glucose tolerance 1) 69 2) 67 3) 68	Mean weight change (%) 1) -7.8 2) -9.8 3) -1.2 % Participants with >=5% WL 1) 62 2) 70 3) 21 Mean change PHQ- 9 Score 1) -1.4 (95% Cl: -1.7, -1.1) 2) -1.3 (95% Cl: -1.7, -1.1) 3) -1.0 (95% Cl: -1.2, -0.8) % with decrease in concomitant antidiabetic med. 1) 3.0 2) 3.7 3) 2.5 p=NR	SAE (%) 1) 3 2) 5 3) 4
		3) Placebo				% female: 70 Mean BMI 1) 36.2 2) 36.6 3) 36.7 % Hypertension 1) 52 2) 52 3) 53 % T2DM/impaired glucose tolerance 1) 69 2) 67 3) 68	2) -9.0 3) -1.2 % Participants with >=5% WL 1) 62 2) 70 3) 21 Mean change PHQ- 9 Score 1) -1.4 (95% Cl: -1.7, -1.1) 2) -1.3 (95% Cl: -1.5, -1.1) 3) -1.0 (95% Cl: -1.2, -0.8) % with decrease in concomitant antidiabetic med. 1) 3.0 2) 3.7 3) 2.5 p=NR	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Galvani 2006 ¹⁶	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=590 1) 120 2) 470	3 years	1991 NIH criteria Age 17-65	Mean age 41 18% male Mean BMI 47.5	Mean %EWL 1) 63 2) 55 p=NR NS between groups for resolution of comorbidities	Both groups had similar rates of complications and reoperations Mortality 1) 1 2) 0
Garvey 2012 ¹⁷	Extension study for CONQUER (SEQUEL)	1) PHEN/TPM 7.5 2) PHEN/TPM 15 3) placebo	n=676 1) 153 2) 295 3) 227	108 weeks	BMI 27-45 At least 2 comorbidities Completed CONQUER trial and followed study protocol	Age 1) 52.2 2) 51.2 3) 52.7 34% male Weight 1) 102.2 2) 101.9 3) 101.1 BMI 1) 36.1 2) 36.2 3) 36.0	% weight loss (@108 weeks - ITT analysis) 1) 9.3 2) 10.5 3) 1.8 p<.0001 vs. placebo Reduction in antihypertensive medication use (%) 1) 13.1 2) 15.6 3) 7.5 p=NR	SAEs (%) 1) 5.9 2) 8.1 3) 6.2 p=NS Discontinuation due to AEs 1) 4.5 2) 4.4 3) 3.1 p=NS

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Garvey 2014a ¹⁸	Extension study OB- 202 and secondary analysis of CONQUER (all patients with T2DM)	1) PHEN/TPM 15mg 2) placebo (OB-202/DM- 230)	n=130 (OB- 202/DM- 230) 1) 75 2) 55	56 weeks (both trials)	T2DM diagnosis	OB-202/DM-230 Study Age 1) 49.7 2) 49.5 31% male BMI 1) 35.5 2) 35.2 HbA1c 1) 8.8 2) 8.5	OB-202/DM-230 Study Mean weight change (%) 1) 9.4 2) 2.6 p<.0001 % with HbA1c <7% 1) 53 2) 40 p<.05 Patients decrease # antidiabetic meds (%) 1) 18.7 2) 5.5	OB-202/DM-230 Study Hypoglycemic events (# of subjects) 1) 12 2) 5 Subjects discontinuing 1) 1 2) 0
Garvey 2014b ¹⁹	Secondary analysis of CONQUER	1) PHEN/TPM 7.5mg 2) PHEN/TPM 15mg 3) placebo	n=475 1) 115 2) 201 3) 159	56 weeks	Subjects with prediabetes and/or metabolic syndrome	Age 1) 52.4 2) 51.3 3) 52.5 35% male BMI 1) 36.2 2) 36.3 3) 36.1	% weight loss 1) 10.9 2) 12.1 3) 2.5 p<.001 Absolute risk reduction of progression to T2DM (%) 1) 3.5 2) 2.5 3) 11.4	Discontinuation of treatment due to TEAEs (%) 1) 6.1 2) 5.5 3) 3.1 p=NR SAEs (%) 1) 7.0 2) 8.5 3) 5.0 p=NR No deaths occurred

Author/Year Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Genco 2006 ²⁰ RCT (crossover)	1) IGB followed by sham 2) sham followed by IGB	n=32 1) 16 2) 16	6 months	NIH criteria	Age: 36.2 25% male BMI: 43.7	1st 3 monthsWeight loss1) 152) 3Mean BMIreduction1) 5.82) 0.4Mean %EWL1) 342) 2.13 months followingcrossoverWeight loss1) 62) 13Mean BMI1) 1.12) 5.1Mean %EWL1) 4.62) 31All weightoutcomes, p<.001	No mortality or complications Minor AEs (nausea, vomiting, heartburn) controlled with medications

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Genco 2013 ²¹	RCT	 IGB followed by diet IGB followed by another IGB 	n=50 1) 25 2) 25	13 months	Age 25-35 BMI 40-49.9 All patients had an eating disorder	Mean age 1) 31 2) 32.9 23% male Mean BMI 1) 41.2 2) 42.8	Mean BMI 1) 35.1 2) 30.9 p<.005	No major complications in any group Mortality not reported
Greenway 2010 ²²	RCT	1) NB 16 2) NB 32 3) Placebo 1 & 2 with 360mg bupropion, both administered 2x/day	n=1,742 1) 578 2) 583 3) 581	56 weeks	Age 18-65 BMI 30-45 (with uncomplicated obesity) BMI 27-45 (with dyslipidemia and or hypertension	Age 1) 44.4 2) 44.4 3) 43.7 15% male Weight 1) 99.5 2) 99.7 3) 99.5 BMI 1) 36.2 2) 36.1 3) 36.2	<pre>% weight loss 1) 5.0 2) 6.1 3) 1.3 % with >= 5% 1) 39 2) 48 3) 16 1&2 vs. 3 for weight outcomes, p<.0001</pre>	Nausea (%) 1) 27.2 2) 29.8 3) 5.3 Other AEs less frequent than placebo No increased depression or suicidal thoughts in NB groups Any AE leading to discontinuation (%) 1) 21.4 2) 19.5 3) 9.8
Hedberg 2012 ²³	RCT	1) RYGB 2) BPD	n=47 1) 23 2) 24	4 years	BMI >48	Mean age 39 53% male Mean BMI 54.4	Mean change in BMI 1) -16.2 2) -23.2 p<0.001 %EBMIL 1) 51 2) 80 p<0.001	Revisions/Reoperations /Mortality 1) 0/2/1 2) 0/1/0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Hollander 2013 ²⁴	RCT	1) NB 32/360 2) Placebo	n=424 1) 265 2) 159	56 weeks	T2DM Age 18-70 BMI 27-45 HbA1c 7-10% Fasting blood glucose <270 mg/dL Not taking T2DM medication or on stable doses of oral antidiabetes drugs for >=3 months prior to randomization Systolic and diastolic blood pressure <145 and <95 mmHg, respectively	Mean age 53.9 % female: 53.6 Mean BMI: 36.5 Mean weight (kg) 1) 105.0 2) 106.3	Mean weight change (%) 1) -5.0 2) -1.8 p<0.001 % with >=5% WL 1) 44.5 2) 18.9 p<0.001 % achieving HbA1c<7.0% 1) 44.1 2) 26.3 p<0.001	Discontinuation due to AE (%) 1) 29.3 2) 15.3 SAE (%) 1) 3.9 2) 4.7 Overall AE (%) 1) 90.4 2) 85.2 Gastrointestinal disorders (nausea/vomiting) (%) 1) 42.3/18.3 2) 7.1/2.6 Change in IDS-SR 1) +0.53 2) -1.41 p=0.001

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Ikramuddin 2013 ²⁵	RCT	1) RYGB 2) lifestyle- medical management	n=120 1) 60 2) 60	12 months	HbA1c ≥8% BMI 30-39 Age 30-67	Mean age 49 24% male Mean HbA1c 9.6% Mean weight 97.4kg	HbA1c <7% (%) 1) 32 2) 43 OR 4.8; 95% Cl, 1.9- 11.7 Mean weight loss 1) 26.1% 2) 7.9% 17.5%; 95% Cl, 14.2%-20.7%	Postop complications 1) 2 (leaks) 2) 0 Serious adverse events 1) 22 2) 15 No deaths in either group
Ikramuddin 2014 ²⁶	RCT	1) VBLOC 2) Sham	n=239 1) 162 2) 77	12 months	BMI 40-45 or 35- 40 with 1 or more comorbidities	Mean age 47 % female 1) 87 2) 81 Mean BMI: 41 % T2DM 1) 6 2) 8 % Hypertension 1) 39 2) 42 % Dyslipidemia 1) 56 2) 60 % Obstructive sleep apnea 1) 20 2) 30	% EWL 1) 24.4 2) 15.9 95% CI of difference (3.1, 13.9) Mean weight change (%) 1) 9.2 2) 6.0	Revision/reposition/rep lace (n,%) 1) 8, 4.9 2) 0 Removal by 12 months (n,%) 1) 5, 3.1 2) 8, 10.4 Serious adverse events directly related to device: 3.7%

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Koehestanie 2014 ²⁷	RCT	1) DJBL + diet 2) Diet	n=77 1) 38 2) 39	12 months (DJBL removed at 6 months)	Age 18-65 BMI 30-50 T2DM<10 years HbA1c 7.5-10.0%	Mean age 1) 49.5 2) 49.0 % male 1) 61.8 2) 64.1 Mean BMI 1) 34.6 2) 36.8 Mean weight (kg) 1) 105.4 2) 110.8 HbA1c (%) 1) 8.3 2) 8.3	Mean weight change (kg) 1) -6.8 2) -4.0 p=0.07 Mean BMI change 1) -2.2 2) -1.3 p=0.06 %EWL 1) 19.8 2) 11.7 p<0.05 HbA1C (%) 1) 7.3 2) 8.0 p=0.95 % who decreased use of metformin/sulfonyl urea/insulin 1) 16.7/40.0/36.7 2) 7.9/13.9/20.5 p=NR	Overall AE (%) 1) 76.3 2) 59 Device-related AE requiring hospitalization 1) 5 2) N/A

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Konopko- Zubrzycka 2009 ²⁸	RCT	1) IGB 2) Diet + exercise Both groups began with 1 month of VLCD	n=36 1) 21 2) 15	10 months (balloon removed at 6 months)	Age 20-60; BMI >=40	Mean age 1) 41 2) 42.8 Male/female (n) 1) 11/10 2) 6/9 Mean BMI 1) 47.3 2) 47.1 Mean weight (kg) 1) 138.5 2) 138.9	Weight change at 6 months (%) 1) -12.3 p<0.0001 2) -2.3 p=NS	Serious AE:0
Lean 2014 ²⁹ (See Astrup 2009 ⁵ and Astrup 2012 ⁴)	RCT	1) LIRA 3.0 2) LIRA 2.4 3) LIRA 1.8 4) LIRA 1.2 5) Placebo 6) Orlistat 120	n=561 1) 93 2) 93 3) 90 4) 95 5) 98 6) 95	24 weeks + 84- week extension	Age 18-65; stable weight; BMI 30- 40; fasting plasma glucose<7 mmol	Mean age 45.9 Mean BMI: 34.8 % female 1) 75 2) 76 3) 76 4) 77 5) 75 6) 77	Mean 2-yr WL for liraglutide 2.4/3 participants who experienced at least one episode of nausea/vomiting: 6.9 kg (vs. 4.1 kg for no nausea/vomiting, p=0.006	Proportion of individuals reporting nausea/vomiting during year 1 1) 38 2) 31 3) 23 4) 17 5) 4 6) 4 % of reports of nausea/vomiting that were severe for pooled liraglutide: 2/9

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Liang 2013 ³⁰	RCT	1) usual care 2) usual care + exanatide 3) RYGB	n=108 1) 36 2) 34 3) 31	1 year	T2DM diagnosis BMI >28 Hypertension 5- 10 years Insulin + oral therapy for 1 year HbA1c > 7% Age 30-60 years	Mean age 1) 51.75 2) 50.94 3) 50.81 65% male Mean BMI 1) 30.94 2) 30.28 3) 30.48 Mean HbA1c 1) 10.88 2) 10.52 3) 10.47	Mean change in BMI 1) -0.56 2) -3.44 3) -5.97 1 vs. 3, p<0.01 2 vs. 3, p<0.05 HbA1c 1) -3.74 2) -3.42 3) -4.49 1 vs. 3 and 2 vs. 3, p<0.05	No serious adverse events including death, hospitalization, disability, life- threatening experience, or any that required medical or surgical intervention
Martin 2011 ³¹	RCT	1) Lorcaserin 10 BID 2) Placebo	n=57 1) 29 2) 28	56 days	Age 18-65; BMI 27-45; able to exercise; not actively attempting to become pregnant, impregnate, donate sperm, engage in in vitro fertilization; healthy	Mean age 1) 49.0 2) 48.4 % female 1) 69.0 2) 67.9 Mean BMI 1) 35.9 2) 35.2	Mean weight (kg) 1) -3.8 2) -2.2 p=0.01	Serious AE: 0 Change in depressive symptoms: 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Mingrone 2012 ³²	RCT	1) conventional medical therapy 2) BPD 3) RYGB	n=60 1) 20 2) 20 3) 20	2 years	BMI ≥35 T2DM duration ≥5 years HbA1c ≥7%	Mean Age 1) 43.5 2) 42.8 3) 43.9 47% male Mean BMI 1) 45.6 2) 45.1 3) 44.9 Mean weight (kg) 1) 136.4 2) 137.9 3) 129.8	Mean change in BMI 1) -2.6 2) -16.0 3) -15.5 1 vs. 2, 1 vs. 3, 2 vs. 3, all p=0.001 Reduction in anti- hypertensive therapy (%) 1) 70 2) 85 3) 80 p=NR	Late complications 2) 6 3) 3 Reoperations 2) 1 3) 1 No deaths in any group
O'Brien 2006 ³³	RCT	1) LAGB 2) low-calorie diet, pharmaco- therapy and lifestyle change	n=80 1) 40 2) 40	24 months	Age 20-50 years BMI 30-35 Obesity-related comorbidity, severe physical limitations, and/or clinically significant psychosocial problems Previous unsuccessful weight loss attempts during the last 5 years	Mean age 1) 41.8 2) 40.7 % male 1) 25 2) 23 Mean BMI 1) 33.7 2) 33.5 Mean weight (kg) 1) 95.0 2) 94.8	Mean weight (kg) 1) 74.5 2) 89.5 Mean BMI 1) -26.4 2) -31.5 Mean %EWL 1) 87.2 2) 21.8 All above outcomes p<0.001 Metabolic syndrome remission 1) 1/15 (24%) 2) 8/15 (3%) p<0.002	No perioperative complications occurred Surgical revision 1) 4 2) N/A Port site infection 1) 1 2) N/A Mortality not reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
O'Brien 2010 ³⁴	RCT	1) LAGB	n=50	24 months	Age 14-18 years	Mean age	Mean BMI	Adverse events
		2) lifestyle	1) 25		BMI >35 with	1) 16.5	1) 29.6	1) 13
		intervention	2) 25		comorbidities >3 years	2) 16.6	2) 39.2	2) N/A
					attempting	% male	Mean weight loss	Reoperations
					to lose weight by	1) 36	(%)	1) 8
					lifestyle means	2) 28	1) 28.2 2) 3.1	2) N/A
						Mean BMI		Hospital admissions
						1) 42.3	Mean weight loss	1) 1
						2) 40.4	(kg) 1) 34.6	2) 1
						Mean weight (kg)	2) 3.0	
						1) 120.7		
						2) 115.4	Mean %EWL	
							1) 78.8	
							2) 13.2	
							All outcomes p<0.001	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
O'Brien 2013 ³⁵	RCT (follow-up to 2002 study)	1) LAGB 2) non-surgical therapy 3) cross-over (to LAGB)	n=80 B/L (51 follow-up) 1) 40 B/L (31 follow-up: 5 WL only, 27 complete) 2) 40 B/L (10 follow-up) 3) 10	10 years	Age 20-50 years BMI 30-35 Obesity-related comorbidity, severe physical limitations, and/or clinically significant psychosocial problems Previous unsuccessful weight loss attempts during the last 5 years	Mean age 1) 53.58 2) 53.30 3) 52.00 % male 1) 16.1 2) 40.0 3) 30.0 Mean BMI 1) 33.6 2) 33.8 3) 33.8 Mean weight (kg) 1) 94.7 2) 95.1 3) 96.2	Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 80.53 (b) 2) 94.72 (a) 3) 84.19 Mean BMI 1) 25.83 (b) 2) 33.12 (a) 3) 29.70 Mean %EWL 1) 63.04 (b) 2) -2.63 (a, c) 3) 48.15 (b) Metabolic syndrome remission 1) 10 2) +1 3) 5 a: p<0.05 compared to (1); b: p<0.05 compared to (2); c: p<0.05 compared to (3)	Surgical revision 1) 19 2) N/A 3) 5 Band reversal 1) 4 2) N/A 3) 3

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
O'Neil 2012 ³⁶	RCT	1) Lorcaserin 10 BID 2) Lorcaserin 10 QD 3) Placebo	n=603 (604 randomiz ed) 1) 256 2) 95 3) 252	52 weeks	T2DM treated with metformin and/or sulfonylurea HbA1c at screening of 7- 10% Age 18-65 BMI 27-45 able to participate in moderate intensity exercise program	Mean age 1) 53.2 2) 53.1 3) 52.0 % female 1) 53.5 2) 55.8 3) 54.4 Mean BMI 1) 36.1 2) 36.1 3) 35.9	% change weight 1) -4.5 2) -5.0 3) -1.5 % Participants with >=5% WL 1) 37.5 2) 44.7 3) 16.1 BMI change 1) -1.6 2) -1.7 3) -0.6 p<0.001 for all comparisons to 3) Change in IWQOL- LITE score 1) +11.3 2) +12.6 3) +10.2 1) vs. 3) p=NS	% at 52 weeks with Echocariographic valvulopathy not present at baseline 1) 2.5 3) 2.9 3) 0.5 % who experienced serious AE 1) 6.3 2) 8.4 3) 6.7 Discontinuation from AE (n) 1) 22 2) 6 3) 11
Peker 2011 ³⁷	Prospective comparativ e cohort	1) LAGB 2) 2 consecutive IGBs	n=32 1) 16 2) 16	18 months	LAGB: BMI>=40 or >=35 with comorbidities	Median age 1) 36.5 2) 33.5 Female/male (n) 1) 12/4 2) 12/4 Median BMI 1) 40.7 2) 35.9	Res./Improvement/ No change T2DM 1) 0/3/0 2) 2/2/1 Hypertension 1) 1/1/1 2) 1/2/1 %EWL 1) 43.5 2) 43.7	Mortality: 0 Band removal (n): 2 No complications detected in IGB group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Pi-Sunyer 2015 ³⁸	RCT	1) LIRA 3.0 2) Placebo	n=3,731 1) 2,487 2) 1,244	56 weeks (+12 week crossover)	Age>=18; BMI>=30 or >=27 with dyslipidemia or hypertension; Excluded if had Type I or Type II diabetes	Age 1) 45.2 2) 45.0 % female 1) 78.7 2) 78.1 Mean BMI 1) 38.3 2) 38.3	% weight loss 1) 8.0 2) 2.6 % >=5% weight loss 1) 63.2 2) 27.1 Diabetes diagnosis (n) 1) 4 2) 14 P<0.001 for all comparison	% discontinuation from AE 1) 9.9 2) 3.8 % experienced an AE 1) 80.3 2) 63.3 % experienced nausea 1) 40.2 2) 14.7 p=NR
Ponce 2013 ³⁹	RCT	1) IGB 2) Diet and exercise	n=30 1) 21 2) 9	48 weeks	BMI 30-40	Mean age 1) 38.9 2) 45.3 % female 1) 81 2) 100 Mean BMI 1) 34.7 2) 35.6	%EWL at 48 weeks 1) 30 2) 25 p=NS % achieving EWL>=25% 1) 19 2) 7.7 p=NS Mean % weight loss at 9 months 1) 7.5 2) 4.6 p=NR Change in SF-36 at 36 weeks Physical/Mental component 1) +3.8/-1.3 2) +3.1/-3.4	Readmission for nausea (n) 1) 4 2) NR Mortality: 0 Bowel obstruction/perforatio n: 0/0 Early removal: 0 Device migration: 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Raffaelli 2014 ⁴⁰	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) Lifestyle intervention and medical therapy for comorbidities	n=40 1) 20 2) 20	12 months	BMI <u>></u> 40 or >35 with T2DM Age 30-60 years No sustained weight loss in previous year	Mean weight (kg) 1) 129.1 2) 124.8 43% male Mean BMI 1) 43.80 2) 42.26 Mean HbA1c (%) 1) 7.0 2) 6.3	Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 91.8 2) 116.8 p<0.01 Mean change in BMI 1) -31.7 2) -40.3 p<0.0001	None reported
Ramon 2012 ⁴¹	RCT	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=15 1) 7 2) 8	12 months	BMI >35 with 1 or more comorbidities or 40-50 BMI Age 18-60 years Females only	Mean age 1) 46.1 2) 49.8 Mean BMI 1) 44.2 2) 43.5 Fasting GLP-1 (pg/mL) 1) 7.3 2) 7.4 Fasting PYY (pg/mL) 1) 73.1 2) 61.25 Fasting PP (pg/mL) 1) 32.8 2) 46	Fasting GLP-1 (pg/mL) 1) 5.5 2) 3.6 p=NS Fasting PYY (pg/mL) 1) 75.7 2) 64.2 p<0.05 Fasting PP (pg/mL) 1) 32.4 2) 37.6 p<0.05	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Risstad 2015 ⁴²	RCT	1) RYGB	n=60	5 years	BMI 50-60	Mean age	Mean BMI	Patients with adverse
		2) BPD/DS	1) 31		Age 20-50 years	1) 35	1) 41.2	events (%)
			2) 29			2) 36	2) 33.1	1) 67.7
							p<0.001	2) 79.3
						30% male		p=NS
							Weight regain (kg)	
						Mean BMI	1) 9.9	Patients with hospital
						1) 54.8	2) 8.7	readmissions (%)
						2) 55.2	p=NS	1) 29
								2) 59
						Mean weight (kg)	Remission of T2DM	p=0.02
						1) 162	1) 4/5 (80%)	
						2) 162	2) 6/6 (100%)	Patients with surgery
							p=NS	related to procedure (%)
							Remission of	1) 9.7
							metabolic	2) 44.8
							syndrome	p=0.002
							1) 17/20 (85%)	
							2) 22/23 (96%)	
							p=NS	
Romero	Prospective	1) VSG	n=22	6 weeks	T2DM diagnosis	Mean age	Mean BMI	None reported
201243	cohort	2) RYGB	1) 6		Severely obesity	1) 49.5	1) 47.0	
		3) T2DM	2) 6	(controls		2) 49.2	2) 45.1	
		controls	3) 5	evaluated on		3) 50.0		
		4) Non-T2DM	4) 5	single occasion)		4) 48.0	Mean weight loss	
		controls					(%)	
						41% male	1) 11.3	
							2) 13.0	
						Mean BMI		
						1) 52.8	Mean HbA1c (%)	
						2) 50.8	1) 5.0	
						3) 46.0	2) 4.5	
						4) 46.4	/ ····	
							(within group	
							comparisons p=NS	
							for main outcomes)	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Sarr 2012 ⁴⁴	RCT	1) VBLOC (treatment): Complete block of vagal neural impulses 2) VBLOC (control): Very low, clinically unimportant level of charge delivered to vagus nerve	n=294 1) 192 2) 102	12 months	Age 18-65 BMI 40-45 or 35- 39.9 with one or more obesity- related comorbidities Failure to achieve weight loss with behavioral intervention or pharmaco- therapy.	Mean age 46 Mean BMI 41 % female 1) 90 2) 86 % with T2DM 1) 3 2) 5	% EWL 1) 17 2) 16 p=NS % of participants achieving >=25% EWL 1) 22 2) 25 p=NS Change in IWQOL- Life Score 1) +13 (p<0.001) 2) +13 (p<0.001) between groups: p=NS SF-36 and BDI-II: no differences between groups in the physical or mental components	Mortality: 0 Revisionary procedure (n): 14 Early device removal (n): 16
Schauer 2012 ⁴⁵	RCT	1) intensive medical therapy (IMT) 2) RYGB 3) VSG	n=150 1) 50 2) 50 3) 50	12 months	Age 20-60 years T2DM diagnosis BMI 27-43	Mean age 1) 49.7 2) 48.3 3) 47.9 34% male Mean BMI 1) 36.3 2) 37.0 3) 36.1	Mean weight (kg) 1) 99.0 2) 77.3 3) 75.5 Mean BMI 1) 34.4 2) 26.8 3) 27.2 p<0.001 for 2) and 3) vs. 1); p=NR for 2) vs. 3) in both outcomes	Reoperation 1) 0 2) 3 3) 1 Adverse event requiring hospitalization 1) 4 2) 11 3) 4 No deaths

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Schauer 2014 ⁴⁶	RCT (follow-up to 2012 study)	1) intensive medical therapy (IMT) 2) RYGB 3) VSG	n=137 1) 40 2) 48 3) 49	3 years	Age 20-60 years T2DM diagnosis BMI 27-43	Mean age 1) 50.3 2) 48.0 3) 47.8 34% male Mean BMI 1) 36.4 2) 37.1 3) 36.1 Mean weight (kg) 1) 104.5 2) 106.8 3) 100.6 Mean HbA1c (%) 1) 9.0 2) 9.3 3) 9.5	Mean weight (kg) 1) 100.2 2) 80.6 3) 79.3 a: p<0.001; b: p<0.001; c: p=0.69 Mean BMI 1) 34.8 2) 27.9 3) 29.2 a: p<0.001; b: p=0.006; c: p not reported a=RYFB vs. IMT; b=VSG vs IMT; c=RYGB vs. VSG	No life-threatening complications or deaths
Shikora 2015 ⁴⁷	RCT (18-month results of ReCharge trial. See Ikramuddin 2014)	1) vBloc 2) Sham	n=239 1) 162 2) 77	18 months	BMI 40-45 or 35- 40 with 1 or more comorbidities	Mean age: 47 % female 1) 87 2) 81 Mean BMI: 41 T2DM/HTN/DYS/OS A (%) 1) 4/39/56/20 2) 7/42/60/30	% EWL 1) 23.5 2) 10.2 Difference: 13.4 (95% Cl: 8.4, 18.4) %TWL 1) 8.8 2) 3.8 Difference: 5.0 (95% Cl: 3.1, 6.9)	% heartburn/dyspepsia 1) 25 2) 4 % neuroregulator site pain 1) 38 2) 42 % abdominal pain 1) 14 2) 3

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Smith 2009 ⁴⁸	RCT	1) Lorcaserin 10 QD 2) Lorcaserin 15 QD 3) Lorcaserin 10 BID 4) Placebo	n=469 1) 117 2) 118 3) 116 4) 118	12 weeks	Age 18-65; BMI 30-45	Mean age 1) 41.5 2) 41.3 3) 41.5 4) 41.6 % female 1) 82.1 2) 93.2 3) 85.3 4) 87.3 Mean BMI 1) 36.2 2) 36.9 3) 36.2 4) 36.4	Mean BMI change 1) -0.7 2) -1.0 3) -1.3 4) -0.1 Change in weight (kg) 1) -1.7 2) -2.2 3) -3.1 4) -0.2 p<0.001 for 1),2),&3) vs. 4)	Nausea/dizziness (%) 1)8.5/6.0 2) 9.3/7.6 3) 11.2/7.8 4) 3.4/0 Headache (%) 1) 29.9 2) 32.2 3) 26.7 4) 17.8 Discontinued from AE (n) 1) 1 2) 9 3) 2 4) 3
Smith 2010 ⁴⁹	RCT	 Lorcaserin 10 Placebo All patients also received diet/exercise counseling 	n=3,182 1) 1,595 2) 1,587	52 weeks	Age 18-65; BMI 30-45 or 27-45 with comorbidities	Mean Age 1) 43.8 2) 44.4 % female 1) 82.9 2) 84.0 Mean BMI 1) 36.2 2) 36.2	Mean BMI change 1) -2.09 2) -0.78 p<0.001 % Participants with >=5% WL 1) 47.5 2) 20.3 p<0.001 Mean WL (%) 1) 5.81 2) 2.16 p<0.001	Upper respiratory infections/headache (%) 1) 14.8/18.0 2) 11.9/11.0 Nausea/dizziness (%) 1)7.5/8.2 2) 5.4/3.8 Incidence of depressive symptoms (%) 1) 2.5 2) 2.2

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Søvik 2010 ⁵⁰	RCT	1) RYGB 2) BPD	n=60 1) 31 2) 29	12 months	BMI 50-60 Age 20-50 years	Mean age 1) 35 2) 36 30% male Mean BMI 1) 54.8 2) 55.2 Mean weight (kg) 1) 162 2) 162	%EBMIL 1) 54.4 2) 74.8 p<0.001 Mean BMI 1) 38.5 2) 32.5 p<0.001	Early complications 1) 4 2) 7 Late complications 1) 5 2) 9 Reoperations 1) 2 2) 1 All outcomes above p=NS No deaths in either group
Søvik 2011 ⁵¹	RCT	1) RYGB 2) BPD	n=60 1) 31 2) 29	24 months	BMI 50–60 Age 20–50 years	Mean age 1) 35 2) 36 30% male Mean BMI 1) 54.8 2) 55.2 Mean weight (kg) 1) 162 2) 162	Mean weight (kg) 1) 111 2) 88.3 Mean BMI 1) 37.5 2) 30.1 p<0.001 Both outcomes p<0.001	Late complications 1) 9 2) 12 Reoperations 1) 3 2) 7
Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
------------------------------	-----------------	--	---------------------------	-------------------------------------	---	--	---	---
Wadden 2011 ⁵²	RCT	1) NB 32/360 2) Placebo Note: All participants also received behavior modification	n=793 1) 591 2) 202	56 weeks	Age 18-65; BMI 30-45 or 27-45 with controlled hypertension and/or dyslipidemia	Mean age 1) 45.9 2) 45.6 % female 1) 89.3 2) 91.6 Mean BMI 1) 36.3 2) 37	% with >5% WL 1) 66.4 2) 42.5 p<0.001 % Change weight 1) -7.8 2) -4.9 p<0.001 IWQOL-Lite total score % change 1) +23.9 2) +17.7 p<0.001	% Discontinued from AE 1) 25.4 2) 12.4 Serious AEs related to drug (cholecystitis) (n) 1) 2 2) N/A
Wadden 2013 ⁵³	RCT	1) LIRA 3.0 2) Placebo	n=422 1) 212 2) 210	56 weeks	Age >=18; BMI >=30 or >=27 with comorbidities; lost >=5% weight during VLCD	Mean age 1) 45.9 2) 46.5 %female 1) 84 2) 79 Mean BMI 1) 36 2) 35.2	% Change weight 1) -6.2 2) -0.2 p<0.0001 % Participants with >5% WL 1) 50.5 2) 21.8 p<0.0001 Mean BMI change 1) -2.1 2) 0 p<0.0001	% experiencing adverse events 1) 91.5 2) 88.6 Symptomatic hypoglycemia (n) 1) 11 2) 5 GI-related AE leading to withdrawal (n) 1) 11 2) 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Winslow 2012 ⁵⁴	RCT	1) PHEN/TPM 15/92 2) Placebo	n=45 1) 22 2) 23	28 weeks	Age 30-65; BMI 30-40; OSA; apnea-hypopnea index>=15; unwilling to comply with PAP treatment	Mean age 1) 53.4 2) 51.4 % female 1) 59.1 2) 34.8 Mean BMI 1) 36.0 2) 35.3	% change weight 1) -10.3 2) -4.2 % Participants with >=WL 1) 72.7 2) 47.8 p=0.0846 Mean change in annea-hypopnea	% with Treatment- emergent AE 1) 90.9 2) 73.9
							index 1) -31.5 2) -16.6	

Table B2. Fair Quality Studies

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Alam 2011 ⁵⁵	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) calorie restriction (CR)	n=30 1) 16 2) 14	1) 35.9 days 2) 73.5 days p=0.032	BMI ≥35 <60 years T2DM duration <5 years HbA1c <8%	Mean weight (kg) 1) 111.1 2) 113.3 Mean BMI 1) 43.7 2) 43.9 DPP-4 activity 1) 529.5 2) 464.1	Mean weight loss (kg) 1) -11.1 2) -10.9 DPP-4 activity 1) -61.5 2) -5.5 It is unlikely that the decrease in DPP-4 activity after GBP is related to CR or weight loss.	None reported
Alfa Wali 2014 ⁵⁶	Retrospecti ve comparativ e cohort	1) IGB 2) LAGB 3) RYGB	n=983 1) 88 2) 533 3) 362	1 year	NICE criteria for surgery	Mean age 48.10 % Female 79.3 Mean BMI 47.52	%EWL 1) 14.05 2) 22.95 3) 41.67 3 vs. 1 & 3 vs. 2, p<.0001 At 9 months and 1- year follow up, LAGB and IGB had comparable %EWL while RYGB remained significantly more effective.	Social deprivation does not affect the degree of excess weight loss after bariatric surgery

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Alley 2012 ⁵⁷	Retro- spective cohort	1) VSG 2) LAGB	n=108 1) 69 2) 39	9.3 months	BMI >40 or 35- 39.9 with comorbidities	Mean age 49 20% male Mean BMI 42.5	Mean %EWL 1) 47.2 2) 29.5 p=0.0003 %EBMIL 1) 58.1 2) 36.9 p=0.0009 BQL Composite Score 1) 66.5 2) 57.9 p=0.0009	Overall complications 1) 11 2) 6 Clavien Grade 1 1) 6 2) 2 Clavien Grade 2 1) 3 2) 1 Reoperation 1) 2 2) 3 No deaths in either group
Angrisani 2013 ⁵⁸	RCT	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=51 1) 27 2) 24	10 years	BMI >35 & <50 Age >16 & <50 No hiatal hernia No previous major abdominal operations	Mean Age 34 18% male Mean BMI 43.6	BMI at 10 years 1) 36 ± 7 2) 30 ± 5 Mean %EWL at 10 years 1) 46 2) 69 p=0.03 Mean weight at 10 years 1) 101 ± 22 2) 83 ± 18	Reoperations 1) 9/22 (40.9%) 2) 6/21 (28.6%) Early complications 1) 0 2) 2 No deaths in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Ballantyne 2006 ⁵⁹	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=117 1) 56 2) 61	45.5 days	NIH 1991 criteria	Median age 41 24% male Median BMI 45.0	Mean change in BMI 1) -4 2) -6 p<0.05 Mean %EWL 1) 24.1 2) 51.4 p<0.05 Median postop insulin (U/mI): 1) 12.3 2) 9.1 p<0.05 p=NS for HbA1c or glucose	None reported
Bayham 2012 ⁶⁰	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=109 1) 38 2) 71 n=262 for character- istics and harms (n=123 and n=139 for RYGB and LAGB)	8 weeks	Obese patients with T2DM on hypoglycemic meds	Mean age 49 30% male Mean BMI 47.5	Discontinued T2DM medications 1) 30 2) 59	Major complications (%) 1) 24.7 2) 3.6 Minor complications (%) 1) 22.8 2) 6 Mortality 1) 1 2) 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Benaiges 2011 ⁶¹	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=140 1) 95 1) 45	12 months	1991 NIH criteria Age 18-55	Mean age 45 18% male Mean BMI 45.7	Mean %EWL at 12 months 1) 82.7 2) 80.9 p=NS 40-50% reduction in CV risk via FRS and REGICOR; p=NS between groups Resolution of HTN (%) 1) 74.4 2) 64.3 p=0.NS Resolution of HLD (%) 1) 100 2) 75 p=0.014	Perioperative complications (%) 1) 16.8 2) 8.9 p=NS Readmission rate (%) 1) 1.1 2) 2.2 p=NS No deaths in either group
Benaiges 2013 ⁶²	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=193 1) 115 2) 78	24 months	1991 NIH criteria Age 18-55	Mean age 45 17% male Mean BMI 45.1	Resolution of insulin resistance (%) 1) 92.9 2) 87.5 p=NS T2DM resolution (%) 1) 62.1 2) 60 p=NS	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Brunault 2011 ⁶³	Prospective cohort	1) LAGB 2) VSG	n=131 1) 102 2) 29	12 months	Not reported	Mean age 40 18% male Mean BMI 49.5	Mean change in BMI: 1) -7.9 2) -12.1 p=NR Mean %EWL: 1) 34.8 2) 43.8 p=0.02 Significant (p=0.0048) improvement in psychosocial QoL for VSG, but no other differences	Reoperations 1) 20 2) 5 p=NS Postoperative fistula 1) 0 2) 3 p=0.01 No deaths reported
Busetto 2007 ⁶⁴	Cross- sectional	1) LAGB 2) weight management intervention	n=1642 1) 821 2) 821	1) 5.6 ± 1.9 years 2) 7.2 ± 1.2 years	BMI >40	Mean age 1) 38.2 2) 42.8 25% male Mean BMI 1) 48.7 ± .4 2) 48.1 ± .5	Mean BMI at 3 years 1) 38.6 ± 7.3 2) NR Mean %EWL 1) 40.9 ± 21.7 2) NR	Reoperations 1) 107 (13%) 2) N/A Mortality 1) 8 (0.97%) 2) 36 (4.38%)
Chen 2013 ⁶⁵	Retro- spective cohort	1) VSG 2) LAGB	n=32 (16 in each group	1 year	T2DM diagnosis Age 30-60 BMI 25-35	Mean age 45.3 34% male Mean BMI 30	T2DM remission 1) 1 (50%) 2) 9 (100%) P=0.002 Partial remission 1) 7 2) 7	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators / Interventions	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Cottam 2006 ⁶⁶	Prospective	1) RYGB	n=362	Up to 3 years	Not reported	Mean age 42.5	Mean %EWL at 1	Minor reoperation
	cohort	2) LAGB	(181 in			16% male	year	1) 25
			each group)			Iviedii Bivii 47.2	1) /0	2) 28 p=NS
			group)				2)40	p=105
							p<0.001	Major reoperation
							T2DM resolution	1) 10
							(%)	2) 15
							1) 78%	p=NS
							2) 50%	
							p=0.010	Downward trend over 3
								years significant in
							HLD resolution (%)	tavor of LAGB
							1) 61	No dootha in aithar
							2)40	no deaths in either
							p=0.009	group
							HTN resolution (%)	
							1) 81	
							2) 56	
							p=0.003	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Cotugno 2015 ⁶⁷	Retrospecti ve comp cohort	1) Bariatric surgery (RYGB [15] or VSG [16]) 2) LIRA + ongoing hypoglycemic drugs	n=62 1) 31 2) 31	1 year	Patients with T2DM	Age 1) 47 2) 56 p<.001 Weight (kg) 1) 122 2) 107 p=.004 BMI 1) 44 2) 40 p=.03 Mean HbA1c 1) 7.9 2) 8.4 p<.005	BMI reduction 1) 14 2) 1.4 p<.001 Weight loss (kg) 1) 38 2) 5 (51% achieved at least 5% weight loss) p<.001 HbA1c reduction 1) 2.2 2) 1.3 p=NS Use of meds @ 12 months Hypertension 1) 2/23 2) 19/17 Dyslipidemia 1) 2/10 2) 14/13 No significance testing for meds	AEs 1) 34 2) 7 No significance testing done for AEs

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Coupaye 2013 ⁶⁸	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=60 (30 in each group)	6 months	Not reported	Mean age 46.6 27% male Mean BMI 49.7	Mean BMI (6 mos) 1) 39.6 ± 7.4 2) 40.4 ± 9.4 p=NS Weight loss (kg) 1) -31.8 ± 10.2 2) -29.1 ± 13.9 p=NS	None reported
Cutolo 2012 ⁶⁹	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=31 1) 16 2) 15	Up to 24 months	T2DM diagnosis	Mean age 45 45% male Mean BMI 49.5	Mean change in BMI 18-24 months (%) 1) 33 ± 11 2) 29 ± 8 p=NS Mean %EWL 1) 52 ± 19 2) 53 ± 16 p=NS D/C antidiabetics 1) 14 2) 13 p=NR	Concomitant surgery 1) 4 2) 3 p=NR Reoperation 1) 3 2) 3 p=NR

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Author/Year Davidson 2013 ⁷⁰	Secondary analysis of CONQUER	Comparators /Intervention 1) PHEN/TPM (7.5mg) 2) hypertension (15mg) 3) placebo	# of Patients hypertensi on 1) 516 2) 256 3) 514 n=1286 dyslipide mia 1) 526 2) 271 3) 526 n=1323	Time to Follow-up 56 weeks	Entry Criteria BMI 27-45 Patients with dyslipidemia and/or hypertension at the start of the trial	Age: 51.1 % male: 30% Weight: 103.1 BMI: 36.6	Main Outcomes % weight loss (hyper) 1) 8.5 2) 10.5 3) 2.1 % weight loss (dys) 1) 8.1 2) 10.1 3) 1.9 Both p<.0001 vs. placebo Dose-related weight loss induced by PHEN/TPM ER treatment was accompanied by significant improvements in cardiovascular disease risk factors in participants who had dyslipidemia or hypertension at baseline and were similar to the	Harms AEs (hyper) (%): 1) 85.4 2) 88.8 3) 77.3 (0.4% severe) AEs (dys) (%): 1) 86.5 2) 88.3 3) 75.9 (0.6% severe) Discontinuation due to AEs: (hyper): 1) 9.7 2) 11.9 3) 19.8 (dys): 1) 12.4 2) 18.0 3) 8.8 1 death occurred in the placebo group of the subgroup with dyslipidemia
							overall population	p=NR for all harms

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
del Genio 2007 ⁷¹	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) dietary and lifestyle correction	n=40 1) 20 2) 20	1) 6 weeks 2) 6 months	Not reported	Mean age 37.6 45% male Mean BMI 50.3 Mean weight 138.5kg Mean fat mass 48.6%	Weight loss (kg) 1) -14 2) -22 p=NR Fat mass (%) 1) -0.2 2) -5.2 Change significant in 2) (p=0.002)	None reported
Demaria 2010 ⁷²	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=218 (109 in each group)	90 days	T2DM present BMI 30-34.9	Mean age 52.4 23.4% male Mean BMI 33.8	BMI at 90 days 1) 30.6 ± 3.0 2) 31.6 ± 2.5 p=0.018 %EBW 1) 41.7 ± 15.0 2) 40.6 ± 46.8 p=NS D/C antidiabetics (%) 1) 37.5 2) 21.1 p=0.016	Any complication through 90 days 1) 20 2) 3 p<0.05 Serious complications 1) 3 2) 1 No deaths in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Deveney 2004 ⁷³	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) BPD	n=93 1) 57 2) 36	Up to 2 years	No prior failed bariatric surgery	Mean age 45 22% male Mean BMI 60	%EBW at 12 months 1) 54 ± 16 2) 53 ± 11 %EBW at 24 months 1) 67 ± 18 2) 63 ± 21 p=NS for both comparisons Hospital LOS* 1) 5.9d 2) 8.7d 2 8.7d	Wound infection* 1) 47 2) 25 p=NS Postop anastomotic leak* 1) 8 2) 7 Mortality 1) 2 2) 1 *from full sample only
Dixon 2007 ⁷⁴	RCT	1) LAGB 2) low-energy diet	n=23 1) 26 2) 27	2 years	Age 20-50 BMI 30-35 & comorbidities Weight loss attempt in last 5 years	Mean Age 41.4 25% male Mean BMI 33.4 Mean Weight 94.5kg	Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 20.3 2) 5.9 p<0.001	None reported

Design /Intervention Patients Follow-up Characteristics	
Dolan 2004 ^{7h} Retro- spective cohort 1) BPD 2) LAGB n=46 1) 23 2) 23 24 months 1) 30 BMI 40-50 Mean age 1) 41 Mean change in BMI Mean thange in 1) 41 Mean thange in BMI Mean age 1) 41 Mean change in BMI Mean thange in 1) 42 Mean thange in 1) 42 Mean thange in 1) 42 Mean thange in 1) 44 Mean thange in BMI Mean thange in 1) 44 Mean thange in 1) 44 Mean thange in 1) 45 Mean thange in 2) 10 Mean thange in 1) 45 Mean thange in 2) 10 Mean thange in 10 Mean than	Complications 1) 13 (56.5%) 2) 2 (8.7%) p=0.001 Reoperations 1) 7 (30.4%) 2) 2 (8.7%) No deaths in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Dorman 2012 ⁷⁶	Retro- spective cohort	1) medical management (NSC) 2) LAGB 3) BPD/DS	n=172 1) 29, 29 2) 30, 30 3) 27, 27 Each group was compared to the same # of patients who under- went RYGB	1 year	BMI >35 with T2DM diagnosis b/w 2001-2008	Mean age 1) 52.3 2) 54.0 3) 51.4 38% male Mean BMI 1) 41.3 2) 46.6 3) 51.5 Mean HbA1c 1) 7.2 2) 7.1 3) 7.7	BMI (NSC vs. RYBG) no change vs 14.8, p<0.001 Mean %EWL (NSC vs. RYBG) -37.4% > than NSC, p<0.001 Mean change in HbA1c (NSC vs. RYBG) no change vs1.3, p<0.001 Mean change in BMI (RYBG vs. LAGB) -14.8 vs6.5, p<0.001 Mean %EWL (RYBG vs. LAGB) 20.8% < RYGB, 95% CI: 17.3–24.3 Mean change in HbA1c (RYBG vs. LAGB) -0.8 vs. no change, p=0.009 HbA1c (RYGB vs. BPD/DS) -2.4 vs1.3, p=0.001	Readmissions for RYGB, LAGB, and DS = 11.6%, 6.7%, and 14.8% Overall complication rates for RYGB, LAGB, and DS = 15.1%, 10%, and 40.7% Reoperation range for RYGB, LAGB, and DS = 2, 1, and 0 No mortality

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
DuPree 2014 ⁷⁷	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=38699 1) 33867 2) 4832	6 months	>17 years old	Mean age 1) 45.4 2) 46 % male 1) 20.9 2) 26.7 Mean BMI 1) 47.6 2) 47.9 Preoperative GERD 1) 50.4% 2) 44.5%	Resolution of GERD 1) 62.8% 2) 15.9% p0<0.001 The percentage of patients who experienced resolution of comorbidities was decreased in the VSG patients who had preoperative GERD	New onset GERD 1) 2.2% 2) 8.6% p<0.05 Postoperative complications (15.1% vs 10.6%), gastrointestinal adverse events (6.9% vs 3.6%), and increased need for revisional surgery (0.6% vs 0.3%) were higher for VSG (all p<0.05). Mortality 1) 61 (0.2%) 2) 3 (0.1%)

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Garrido- Sanchez 2012 ⁷⁸	Prospective cohort	1) BPD/DS 2) VSG	n=31 1) 18 2) 13	90 days	Not reported	Mean age 1) 40.06 2) 43.15 23% males Mean BMI 1) 50.05 2) 48.01 Mean HbA1c 1) 6.75 2) 6.56 Mean Cholesterol 1) 5.06 2) 5.02 Mean Triglycerides 1) 1.63 2) 1.68	BMI 1) -7.98 2) -7.98 p=NS HbA1c 1) -1.81 2)81 p<0.01 Mean Cholesterol 1) -1.62 2)12 p<0.001 Mean Triglycerides 1)22 2)37 p=NS	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Gehrer 2010 ⁷⁹	Prospective cohort	1) VSG 2) RYGB	n=136 1) 86 2) 50	24.4 months	Not reported	Mean age 1) 41.9 2) 43.5 28% male Mean BMI 1) 46.5 2) 44.2	Mean change in BMI 1) -10.8 2) -13.8 %EBMIL 1) 60 2) 79 Vit. B deficiency (%) 1) 18 2) 58 p<0.0001 Vit. D deficiency (%) 1) 32 2) 52 p=0.02 Iron deficiency (%) 1) 18 2) 28 p=NS	None reported

Author/Year De	tudy esign	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Genco 2008 ⁸⁰ Retro ve co coho	rospecti comp ort	1) IGB 2) structured diet and behavioral modification	n=260 1) 130 2) 130	≥12 months	Consecutive patients undergoing IGB or diet program Age 18-60 BMI >35 or <35 with at least 1 comorbidity	Age 1) 38.0 2) 37.7 23% male Weight 1) 117.1 2) 115.9 BMI 1) 42.1 2) 41.9	After balloon removal Mean BMI 1) 35.4 2) 38.9 %EWL 1) 33.9 2) 24.3 Weight outcomes, p<.01 Weight regain after 24 months in IGB group Resolution T2DM 1) 16/41 2) 11/38 Hypertension 1) 18/39 2) 10/39 Joint disease 1) 7/19 2) 4/16 All comorbidity outcomes, p<.001; resolution of OSA in all patients in both groups Other outcomes reported improvement or no	No mortality or complications

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Genco 2009 ⁸¹	Case- control	1) VSG 2) IGB	n=120 1) 40 2) 80	12 months	Consecutive patients undergoing the interventions of interest	Age 1) 41.2 2) 40.9 30% male Weight 1) 157.2 2) 156.1 BMI 1) 54.8 2) 54.1	6 month follow-up Mean BMI 1) 46.2 2) 47.1 %EWL 1) 33.6 2) 34.7 12 month follow- up Mean BMI 1) 43.1 2) 48.1 %EWL 1) 35.2 2) 35.1 Patients in IGB group gained weight b/w 6-12 months while VSG patients cont'd to lose weight. No significant differences between groups for weight outcomes or for improvement of comorbidities @ any point.	No deaths of complications in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Genco 2010 ⁸²	RCT	1) IGB followed by diet 2) IGB followed by another IGB	n=100 1) 50 2) 50	2 years	Age 25-35 BMI 40-49.9	Age 1) 31.4 2) 32.1 20% male Weight 1) 106.3 2) 107.1 BMI 1) 42.6 2) 42.9	@ study end: %EBL 1) 25.1 2) 51.9 Mean BMI 1) 35.9 2) 30.9 After 24 months: Mean BMI 1) 41.1 2) 36.8 All weight outcomes, p<.05	Complications were comparable b/w groups
Halperin 2014 ⁸³	RCT	1) RYGB 2) T2DM and weight management	n=38 1) 19 2) 19	12 months	T2DM >1year BMI 30-42 Age 21-65	Mean age 51.7 39% male Mean BMI 36.3 Mean fat mass 44kg Mean HbA1c 8.5%	Fat Mass (kg) 1) -22.7 2) -6.2 p<0.001 HbA1c <6.5% (%) 1) 58 2) 16 p=0.03	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Helmio 2012 ⁸⁴	RCT	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=238 1) 117 2) 121	30 days	BMI >40 or BMI >35 w/comorbidities Age 18-60 Supervised and failed diet & exercise program	Mean Age 49 30.4% male Mean BMI 44.6	Only complications reported.	Major complications (%) 1) 7.4 2) 5.8 p=NS Overall morbidity (%) 1) 26.5 2) 13.2 p=0.01 Reoperation (%) 1) 3.4 2) 2.5 p=NS No deaths occurred
Himpens 2006 ⁸⁵	RCT	1) LAGB 2) VSG	n=80 1) 40 2) 40	3 years	Not reported	Mean Age 38 20% male Median BMI 38	Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 17 2) 29.5 p<0.0001 Mean %EWL 1) 48 2) 66 p=0.0025 Mean change in BMI 1) -18.0 2) -27.5 p=0.0004	GERD occurrence (%) 1) 8.8 2) 21.8 p=NS All reoperations 1) 9 2) 4 Revisions 1) 4 (to RYGB) 2) 2 (to DS) Overall complications 1) 16 2) 6 No deaths reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Hutter 2011 ⁸⁶	Prospective	1) VSG	n=28616	1 year	Not reported	Mean age	Mean change in	30-day reoperations
	cohort	2) LAGB	1) 944			1) 46.52	BMI	1) 28 (2.97%)
		3) RYGB (lap)	2) 12193			2) 44.31	1) -11.87	2) 112 (0.92%)
		4) RYGB (open)	3) 14491			3) 44.6	2) -7.05	3) 728 (5.02%)
			4) 988			4) 45.52	3) -15.34	4) 50 (5.06%)
						23% male	T2DM resolution	30-day morbidity
							(%)	1) 53 (5.61%)
						Mean BMI	1) 55	2) 175 (1.44%)
						1) 46.24	2) 44	3) 857 (5.91%)
						2) 43.91	3) 83	4) 148 (14.98%)
						3) 46.07		
						4) 48.80	Hypertension	Mortality
							resolution (%)	1) 2 (0.21%)
							1) 68	2) 10 (0.08%)
							2) 44	3) 49 (0.34%)
							3) 79	4) 11 (1.11%)
							OSA resolution (%)	
							1) 62	
							2) 38	
							3) 66	
							GERD resolution	
							(%)	
							1) 50	
							2) 64	
							3) 70	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
lesari 2013 ⁸⁷	Prospective cohort	 diet-induced weight loss BPD 	n=20 1) 10 2) 6	6 months	No T2DM diagnosis	Mean age 1) 41.2 2) 38 25% male Mean BMI 1) 49 2) 49.7	Mean weight loss 1) 14.7 (p<0.01) 2) 29.9 (p<0.01) Mean change in BMI 1) -5.2 (p<0.05) 2) -10.5 (p<0.05)	None reported
Inabet 2012 ⁸⁸	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB 3) VSG 4) BPD/DS (only patients with metabolic syndrome were analyzed) 1a) With metabolic syndrome 2b) Without metabolic syndrome	n=23106 1) 7357 2) 14329 3) 1081 4) 339 n=186576 1) 23106 2) 163470	90 days	Age 18-75 years BMI >35	Mean age 45.5 43% male Mean BMI 46.9	T2DM remission 28% for LAGB, 62% RYGB, 52% VSG, and 74% BPD/DS	90-day reoperation 1) 134 (1.8%) 2) 754 (5.3%) 3) 38 (3.5%) 4) 28 (8.3%) 1 vs. 4, p<0.0001 90-day serious complication 1) 67 (0.9%) 2) 445 (3.1%) 3) 24 (2.2%) 4) 22 (6.5%) 2 vs. 1, p<0.0001 90-day mortality 1) 5 (0.1%) 2) 53 (0.4%) 3) 3 (0.3%) 4) 4 (1.2%)

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Jan 2007 ⁸⁹	Retro-	1) LAGB	n=898	5 years	BMI ≥40 or BMI	Mean age	Mean %EWL	Complications (%)
	spective	2) RYGB	1) 406		≥35 with	1) 47	1) 49	1) 24
	cohort		2) 492		comorbidities	2) 44	2) 58.6	2) 32
								p=0.002
						17% male	Mean weight loss	
							(kg)	Adverse events (%)
						Mean BMI	1) 48.1	1) 5
						1) 51	2) 47.7	2) 9
						2) 49		p=NS
							Mean change in	
							BMI	Reoperation rate (%)
							1) 16.2	1) 17
							2) 18	2) 17
								p=NS
							p=NS	
								One RYGB death
Karlsen 2013 ³⁰	Prospective	1) RYGB	n=139	1 year	None reported	Mean age	SF 36 change from	None reported
	conort	2) intensive	1) 76			1) 43	baseline:	
		intervention	2) 63			2) 47	Dhucical	
						200/ mala		
		(11)				50% IIIale	1) 10.0	
						Mean BMI	2) 4.9	
						1) 46	p <0.001	
						2) 43	Mental	
						_,	1) 9.6	
						SF 36:	2) 3.5	
						Physical	p=0.007	
						1) 34		
						2) 39	Emotional	
							1) 42.7	
						Mental	2) 15.7	
						1) 41	p<0.007	
						2) 2	25.2; 95% CI, 15.0-	
							35.4	
						Emotional		
						1) 32		
						2) 42		

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Kashyap 2013 ⁹¹	RCT	1) intensive medical management (IMT) 2) RYBG + IMT 2) VSG + IMT	n=60 1) 20 2) 20 3) 20	24 months	Not reported	Mean age 48.4 47% male Mean BMI 36.1 Mean HbA1c 9% Mean weight 104.3kg Mean T2DM duration 8.4 years	Mean change in HbA1c 1) -1.1 2) -3.1 3) -2.5 1 vs. 2, p<0.001 Mean weight loss (kg) 1)5 2) -25.4 3) -22.5 2 & 3 vs. 1, p<0.001 Mean change in BMI 1) -0.2 2) -8.7 3) -8.2 2 & 3 vs. 1, p<0.001 Triglycerides (mg/dL) 1) -56 2) -56 3) -2 p=NS HDL (mg/dL) 1) 4.8 2) 13.8 3) 16.8 1 vs. 2 & 3, p=0.002	No deaths in any group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Kehagias	RCT	1) RYGB	n=60	3 years	BMI <50	Mean Age 34.9	Mean change in	Early morbidity (%)
2011 ⁹²		2) VSG	1) 30			40% male	BMI	1) 10
			2) 30			Mean BMI 45.4	1) -14.5	2) 13
							2) -15.3	p=NS
							p=NS	
								Late morbidity (%)
							%EBMIL	1) 10
							1) 61.4	2) 10
							2) 68.2	p=NS
							p=NS	
								Reoperations
							Mean %EWL	1) 1
							1) 62.1	2) 1
							2) 68.5	
							p=NS	No mortality
							No significant	
							differences were	
							seen for resolution	
							of comorbidities	
							between groups	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
	spective cohort	2) LAGB	1) 232 2) 160	18 months	≥35 w/comorbidities	1) 38.5 2) 41.7 17% male Mean BMI	1) 68 2) 47.5 p=NS Mean %EWL for BMI >50	Late complications (%) 1) 5.2 2) 0.6 Late complications (%) 1) 0.4 2) 3.7
						1) 47.2 2) 47.1	1) 50.5 2) 40.7 p=NS Significant	Overall complications were not significantly different.
							improvement of comorbidities including, hypertension, T2DM, hyperlipidemia, arthritis, GERD, and stress urinary incontinence were not statistically different between groups.	No deaths in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Kokkinos 2013 ⁹⁴	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=37 1) 14 2) 23	6 months	Not reported	Mean age 1) 38 2) 40.3 Mean BMI 1) 47.9 2) 51.6	BMI 1) -13.4 2) -13.3 p=0.05 No significant differences for systolic or diastolic BP between the two groups Both procedures proved to be similarly effective in inducing improvement of cardiovascular indices.	None reported
Kruger 2014 ⁹⁵	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB 3) VSG	n=3640 1) 2966 2) 352 3) 118	~5 years	Age 18-74 BMI 34-80 BMI>40 or BMI>35 with significant comorbidities	17% male Mean age 44 Mean BMI 1) 47.1 2) 43.9 3) 45.3	Mean %EWL over 5 years 1) 55 2) 45 3) 62 p=NR	Major complications (%) 1) 6.9 2) 2.8 3) 12.7 1 vs. 2, p<0.0001 1 vs. 3, p<0.005 2 vs. 3, p<0.05 Reoperation (%) 1) 2.33 2) 1.42 3) 3.39 Mortality 1) 3 2) 0 3) 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Laferrere 2008 ⁹⁶	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) hypocaloric diet	n=19 1) 9 2) 10	1 month	Females with T2DM	Mean Age 45.6 Mean Weight 112kg Mean BMI 43.3 Mean T2DM duration 26.6 months Mean HbA1c 6.6	Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 10.0 2) 9.8 p=NS Mean change in BMI 1) -3.8 2) -3.7 p=NS Fasting glucose (mmol/l) 1) -1.53 2) -1.50 p=NS All patients in the RYGB group discontinued their T2DM medications vs. 2 in the diet group	No serious adverse events in any group.
Leonetti 2012 ⁹⁷	Prospective cohort	1) VSG 2) conventional therapy	n=60 1) 30 2) 30	18 months	Morbid obesity with T2DM	Mean age 1) 53.0 2) 56.0 Mean BMI 1) 41.3 2) 39.0 Mean HbA1c (%) 1) 7.9 2) 8 1	Mean BMI 1) 28.3 2) 39.8 <i>p</i> <0.001 Mean HbA1c (%) 1) 6.0 2) 7.1 <i>p</i> <0.001	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Leyba 2011 ⁹⁸	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=117 1) 75 2) 42	1 year	BMI 35-49.9	Mean Age 1) 38.6 2) 34.6 19% male Mean BMI 1) 42.1 2) 41.1	Mean %EWL 1) 86.0 2) 78.8 p=NS	Minor complications 1) 0 2) 4 p<0.02 Major complications 1) 7 2) 2 P=NS No deaths in either group
Lim 2014 ⁹⁹	Retro- spective cohort	1) VSG 2) RYGB	n=454 1) 226 2) 228	5 years	All patients were military retirees or family members of active duty service personnel; no patients were on active duty	Median age 1) 47.2 2) 45.6 9% male Mean BMI 1) 41 2) 41	Mean %EWL 1) 54 2) 57 p=NS	None reported
Lips 2013 ¹⁰⁰	Prospective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=27 1) 11 2) 16	3 months	Obese females eligible for dietary and surgical treatment	Mean age 47.4 Mean BMI 1) 43.1 2) 44.2 Mean weight (kg) 1) 118.6 2) 128.2	Mean weight (kg) 1) 106.6 (p<0.05) 2) 108.1 (p<0.05) Mean BMI 1) 38.4 (p<0.05) 2) 37.1 (p<0.05) Mean weight loss (%) 1) 10.2 (p<0.05) 2) 15.7 (p<0.05)	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Lips 2014 ¹⁰¹	Prospective cohort	1) LAGB (non- T2DM) 2) RYGB (non- T2DM) 3) RYGB (T2DM) 4) very low- calorie diet (T2DM)	n=54 1) 11 2) 16 3) 15 4) 12	3 weeks	 (1), (2), (3), (4): fulfilled international criteria for bariatric surgery; (4): eligible for dietary treatment and did not wish to undergo surgery 	Mean age 1) 46.3 2) 48.6 3) 51.3 4) 50.8 Mean BMI 1) 43.1 2) 44.2 3) 43.5 4) 40.2 Mean weight (kg) 1) 118.6 2) 128.2 3) 121.3 4) 112.0	Mean weight (kg) 1) 113.1 2) 119.4 3) 112.5 4) 105.3 Mean BMI 1) 40.5 2) 40.9 3) 40.4 4) 37.7 3 & 4 vs. 1 & 2, p=NS for both outcomes	None reported
Martins 2011 ¹⁰²	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) residential intermittent program 3) commercial weight loss camp 4) hospital outpatient program	n=179 1) 50 2) 27 3) 56 4) 46	1 year	Not reported	Mean age 1) 40 2) 40.2 3) 38.4 4) 41.4 29% male Mean BMI 1) 45.2 2) 45.3 3) 48.3 4) 44.3	Weight loss (kg) 1) 40.3 2) 21.7 3) 17.6 4) 6.7 Weight loss (%) 1) 30.5 2) 14.8 3) 13.0 4) 5.3 1 vs. 2, 3 or 4 for both outcomes, p<0.0001	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Messiah	Prospective	1) RYGB	n=890	1 year	Aged 11-19	25% male	Mean change in	120 total complications
2013 ¹⁰³	cohort	2) LAGB	1) 454				BMI	1) 98
			2) 436			Mean BMI	1) -17.1	2) 22
						1) 53.6	2) -6.9	
						2) 49.14	p<0.001	Readmissions
								1) 45
						Mean weight	Mean weight loss	2) 10
						1) 167.58	(kg)	_
						2) 155.66	1) 48.6	Reoperations
							2) 19.8	1) 29
							p<0.001	2) 8
							Hyperlipidemia	1 death after RYGB
							improved (%)	(cardiac failure)
							1) 58.8	
							2) 23.3	
							p<0.05	
							hypertension	
							asthma and OSA	
							improved in both	
							groups but were	
							not statistically	
							different b/w them	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Mingrone 2002 ¹⁰⁴	RCT	1) diet protocol 2) BPD	n=79 1a) 21 women 1b) 12 men 2a) 31 women 2b) 15 men	1 year	Age 30-45 Morbidly obese	34% male Mean weight 1a) 121.6 1b) 147.3 2a) 125.3 2b) 151.8 Mean BMI 1a) 48.4 1b) 47.8 2a) 48.3 2b) 48.0	Weight loss 1a) 7.1 1b) 9.1 2a) 35.1 2b) 52.1 BMI 1a) -4.6 1b) -3 2a) -13.1 2b) -17.6 Between-group differences were not assessed but only BPD groups had a significant changes from baseline	None reported
Müller 2008 ¹⁰⁵	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=104 1) 52 2) 52	3 years	BMI>40 or BMI>35 with significant comorbidities History of obesity >5 years Failed conservative treatment	Mean age 1) 40.1 2) 40.7 13% male Mean BMI 1) 45.7 2) 45.3 Mean weight (kg) 1) 124 2) 122	Mean change in BMI 1) -15.3 2) -12.2 p=0.036 QoL (MA II) 1) 1.35 2) 1.28 p=NS Overall satisfaction with procedure (%) 1) 97 2) 83 p=NS	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Nanni 2012 ¹⁰⁶	Prospective	1) RYGB	n=79	24 months	Met 1991 NIH	Mean age	Mean BMI	Early complications
	cohort	2) BPD	1) 20		guidelines for	1) 42.1	1) 29.2	1) 2
		3) Transoral	2) 30		bariatric surgery	2) 40.2	2) 29.6	2) 0
		endoscopic	3) 29					
		vertical	(results			14% male	Total weight loss	Late complications
		gastroplasty	excluded				(%)	1) 0
			from			Mean BMI	1) 34.7	2) 5
			table)			1) 44.8	2) 37.1	
						2) 47.5		No deaths in any group
							EBMIL (%)	
							1) 81.1	
							2) 79.1	
							Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 45 2) 48	
							p=NR for any	
							outcome	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Nelson	Retro-	1) BPD	n=78,951	≥2 years	Not reported	Mean age	Mean change in	Early reoperation (%)
2012a ¹⁰⁷	spective	2) RYGB	1) 1,545			1) 45.4	BMI	1) 1.5
	cohort		2) 77,406			2) 45.3	1) -36	2) 3.3
							2) -43	p<0.001
						% male	p<0.05	
						1) 21.6		Late reoperation (%)
						2) 26	>50 BMI subgroup	1) 1.3
							Mean %EWL	2) 1.1
						Mean BMI	1) 79	p=NS
						1) 52	2) 67	
						2) 48	p<0.01	Any reoperation (%)
								1) 11.5
							Comorbidity	2) 7.2
							control of T2DM,	p<0.001
							hypertension, and	
							sleep apnea were	Similar rates for >50
							all superior with	BMI.
							the DS (all p<0.05)	
								Overall Mortality (%)
								1) 1.2
								2) 0.3
								p<0.001
								Mortality for >50 BMI
								(%)
								1) 0.4
								2) 1.8
								p<0.001
Author/Year Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms	
-----------------------------	------------------------------	--------------------------	-------------------------------------	---	--	--	--	
Nguyen 2009 ¹⁰⁸	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=197 1) 111 2) 86	4.2 years	BMI 40-60 or 35 with comorbidities Age 18-60	Mean age 1) 41.4 2) 45.8 23% male Mean BMI 1) 47.5 2) 45.5	Mean %EWL 1) 68.4 2) 45.5 p<0.05 Mean change in BMI 1) -17 2) -15 p<0.05 Mean %EWL ≥ 50 vs. BMI <50 (RYGB) 61.0% vs. $70.9%$, p<0.05 Mean %EWL ≥ 50 vs. BMI <50 (LAGB) 34.3 vs. 49.7 , p<0.05 QoL after 1 year (SF-36) scores for all 8 health domains comparable with that of US norms and were not significantly different between groups	Early complications 1) 17 (15.3%) 2) 4 (4.7%) p=0.02 Late complications 1) 15 (13.5%) 2) 0 (0%) p<0.01 Reoperations 1) 14 2) 11 p=NS (LAGB had more late reoperations than RYGB but the difference was not significant) 30- and 90-day and mortality was zero for both groups 1 year mortality 1) 1 (0.9%) (unrelated to surgery) 2) 0 (0.0%)	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Nocca 2011 ¹⁰⁹	Retro- spective cohort	1) VSG 2) RYGB	n=68 1) 35 2) 33	1 year	>35 BMI All patients undergoing T2DM therapy	Mean age 1) 46.5 2) 47.5 Mean weight (kg) 1) 139.4 2) 131.40 Mean duration T2DM (years) 1) 6.7 2) 7.8 Mean HbA1c 1) 7.9 2) 8.2	Mean %EWL 1) 60.12 2) 56.35 Mean change in BMI (%) 1) -29.80 2) -29.75 T2DM remission 1) 35/35 (100%) 2) 31/33 (91.4%) p=NS for all outcomes	Perioperative morbidity 1) 1 (2.9%) 2) 2 (5.8%) No deaths in either group
Norstrand 2012 ¹¹⁰	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) lifestyle intervention	n=90 1) 49 2) 41	12 months	Participant in Clinical trial NCT00273104 who underwent 24-hour ambulatory monitoring of BP; ≥10 daytime or ≥5 nighttime recordings (See Hofso 2010)	Mean age 1) 44.4 2) 47.5 32% male Mean BMI 1) 45.5 2) 42.3 Nocturnal HTN 1) 42 (86%) 2) 29 (71%) Daytime HTN 1) 37 (76%) 2) 27 (66%)	Mean weight loss (kg) 1) -41 ($p \le 0.001$) 2) -10 ($p \le 0.001$) Nocturnal hypertension change 1) -28 (67%) ($p \le 0.001$) 2) -2 (7%) ($p = NS$) Daytime hypertension change 1) -24 (65%) ($p \le 0.001$) 2) -3 (11%) ($p = NS$)	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Olsen 2012 ¹¹¹	RCT	1) RYGB 2) BPD	n=30 1) 16 2) 14	24 months	BMI 50-60 Age 20-50 years	Mean age 1) 34.1 2) 36.3 33% male Mean BMI 1) 55.1 2) 56.34 Mean weight (kg) 1) 160.1 2) 164.1	Mean weight (kg) 1) 110.1 2) 88.6 p=0.003 Mean BMI 1) 37.7 2) 30.4 p<0.001	None reported
Ortega 2012 ¹¹²	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=407 1) 307 2) 100	12.5 months	BMI >40 or 35- 40 with major obesity- associated comorbidities 2 or more physician- supervised weight loss attempts within preceding 3 years No previous weight loss surgery	Mean age 1) 43 2) 46 24% male Mean BMI 1) 46 2) 53 Mean weight (kg) 1) 122 2) 138	Mean %EWL 1) 76 2) 68 p<0.0001	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Padwal 2014 ¹¹³	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) intensive medical management 3) wait-listed controls	n=500 1) 150 2) 200 3) 150	2 years Subjects progressed from wait list to IMT to surgery and didn't remain in original study groups for duration of study	BM ≥40 or ≥35 with at least 1 comorbidity	Mean age 1) 43.5 2) 43.9 3) 43.6 12% male Mean BMI 1) 46.2 2) 48 3) 49.4 Mean weight (kg) 1) 128 2) 132 3) 134 Mean HbA1c (%) 1) 5.9 2) 6.3 3) 6.2	Mean weight loss (kg) 1) -22.0 2) -4.1 3) -1.5 p<0.0001 Mean weight loss (%) 1) -16.3 2) -2.8 3) -0.9 p<0.0001 Mean change in BMI 1) -7.8 2) -1.5 3) -0.6 p<0.0001	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Paluszkiewics 2012 ¹¹⁴	RCT	1) VSG 2) RYGB (open)	n=72 1) 36 2) 36	12 months	BMI ≥40 or ≥35 with at least 1 comorbidity Age 18-60 years	Mean age 1) 43.9 2) 44.9 32% male Mean BMI 1) 46.1 2) 48.6 Mean weight (kg) 1) 130.7 2) 137.7	Mean %EWL 1) 67.6 2) 64.2 Mean change in BMI 1) 32.8 2) 33.8 Mean weight (kg) 1) 91.7 2) 96.8 Hypertension remission 1) 17 (47.2%) 2) 19 (52.7%) T2DM remission 1) 6 (16.7%) 2) 5 (13.9%) Dyslipidemia remission 1) 26 (72.2%) 2) 18 (50.0%) p=NS for all comparisons	Major/minor complications (%) 1) 8.3/10.1 2) 0.0/16.6 p=NS for both Reoperations 1) 0 (0.0%) 2) 1 (5.5%) p=NS No deaths in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Parikh 2005 ¹¹⁵	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB 3) BPD	n=332 1) 192 2) 97 3) 43	3 years	BMI >50 undergoing a primary bariatric operation	Mean age 1) 43 2) 42 3) 41 21% male Mean BMI 1) 55.3 2) 54.8 3) 57	Mean %EWL 1) 49.5 (b) 2) 56.8 3) 77.4 (a) a: p<0.05 compared to (1); b: p<0.05 compared to (2); c: p<0.05 compared to (3)	Conversion to open (%) 1) 0.5 2) 2.1 3) 7.0 Perioperative complications (%) 1) 4.7 2) 11.3 3) 16.3 p=0.02 Reoperations 1) 2 2) 3 3) 2 No deaths in any group
Parikh 2006 ¹¹⁶	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB 3) BPD	n=780 1) 480 2) 235 3) 65	1) 12.5 months 2) 12.4 months 3) 14.5 months	BMI >40 or >35 with at least 1 comorbidity Failed prior medical therapy to lose weight	Mean age 1) 41.8 2) 41.2 3) 41.1 20% male Mean BMI 1) 46.1 2) 47.5 3) 52.6	Only complications reported.	Reoperations 1) 0 2) 5 (2 revision) 3) 3 Complications 1) 42 (8.8%) 2) 54, (23.0%) 3) 16 (24.6%) 1 vs. 2 and 3, p<0.001 Mortality 1) 0 2) 1 3) 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Peterli 2012 ¹¹⁷	RCT	1) RYGB	n= 23	12 months	Non-diabetic	Mean age	Mean weight (kg)	None reported
		2) VSG	1) 12		patients from	41.4	1) 87.3	
			2) 11		study center (subgroup of	35.2	2) 86.3	
					ongoing "Swiss	26% male	Mean BMI	
					Multicenter		1) 31.1	
					Bypass or Sleeve Study")	Mean weight (kg) 1) 133.3	2) 32.0	
						2) 120.2	Mean %EBMIL	
							1) 77.0	
						Mean BMI	2) 65.6	
						1) 47.6		
						2) 44.7	p=NS for all	
							outcomes	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Peterli 2013 ¹¹⁸	RCT	1) VSG 2) RYGB	n=217 1) 107 2) 110	2 years	Fulfilled criteria for bariatric surgery in Switzerland (BMI >40 or >35 with at least 1 comorbidity Age 18-65 years Failure of conservative treatment in prior two years	Mean age 1) 43.0 2) 42.1 28% male Mean BMI 1) 43.6 2) 44.2 Female (n) 1) 77 2) 79	Mean %EBMIL 1) 63.3 2) 72.8 p=NR Mean BMI 1) ~33 2) ~32 <i>Resolution or</i> <i>improvement of</i> <i>comorbidities (%)</i> Hypertension 1) 32/94 2) 32/89 Dyslipidemia 1) 45/95 2) 25/84 T2DM 1) 66/95 2) 56/99 OSA 1) 32/99 2) 51/95 Back/joint pain 1) 16/87 2) 21/88 Depression 1) 5/88 2) 16/94	Reoperations 1) 5/110 (4.5%) 2) 1/107 (.9%) p=NS Conversion rate (%) 1) 0.9 2) 0.9 Perioperative morbidity 1) 9 (8.4%) 2) 19 (17.2%) p=NS Mortality 1) 0 2) 1

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Pohle-Krauza	Retro-	1) RYGB	n=294	42 months	Not reported	Mean age	Mean %EWL	None reported
2011 ¹¹⁹	spective	2) LAGB	1) 215			1) 44.7	1) 46	
	cohort		2) 79			2) 48.1	2) 65	
							p=NS	
						17% male		
							Mean BMI	
						Mean BMI	1) 32.1	
						1) 48.7	2) 35.7	
						2) 45.3	p=NS	
Prachand	Retro-	1) BPD	n=350	36 months	BMI >50	Mean age	Mean BMI	60-day reoperation
2006 ¹²⁰	spective	2) RYGB	1) 198			1) 40.4	1) 33.6	rate (%)
	cohort		2) 152			2) 40.5	2) 37.2	1) 4.0
							p=0.05	2) 5.3
						17% male		p=NS
							Mean %EWL	
						Mean weight (lb)	1) 68.9	Other complications
						1) 368.2	2) 54.9	not reported
						2) 346.3	p<0.05	
								30 day mortality
						Mean BMI	Mean weight loss	1) 1
						1) 58.8	(lb)	2) 0
						2) 56.4	1) 173.5	
							2) 118.0	
							p<0.01	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Puzziferri 2008 ¹²¹	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=1733 1) 1102 2) 631	24 months	1991 NIH criteria Age 18-65 years	Mean age 1) 43.1 2) 44.8 15% male Mean BMI 1) 51.1 2) 48.6 Mean excess weight (lb) 1) 168.0 2) 152.7	Mean %EWL 1) 75.06 2) 43.53 p<0.001	None reported
Romy 2012 ¹²²	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=442 1) 221 2) 221	6 years	BMI >40 and <50 or >35 with at least 1 severe comorbidity Failed conservative therapy Complete evaluation by a multidisciplinary team Underwent prior primary bariatric procedure	Groups were matched according to sex ratio, age, baseline BMI, and follow-up rates at 6 years (values not reported)	Maximal Mean %EWL 1) 64.8 2) 78.5 Mean nadir BMI 1) 29.4 2) 26.7 Maximal weight loss (months) 1) 36 2) 18 Mean %EWL 1) 18.5 2) 27.1	Major complications 1) 47 (21.3) 2) 0 (0.0%) p<0.001 Overall complications 1) 92 (41.6%) 2) 42 (19.0%) p<0.001 Reoperations 1) 59 (26.7%) 2) 28 (12.7%) p<0.001 Total patients with reversal 1) 47 (21.3%) 2) 0 (0.0%) p<0.001 No deaths reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Schouten 2010 ¹²³	RCT	1) DJBL 2) VLCD	n=41 1) 30 (26 successful ly implanted) 2) 11	12 weeks	Age 18-55; BMI 40-60 kg/m2 or >35 with comorbidities; on waiting list for RYGB	Mean age 1) 40.9 2) 41.2 Male:Female 1) 8:22 2) 2:9 Mean BMI 1) 48.9 2) 49.2	%EWL at 12 weeks 1) 19.0 2) 6.9 p=0.00 Mean BMI at 12 weeks 1) 43.4 2) 47.3 p=0.23 Continuous lowering of diabetes medication (n) 1) 5 2) NR p=NR	Overall adverse events (%) 1) 100 2) 27.3 Early explant (%) 1) 15.4 2) N/A
Scopinaro 2011 ¹²⁴	Prospective cohort	1) BPD 2) medical management of T2DM	n=68 1) 30 2) 38	12 months	T2DM diagnosis for at least 3 years Age 35-70 years BMI 25-34.9 HbA1c ≥7.5%	Mean age 1) 56.4 2) 59 71% male Mean BMI 1) 30.6 2) 30.2 Mean HbA1c (%) 1) 9.3 2) 8.3	Mean BMI 1) 25.3 (p<0.05) 2) 30.2 (p=NS) Resolution of T2DM 1) 9 (30%) 2) NR Improvement of T2DM (%) 1) 17 2) NR Control of T2DM (n %) 1) 25, 83 2) NR	Conversions 1) 0 2) N/A Early postoperative complications 1) 5 2) N/A Major late postoperative complications 1) 0 2) N/A No deaths in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Skroubis 2011 ¹²⁵	Retro- spective cohort	1) VSG 2) RYGB 3) BPD 4) VBG 5) RYGB (open) 6) Reoperation	n=1162 1) 151 2) 137 3) 699 4) 35 5) 90 6) 50 Results from 4, 5, & 6 not represent- ed here	62.7 months	Not reported	Mean age 1) 32.8 2) 36.7 3) 37.3 Mean BMI 1) 43.3 2) 46.4 3) 57.5 Mean weight (kg) 1) 124.1 2) 124.4 3) 159 T2DM (%) 1) 5.8 2) 13.3 3) 19.5 Dyslipidemia (%) 1) 26 2) 28.9 3) 30 Hypertension (%) 1) 4.9 2) 13.3 3) 29.2	Mean %EWL 1) 52.7 (in year 4) 2) 60.2 3) 70.4 T2DM (%) 1) 7.1 (in year 4) 2) 0 3) 1.5 Dyslipidemia (%) 1) 14.3 (in year 4) 2) 7.5 3) 3 Hypertension (%) 1) 14.3 (in year 4) 2) 10 3) 9.1	Early complications 1) 11 (7.28%) 2) 10 (7.3%) 3) 57, 8.15% Early reoperations 1) 8 (5.3%) 2) 7 (5.11%) 3) 27 (3.86%) Late complications 1) 2 (1.32%) 2) 9 (6.57%) 3) 249 (35.62%) Late reoperations 1) 2 (1.3%) 2) 9 (6.57%) 3) 224 (32.05%) Mortality 1) 0 2) 1 3) 20
Spaniolas 2014 ¹²⁶	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=1005 1) 850 2) 155	30 days	Aged ≥65	31% male Mean BMI 44	Not reported	No differences for 30- day mortality, serious morbidity, or overall morbidity (even after controlling for preoperative diabetes)

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Strain 2009 ¹²⁷	Prospective	1) RYGB	n=221	1) 19.1 months	1991 NIH criteria	Mean age	Mean BMI	None reported
	cohort	2) BPD	1) 101	2) 27.5 months		1) 44.3	1) 32.5	
		3) LAGB	2) 49	3) 21.4 months		2) 43.9	2) 27.8	
		4) VSG	3) 41	4) 16.7 months		3) 39.8	3) 39.5	
			4) 30			4) 41.9	4) 37.2	
							p<0.001	
						31% male		
							Mean %EWL	
						Mean BMI	1) 70	
						1) 46.7	2) 84	
						2) 53.2	3) 38	
						3) 44.3	4) 49	
						4) 61.4	p<0.0001	
Takihata	Prospective	1) Intensive	n=16	6 months	BMI>35 kg/m2	Mean age	Mean BMI	Nausea/vomiting (n)
2014 ¹²⁸	comparativ	lifestyle	1) 8			1) 47.4	1) 42.2	1) NR
	e cohort	modification	2) 8			2) 40.9	2) 41.0	2) 4
		2) IGB					p=0.401	
						Male/female (n)		
						1) 2/6	%EWL	
						2) 5/3	1) 25.4	
							2) 54.2	
						Mean BMI	p=0.248	
						1) 48.5		
						2) 45.2		

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Tayyem 2011 ¹²⁹	Design Prospective comparativ e cohort	/Intervention 1) IGB 2) LAGB	Patients n=47 1) 17 2) 30	Follow-up 14 months	Adults who fulfilled NICE guidelines for bariatric surgery (BMI>=40 or>=35 with comorbidities; failed weight loss through non-surgical measures)	Characteristics Mean age 1) 40.9 2) 39.9 %female 1) 65 2) 80 Mean BMI 1) 61.4 2) 50.9	%EWL 1) 26.2 2) 44.0 p=0.004 Decrease in BMI 1) 9.4 2) 11.2 p=0.012 cure or improvement (%) T2DM 1) 67 2) 80 HTN 1) 83	Mortality: 0 Nausea/vomiting (n) 1) 4 2) 0
							2) 81 p=0.92 Hyperlipidemia 1) 67 2) 82 p=0.61 OSA 1) 50 2) 100 Similar % improvement in QOL across all domains of SF-36 for both groups	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
te Riele 2008 ¹³⁰	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=106 1) 53 2) 53	1) 23 months 2) 18 months	1991 NIH criteria	Median age 1) 40.3 2) 38.0 17% male Median BMI 1) 50.9 2) 51.3 Median weight (kg) 1) 147.0 2) 151.0	Median Mean %EWL 1) 43.4 2) 59.9 p<0.001 Median BMI 1) 38.3 2) 34.0 p=NR	Minor complications 1) 5 2) 3 Severe complications 1) 1 2) 9 Reoperations 1) 2 2) 10 No deaths in either group
Viana 2013 ¹³¹	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=48 1) 24 2) 24	12 months	21- 59 years old; BMI between 40 and 45 ; history of multiple unsuccessful attempts to reduce weight; female	Mean age 1) 33.8 2) 37.2 Mean weight (kg) 1) 115.1 2) 106. 8 Mean BMI 1) 42.0 2) 42.7	Mean weight (kg) 1) 74.3 2) 74.6 Mean BMI 1) 27.2 2) 69.6 p=NS for all outcomes	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Vidal 2013 ¹³²	Retro-	1) RYGB	n=249	24 months	1991 NIH criteria	Mean age	Mean %EWL	Reoperations
	spective	2) VSG	1) 135		Age 18-60 years	1) 44.5	1) 66	1) 6
	cohort		2) 114			2) 44.8	2) 65	2) 4
						17% male	p=NS	p<0.001
							Mean BMI	Conversions to open
						Mean BMI	1) 30.8	1) 3
						1) 45.4	2) 29.2	2) 2
						2) 44.8	p=NS	,
								No deaths in either
						Major comorbidities	Resolution/	group
						(n, %)	improvement of	
							comorbidities 1	
						Dyslipidemia	year after surgery	
						1) 79, 58.5	(%)	
						2. 57, 50		
							Hypertension	
						Hypertension	1) 72	
						1) 50, 37	2) 71	
						2) 38, 33.3		
							T2DM	
						Sleep apnea	1) 92	
						1) 27, 20	2) 95	
						2) 42, 36.8		
							Dyslipidemia	
						T2DM	1) 68	
						1) 39, 28.8	2) 58	
						2) 24, 21		
							OSA	
							1) 95	
							2) 90	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Vilarrasa 2013 ¹³³	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=66 1) 33 2) 33	12 months	Not reported	Mean age 1) 49.7 2) 45.8	Mean BMI 1) 30.94 2) 31.46	None reported
						0% male Mean BMI	Mean %EWL 1) 67.51 2) 67.01	
						1) 46.87 2) 49.06	p=NS for all between-group comparisons	
Vix 2013 ¹³⁴	RCT	1) VSG 2) RYGB	n=100 1) 55 2) 45	12 months	BMI ≥40 and ≤60 Age 18-60 years	Mean age 1) 35.13 2) 35.23 18% male	Mean %EWL 1) 82.97 2) 80.38 p=NR	None reported
						Mean BMI 1) 45.57 2) 47.09		

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Weber 2004 ¹³⁵	Prospective	1) RYGB	n=206	24 months	BM I>40 or >35	Mean age	Mean BMI	Conversion to open
	cohort	2) LAGB	1) 103		with	1) 40.1	1) 31.9	1) 1
			2) 103		comorbidities	2) 39.6	2) 36.8	2) 0
					History of		p<0.02	
					obesity >5 years	18% male		Early reoperations
					Failed		Mean %EWL	1) 11
					conservative	Mean BMI	1) 54	2) 1
					treatment >2	1) 47.8	2) 42	p=0.003
					vears	2) 48.0	p<0.05	
					, Age 18-60 years	,	1	Late reoperations
					old	Excess weight (kg)	Hypertension	1) 4
						1) 72.3	1) 12	2) 26
						2) 73.0	2) 18	p<0.001
						,	p=NS	
						Hypertension	F -	Conversion to RYGB
						1) 54	T2DM	1) N/A
						2) 62	1) 6	2) 17
						, -	2) 18	,
						T2DM	p=0.007	No deaths in either
						1) 38	P	group
						2) 45	Dyslipidemia	0
						, -	1) 35	
						Dyslipidemia	2) 64	
						1) 75	p=0.001	
						2) 64	p 0.001	
Zerrweck	Retro-	1) RYGB	n=77	12 months	BMI 50-59.9	Mean BMI	Mean %EWL	Major complications
2014 ¹³⁶	spective	2) VSG	1) 32			1) 52.7	1) 63.9	1) 2
	cohort	_,	2) 45			2) 53.87	2) 43.9	2) 2
			_,			_,	p<0.05	_,_
						72% male	protoc	Reoperations
							Mean BMI	1)0
						Mean age	1) 34.8	2) 1 (trocar-site
						1) 35.4	2) 40.9	bleeding)
						2) 37.5	p<0.05	
						,	F	No deaths in either
								group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patients	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Zuegel 2012 ¹³⁷	Retro-	1) LAGB	n=620	>5	Not reported	Mean age	Mean %EWL	Conversion to RYGB
	spective	2) RYGB	1) 204			1) 36	1) 52.6	1) 37
	cohort		2) 416			2) 37	2) 79.9	2) N/A
							p<0.0001	
						22% male		Mortality
							Mean BAROS	1) 0
						Mean BMI	1) 3.71	2) 2
						1) 46	2) 4.04	
						2) 46	p=0.02	

Table B3. Poor Quality Studies

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Albeladi	Retro-	1) RYGB	n=70	18 months	BMI>40 or	Mean Age	Mean %EWL	Early complications
2013130	spective	2) VSG	1) 36		BMI>35 with	1) 39.7	1) 77.6	1) 9 (25%)
	cohort		2) 34		comorbidities	2) 38.3	2) 57.1 p=0.003	2) 3 (8.8%)
					Age 18-60 years	61% male	,	Late complications
					Supervised and		BMI	1) 13 (36.1%)
					failed diet &	Mean BMI	1) -16.31	2) 7 (20.6%)
					exercise	1) 46.31	2) -10.21	
					program	2) 50.39	p<0.05	Complications were not significantly between
							Resolution of	groups.
							T2DM (%)	- .
							1) 85.7	Reoperations
							2) 100	1) 3
								2) 1
							Resolution of	
							hypertension (%)	No deaths in either
							1) 46.7	group after 1 year
							2) 53.8	
							Differences in	
							resolution of	
							comorbidities	
							were not	
							significant	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Angrisani 2006 ¹³⁹	Retrospecti ve comparativ e cohort	1) IGB then LAGB/RYGB/D S 2) IGB alone	n=168 1) 86 2) 82	12 months	Patients intended for bariatric surgery; Retrospectively allocated to 2 groups based on refusal/acceptan ce of surgery after removal of IGB	Mean age 37.1 % female 59.4 Mean BMI 54.4 kg/m2	Mean BMI after IGB removal 1) 47.6 2) 48.1 p=NS Mean BMI after 1 year 1) 31.8 2) 32.9 p=NS %EWL after IGB removal 1) 35.1 2) 51.7 p=0.001 %EWL after 1 year 1) 69.6 2) 27.1 p=0.001	Not reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Batsis 2009 ¹⁴⁰	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) nutritional counseling program	n=236 1) 148 2) 88	1) 3.8 years 2) 4.0 years	Not reported	Mean Age 1) 46 2) 44 Mean Weight (kg) 1) 132 ± 24 2) 124 ± 20 Mean BMI 1) 47 ± 7 2) 43 ± 6	Mean weight (kg) 1) 90 ± 19 2) 124 ± 29 Mean BMI 1) 32 ± 6 2) 43 ± 9 Mean %EWL 1) 59 2) -2 T2DM resolution 1) 20/50 2) 24/18 Hypertension resolution 1 32/126 2) 3/69 Dyslipidemia resolution 1) 39/107 2) 2/63 QOL (SF-12) Physical 1) 54 2) 47 Mental 1) 49 2) 45 All outcomes p<0.001	Not reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Bekheit 2014 ¹⁴¹	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB 3) Vertical banded gastroplasty (results not reported here)	n=640 1) 39 2) 289 3) 312	6 years	Patients who had surgery ≥5 years before November 2011	Mean BMI 1) 45.3 2) 42.5 Male/Female (n) 106/534 Mean age 38	% EWL (Males/Females) 1) 50.76/44.82 p=0.3 2) -0.59/36.9 p=0.003	Not reported
Biertho 2003 ¹⁴²	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=1261 1) 805 2) 456	12 months	1991 NIH criteria	Mean age 41.4 20.9% male Mean BMI 44.2	Mean %EWL at 12 months 1) 33 2) 67 P=NR Mean %EWL for BMI 30-40 1) 37 2) 75 Mean %EWL for BMI 40-50 1) 32 2) 72 Mean %EWL for BMI 50-60 1) 26 2) 57	Major intraoperative complications 1) 10 2) 9 p=NS Major in-hospital complications 1) 15 2) 14 p=0.02 Conversions 1) 24 2) 9 p=NS Perioperative mortality 1) 0 2) 2 p=NS

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Boza 2010 ¹⁴³	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=153 1) 91 2) 62	5 years	1991 NIH criteria	Mean age 35.5 13.7% male Mean BMI 38.6	Mean %EWL 1) 92.9% 2) 52.1% p<0.001 Resolution or better control of T2DM, insulin resistance, HLD, HTN: 1) 80-100% 2) 25-40% Not statistically tested	Early complications 1) 12 2) 1 p=0.014 Early reoperations 1) 8 2) 1 p=NS Late complications 1) 33 2) 17 p=NR Late reoperations 1) 9 2) 15 p=NS No deaths in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Breznikar 2009 ¹⁴⁴	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) VSG 3) RYGB	n=246 1) 180 2) 30 3) 36	≤3 years	1991 NIH criteria	Mean age 42.0 13.8% male Mean BMI 44.0	Mean %EWL at 1 year 1) 52.4% 2) 57.9% 3) 77.9% Change in BMI at 1 year 1) -7.9 2) -15.1 3) -14.2 Resolution of T2DM, HLD, HTN 1) 59-73% 2) 75-100% 3) 71-75% No statistical testing done	Reoperation 1) 9/120 2) N/A 3) 2/36 No deaths reported
Busetto 2004 ¹⁴⁵	Case- control	1) IGB (followed by LAGB) 2) LAGB alone (historical cohort)	n=86 1) 43 2) 43	1) 1.1 years 2) 4.4 years p<.001	 patients who had LAGB following IBG NIH criteria 	Age 1) 43.3 2) 42.8 61% male Weight (kg) 1) 171.0 2) 163.4 BMI 1) 58.4 2) 56.9	During IBG: BMI reduction: 9.1 Weight loss (kg): 26.4 %EWL: 26.1 %EWL 6 months after surgery: 1) 33.6 2) 26.1 p<.01 No significant differences in %EWL at any time point thereafter	Intraoperative complications (n, %): 1) 0, 0.0 2) 3, 7.0 p=NS Conversion to open (n, %): 1) 0, 0.0 2) 7, 16.3 p<.05

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Chen 2013 ¹⁴⁶	Retro- spective cohort	1) VSG 2) LAGB	n=417 1) 85 2) 332	54 months	No prior urinary calculi	Not reported	Not reported	Rate of urinary calculi per 1,000 P-Y: 1) 5.25 2) 3.40 p-value NR No deaths reported
Christ-Crain 2006 ¹⁴⁷	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB 3) Nonsurgical controls	n=20 1) 5 2) 8 3) 7	2 years	BMI >37	Mean age 44.9 20% male Mean BMI 42.0	Mean BMI at 2 years: 1) 32.9 2) 33.2 3) 41.0 p<0.01	None reported
Christou 2009 ¹⁴⁸	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=1035 1) 886 2) 149	Up to 7 years	1991 NIH Criteria	Mean age 40.4 26.8% male Mean BMI 50.2	BMI at 1 year 1) 32.8 2) 36.2 p=NR Mean %EWL at 1 year 1) 70.4 2) 42.8 p=NR	Overall complications 1) 135 2) 35 p=0.041 Early/late complications 1) 74/61 2) 11/24 p=0.86/ p=0.002 Early/late reoperations 1) 32/27 2) 0/23 p=NR/p=NR 3 RYGB deaths
Conason 2013 ¹⁴⁹	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=155 1) 100 2) 55	24 months	Not reported	Mean age 40 15% male Mean BMI 46	Not reported	Frequency of alcohol use at 24 months vs. baseline 1) 3.08 vs. 1.86, p=0.011 2) 3.08 vs. 3.00, p=NS

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Coupaye 2009 ¹⁵⁰	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=70 1) 49 2) 21	1 year	Not reported	Mean age 40.6 10% male Mean BMI 47.2 Mean Weight 125.8kg	Weight loss (kg) 1) 40 ± 13 2) 16 ± 8 p<0.001 Requiring vitamins 1) 47% 2) 0% p=NR	Symptoms of nutritional deficits 1) 29 (59%) 2) 6 (29%) p=NR Prevalence of deficiencies was decreased 1 year after GBP in patients taking multivitamin supplements. Mortality reported
Cozacov 2014 ¹⁵¹	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=18 1) 8 2) 10	55.2 months	Adolescent patients 11-19 years old; at least 12 months of follow-up data available	Mean age 17.5 18% male Mean BMI 47.2 Mean weight 293.1kg	Mean BMI 1) 28.9 2) 32.5 Comorbidity resolution Diabetes: 1/1 Hypertension: 2/2 Sleep apnea: 3/6 (3 lost to follow- up)	No postoperative complications or mortality

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
De Gordejuela 2011 ¹⁵²	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=90 1) 60 2) 30	Up to 2 years	T2DM present RYGB: BMI 40- 50 or duodenal switch contraindicated VSG: BMI >60, BMI >50 with comorbs, or standalone	Mean age 50 BMI 46.2 for RYGB, 56.2 for VSG	Mean %EWL (%) at 2 years 1) 72.3 2) 72.4 p=NS EBMIL (%) 1) 71.0 2) 74.8 p=NS D/C antidiabetics (%) 1) 91.8 2) 88.9 p=NS	None reported
DiGiorgi 2008 ¹⁵³	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=534 1) 403 2) 131	24 months	Vitamin D levels available No prior obesity surgery	Mean age 41 18.6% male Mean BMI 49	Vitamin D deficient at 25 months (%) 1) 40 2) 33 p=NS Elevated PTH (%) 1) 50 2) 0 p<0.05	None reported
Dittmar 2003 ¹⁵⁴	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) Metformin control	n=35 1) 26 2) 9	17 months	Prior unsuccessful medical management	Mean age 40 31.4% male Mean BMI 48.5	Significant effects (p<0.05) of interaction of surgery and time on body weight, BMI, and fat mass	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Doldi 2002 ¹⁵⁵	Prospective cohort	1) IGB + VLCD 2) VLCD	n=73 1) 31 2) 42 (plus a series of 281 patients undergoin g IGB	18 months	>40 BMI in preparation for surgery to reduce risk OR 35-40 BMI with comorbidity OR BMI<35 in patients with failed attempts at weight loss OR BMI <30 with a psychological indication in a multidisciplinary treatment program	Age 41.6 (for series of 281 patients) % male 23.5 Weight 1) 128 2) 111.7 BMI 1) 43.9 2) 41	Weight loss after 12 months (IGB removal after 4 months) 1) M: -24kg, F: +4.3 2) M -18.7, F- 15.1kg At the 18th month, all patients regained weight and this trend was more evident in group B patients. 1) M: +10kg, F: +1.3kg 2) M: +0.8, F: +3.0 In patients receiving 2 balloons (n=39), weight loss of <7kg was observed after the first balloon in 16.2% of patients and after the second balloon in 46.1%.	Balloon intolerance: 7.7% Gastric ulcer: 0.6% Gastric erosions: 0.3% IGB deflation: 2.4%
Ducarme 2013 ¹⁵⁶	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=94 1) 63 2) 31	2.1 years (interval from surgery to conception)	Women who became pregnant after surgery	Mean Age 30.8 Mean BMI 34.1	Birth weight (g) 1) 3253 2) 2993 p=0.02	Pre-term labor according to timing of pregnancy 1) within 1 year: 13.9% 2) after 1 year: 5.9% p=NS

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Eldar 2012 ¹⁵⁷	Retro- spective cohort	1) VSG 2) RYGB 3) VSG + RYGB (staged approach)	n=49 1) 26 2) 11 3) 12	Mean 17.4 months 1) 14 2) 12.5 3) 29.3	BMI ≥70	Mean age 40.6 41% male Mean BMI 80.7	Mean change in BMI 1) -13.6 2) -21.6 3) -31.4 p=0.02 Mean %EWL 1) 25.4 2) 43.8 3) 54.5 1 vs. 3, p=0.002	Early morbidity 1) 5 (18.5%) 2) 2 (18.2%) 3) 3 (27.3%) p=NS ≥80 BMI vs. <80 BMI 31.8% vs. 11.1%, p=NS Late morbidity 1) 2 (7.4%) 2) 3 (27.5%) 3) 4 (36.45) p=NS ≥80 BMI vs. <80 BMI 22.2% vs. 13.6%, p=NS No early (<30 days) mortality in any group Late mortality 1) 1 (3.7%) 2) 0 (0.0%) 3) 0 (0.0%)

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Facchiano 2012 ¹⁵⁸	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=36 (42) 1) 19 (22) 2) 17 (20) Patients (preg- nancies)	18 months	Women who became pregnant after surgery	Mean age 1) 30.4 2) 31.2 Mean BMI (before surgery) 1) 42.7 2) 50.5 BMI at conception 1) 33.9 2) 32.9 BMI after pregnancy 1) 36.9 2) 35.1 Weight at conception 1) 92.7 2) 87.5 Weight after pregnancy 1) 101.2 2) 93.7	Gestational age (weeks) 1) 38.7 2) 38.9 Birth weight (g, total) 1) 3224.8 2) 2983.5 Pregnancy- induced hypertension 1) 1 2) 0 Preterm labor 1) 3 2) 1 No differences in pregnancy outcomes were statistically significant.	Complications 1) 2 2) 4 No reoperations No deaths reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Fenske 2013 ¹⁵⁹	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB 3) VSG	n=34 1) 10 2) 13 3) 11	12 months	BMI >35 aged 18-65	17% male Mean weight 124.1 Mean BMI 44.6 Systolic BP 142.9 Diastolic BP 87.1	Mean %EWL 1) 48.7 2) 45.0 3) 47.8 p=NS Mean change in systolic BP 1) -18.4 2) -16 3) -21.7 p=NS Mean change in diastolic BP 1) -13.8 2) -10.9 3) -13.4 p=NS	None reported
Fredheim 2013 ¹⁶⁰	Prospective cohort	1) intensive lifestyle intervention (ILI) 2) RYGB	n=133 1) 74 2) 59	1 year	BMI>40 or BMI>35 with significant comorbidities	Mean age 1) 47.4 2) 42.7 30 % male Mean BMI 1) 43 2) 46.8 Mean weight 1) 124 2) 138	Mean change in BMI 1) -4.2 2) -14 p<0.001 Weight loss 1) -12.1 2) -42.0 p<0.001 Remission of OSA 1) 16/40 (40%) 2) 29/44 (66%) p=0.028	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Fridman	Retro-	1) RYGB	n=2199	17 months	None reported	Mean age	Mean change in	Reoperations
2013 ¹⁶¹	spective	2) VSG	1) 1327			1) 46.3	BMI	1) 88 (0 conversions)
	cohort	3) LAGB	2) 619			2) 46.1	1) -14.8	2) 11 (5 conversions)
			3) 253			3) 48.1	2) -11.2	3) 26 (10 conversions)
							3) -5.6	
						47% male	1 vs. 2 OR 1 & 2 vs.	
						Mean BMI	5, p (0.01	
						1) 48.1		
						2) 44.2		
						3) 42.2		
Friedrich	Prospective	1) VSG	n=54	12 months	Aged 18-65	Mean Age	Mean %EWL	None reported
2013 ¹⁶²	cohort	2) multi-	1) 27		BMI >30	1) 45.4	1) 64.5%	
		disciplinary	2) 27			2) 45.3	2) 38.3%	
		intervention					p<0.001	
		program (MIP)				Mean weight (kg)		
						1) 149.2	Mean weight loss	
						2) 132.9	(kg)	
							1) 48.8	
						26% male	2) 21.7	
							p=NS	
						Mean BMI		
						1) 51.7	BMI	
						2) 44.8	1) -16.6	
							2) -7.2	
						Hypertension 1) 67%	p=NS	
						2) 63%	Prevalence HTN	
							1) 38%	
						T2DM	2) 44%	
						1) 41%	p=NS	
						2) 7%		
							Prevalence T2DM	
							1) 4%	
							2) 7%	
							p=NS	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Gan 2007 ¹⁶³	Prospective cohort	1) LAGB 2) VSG 3) RYGB	n=72 1) 9 2) 11 3) 20	13 months	HbA1c >6%	Mean BMI 1) 45.6 2) 52.8 3) 43.5 43% male Mean HbA1c 1) 8.9 2) 8.0 3) 8.0	% patients not taking T2DM medications 1) 17% 2) 33% 3) 69% 2 & 3 vs. 1, p<0.0001 Mean %EWL 1) 34.2 2) 35.9 3) 66.2 1 vs. 2, p=NS 3 vs. 1 & 2, p<0.001	Major complications 1) 0 2) 1 3) 2 No deaths in any group
Gersin 2010 ¹⁶⁴	RCT	1) DJBL 2) sham procedure	n=47 1) 21 2) 26	12 weeks	Age 18-55 BMI 40-60 OR <35 with 1 or more comorbidities Patients failing on nonsurgical weight loss	Age 44 19% male BMI 46 Weight 131	Results presented for completers %EWL 1) 11.9 2) 2.7 p<.001 At least 10% %EWL 1) 62 2) 17 p=.01 % weight loss 1) 5.8 2) 1.5 p=.002	Early removal of DJBL: 7 (3 due to GI bleeding, 2/3 were SAEs)

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Gothberg 2014 ¹⁶⁵	Prospective cohort	1) adolescent RYGB 2) conventional care 3) adult RYGB	n=243 1) 81 2) 81 3) 81	2 years	Aged 13-18 years BMI >40 or >35 with comorbidities	Mean age 1) 15.6 2) 15.8 3) 39.7 35% male Mean BMI 1) 45.5 2) 42.0 3) 42	Mean weight loss (%) 1) 32 2) -3 3) 31 p=NR No significant differences in weight loss between genders.	Surgical complications were comparable to the adult group, but only reported in detail for adolescents. No postoperative mortality
Gracia-Solanas 2011 ¹⁶⁶	Retro- spective cohort	1) BPD- S (Scopinaro) 2) BPD - M (modified) 3) RYGB	n=437 1) 150 2) 115 3) 152	7 years	Not reported	Mean age 1) 39.9 2) 44.8 3) 42.2 24% male Mean BMI 1) 52.7 2) 52.8 3) 44.7	Mean BMI @ 5 years 1) 26.9 2) 28.9 3) 31.5 Mean %EWL @ 5 years 1) 85% 2) 76% 3) 68% Hypertension resolution @ midpoint 1&2) 87% 3) 70% Dyslipidemia resolution @ midpoint 1&2) 100% 3) 70%	Mortality (<30 days) 1&2) 3/265 (1.1%) 3) 1/152 (0.7%) Early complications (<30 days) 1&2) 75/265 (28.3%) 3) 45/152 (29.6%) p=NS Iron deficiency (>30 days) 1) 62% 2) 40% 3) 32.9% p=0.05 Reoperations 1) 8 (3.2%) 2) 0 (0.0%) 3) 1 (0.8%)

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Hofso 2010 ¹⁶⁷	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) intensive lifestyle intervention (ILI)	n=145 1) 80 2) 66	1 year	Aged 19-66 years Patients qualifying for either surgery or lifestyle intervention	Mean age 1) 42.8 2) 47 33% male Mean weight 1) 137 2) 125 Mean BMI 1) 46.7 2) 43.3	Mean weight loss (%) 1) 30% 2) 8% Mean %EWL 1) 67% 2) 23% Mean change in BMI 1) -14 2) -3.7 All weight measures, p<0.001. T2DM remission 1) 11/14 (78.6%) 2) 0/6 (0%) p=0.027 Hypertension remission 1) 20/40 (50%) 2) 9/41 (22%) p=0.016 Metabolic syndrome 1) 76% to 17% 2) -70% to 50%	No mortality 1 early complication 4 late complications 2 reoperations Gastrointestinal symptoms 1) 33/69 (48%) 2) 4/59 (7%) p<0.001
Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
--------------------------------	------------------------------	-----------------------------------	---------------------------	--------------------------------------	---	--	---	---------------
Jimenez 2012 ¹⁶⁸	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=153 1) 98 3) 55	35.4 months	T2DM ≥6 months Patients were considered for surgery based on current guidelines	Mean age 50.6 38% male Mean BMI 46.5 Mean T2DM duration (years) 5.9 HbA1c 7.5% Mean waist circumference 133.5	No T2DM resolution (%) 1) 31.4 2) 20.4 p=NS T2DM reoccurrence (%) 1) 10.31 2) 16.2 p=NS Mean %EWL 1) 65.4 2) 61.2 p=NS	None reported
Jimenez 2015 ¹⁶⁹	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=232 1) 121 2) 111	48.7 months	T2DM for at least 6 months prior to surgery; follow-up for at least 2 years	Mean age 51.5 36% male Mean BMI 46 Mean HbA1c 6.7%	Mean %EWL 1) 76.4 2) 70.2 p=0.017 Weight regain (%) 1) 16.5 2) 10.5 p=NS T2DM remission (%) 1) 80.2 2) 65.8 p=0.013 T2DM relapse (%) 1) 23.7 2) 23.3 p=NS	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Johnson 2013 ¹⁷⁰	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) lifestyle intervention	n=126 1) 72 2) 54	1 year	BMI ≥40 or BMI ≥35 w/comorbidities	Mean age 1) 42.6 2) 46.8 30% male Mean weight 1) 136 2) 123 Mean BMI 1) 46.2 2) 42.6	Mean weight loss (%) 1) 30 2) 8 Fiber intake below recommendation (%) 1) 68% 2) 30% % with <30% intake from fat 1) 10 to 18% 2) 9 to 44% p=0.002	None reported
Karamanakos 2008 ¹⁷¹	RCT	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=32 1) 16 2) 16	12 months	Not reported	Mean Age 33.8 16% male Mean Weight 123.7 Mean BMI 45.9 Mean Glucose 97	Mean %EWL (%) 1) 60.5 2) 69.7 p=0.05 Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 15.1 2) 16.1 p=NS Mean change in glucose (mg/dL) 1) -9 2) -12 p=NS	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Keidar 2013 ¹⁷²	RCT	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=37 1) 19 2) 18	12 months	BMI ≥35 w/T2DM Age 18-65	Mean Age 49.6 55% male Mean BMI 42.2 Mean Weight 167.1kg Mean HbA1c 8%	HbA1c (%) 1) -1.48 2) -2.37 p=0.034 from baseline Mean BMI change 1) -10.6 2) -12.1 p=NS Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 25.9 2) 28.4 p=NS	No deaths in either group
Khoo 2014 ¹⁷³	Prospective cohort	1) T2DM support and education (DSE) 2) RYGB	n=61 1) 31 2) 30	12 months	T2DM diagnosis BMI ≥40 or BMI ≥35 w/comorbidities 18-60 years	Mean age 1) 47.4 2) 49.6 33% male Mean weight 1) 114.3 2) 120.1 Mean BMI 1) 40.1 2) 43.4 Mean HbA1c (%) 1) 7.51 2) 7.53 Mean waist circumference 1) 122.7 2) 130.3	Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 0.6 2) 33.6 BMI 1) 0.3 2) -12.2 Waist circumference 1) -1.0 2) -26.6 HbA1c 1) 0.4 2) -1.2 All p<0.001	No postoperative complications in surgery group Mortality not reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Korner 2009 ¹⁷⁴	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=43 1) 15 2) 28	1 year	>21 years old scheduled to undergo either surgery	Mean age 1) 47.1 2) 45.0 19% male Mean weight (kg) 1) 112 2) 128 BMI 1) 41 2) 48	Mean weight loss (%) 1) 15 2) 30 p<0.001 Ghrelin levels were not statistically difference b/w groups. Glucose (mg per 100 ml) 1) -7 2) -13 p<0.05	None reported
Lee 2010 ¹⁷⁵	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=76 1) 25 2) 51	3 years	Met the 2005 APBVSG bariatric surgery criteria for Asian morbidly obese patients	Mean age 1) 29 2) 33 25% male Mean BMI 1) 41 2) 40	Mean %EWL (%) 1) 85.8 2) 63.3 p<0.05	Overall morbidity 1) 8 2) 6 Reoperations 1) 4 2) 3 Overall mortality: 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Lee 2012a ¹⁷⁶	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=55 1) 33 2) 23	2 years	15-19 years 1991 NIH criteria	Mean age (year) 1) 18.6 2) 17.2 Male/Female (n) 1) 9/23 2) 6/17 Mean BMI (kg/m2) 1) 50.6 2) 47.0	Mean %EWL (%) 1) 83.4 2) 29.7 p<0.01 Resolution of T2DM 1) 3/3 2) 0/0 p=NR Resolution of dyslipidemia 1) 2/2 2) 1/2 p=NR	Revisions 1) 0 2) 2
Lee 2012b ¹⁷⁷	RCT	1) IGB 2) Sham Both groups also received step 1 American Heart Association diet plus exercise	n=18 1) 8 2) 10	6 months	Age 21-65; histologic evidence of NASH; BMI <u>></u> 27; failed at least 6 months of medical therapy for weight loss	Median age 1) 43 2) 47 % male 1) 37.5 2) 80.0 Median BMI 1) 30.3 2) 32.4	Mean BMI 1) 28.7 (p=0.12) 2) 31.6 (p=0.022) Change in median BMI 1) -1.52 2) -0.8 p=0.0008 NAFD activity score 1) 2 2) 4 p=0.03	NR

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Leeman 2013 ¹⁷⁸	Prospective comparativ e cohort	1) IGB 2) Weight management program After 6 months, members of both groups received LAGB, VSG, or RYGB	n=28 1) 15 2) 13	2 years	eligible for bariatric surgery; BMI>55 or weight>200 kg; part of preoperative structured weight management program	Median age 1) 48 2) 40 % female 1) 67 2) 69	Mean %EWL at 2 years 1) 33.6 2) 52.5 p=0.11 Median %EWL at 6 months 1) 17.1 2) 16.1 p=0.295	Early balloon removal (n) 1) 3 2) N/A
Lennerz 2014 ¹⁷⁹	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB 3) VSG	n=345 (167 with follow-up) 1) 66 2) 50 3) 37	544 days	Aged 8-21	Mean age 19.2 33% male Mean BMI 47.4	Mean BMI reduction (%) 1) 20.0 2) 32.9 3) 29.4 1 vs. 2 & 3, p<0.001 Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 28 2) 50 3) 46 1 vs. 2 & 3, p<0.001	Specific postoperative complications (%) 1) 0.8 2) 1.7 3) 7.8 3 vs. 1 & 2, p=0.019 No differences for intraoperative or general complications No deaths in any group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Leslie 2012 ¹⁸⁰	Retro-	1) RYGB	n=267	2 years	Complete	Mean age	Mean %EWL	Adverse events/Re-
	spective	2) routine	1) 152		follow-up at 2	1) 51.4	1) 61.6	admissions/ED visits
	cohort	medical	2) 115		annual visits	2) 53.1	2) -1.6	(related to surgery)
		management			BMI ≥35 and		p<0.01	21/82/36
		(RMM)			T2DM	37% male		
							Mean weight loss	No mortality within 90
						Mean BMI	(%)	days
						1) 47.4	1) 31.4	
						2) 40.7	2) +.7	
							p<0.01	
						LDL		
						1) 93.1	Mean change in	
						2) 97.4	LDL (mm/dl)	
							1) -10.2 (p<0.05)	
						SBP	2) -6.9 (p=NS)	
						1) 138		
						2) 132	Mean change in	
							SBP	
							1) -14.1 (p<0.01)	
							2) -2.5 (p=NS)	
Li 2009 ¹⁸¹	Retro-	1) RYGB	n=548	1) 27 months	Not reported	Mean age	Weight loss >24%	Incidence of
	spective	2) VSG	1) 496	2) 17 months		1) 42.9	1) 79.4	complicated gallstones
	cohort		2) 52			2) 40.5	2) 13	(%)
							p=NS	1) 1.8
						25% male		2) 1.9
								p=NS
						Mean BMI		
						1) 48.5		Symptomatic gallstones
						2) 43.0		(%)
								1) 8.7
								2) 3.8
								p=NS

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Mathus- Vliegen 2014 ¹⁸²	RCT	1) IGB then IGB 2) Sham then IGB All patients who achieved weight loss goal after initial 3 months proceeded with study	n=40 1) 19 2) 21	26 weeks	Age >=18; 3- month stable BMI of at least 32; failure to lose weight within a supervised WL program; absence of gastrointestinal lesions; large hiatal hernia and previous bariatric surgery	Mean age 41.5 % female 90 Mean BMI 43.1	Mean weight change (%) 1) -14.2 2) -15.8 p=NR Mean BMI change 1) -6.1 2) -6.5 p=NR	NR
Mathus- Vliegen 2002 ¹⁸³	RCT	1) IGB then IGB 2) Sham then IGB All patients who achieved weight loss goal after initial 3 months proceeded with study	n=43 1) 23 2) 20	2 years	At least age 18 and BMI of at least 32	Age 41.1 16% male Weight 1) 125.9 2) 124.0 BMI 1) 43.0 2) 43.6	Weight after 13 weeks 1) 111.0 2) 114.7 p=NS BMI after 13 weeks 1) 38.4 2) 39.8 p=NS 52-week % WL 1) 21.7 (95% CI, 16.24-27.16) 2) 19.61 (95% CI, 6.21-22.94) 65-week % WL 1) 17.5 (95% CI, 11.63-23.43) 2) 17.5 (95% CI, 13.93-21.14)	There was a significant negative influence of the balloon on total reflux time at week 52 (r=0.78, p=0.000, adjusted r2=0.58).

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Matsuo	Prospective	1) RYGB	n=29	1) 12 months	Age 12-19	Mean age (year)	Mean weight (kg)	None reported
2013184	cohort	2) LI	1) 5	2) 6 months		1) 16.5	1) 105.6 (p<0.05)	
		3) Healthy	2) 10			2) 13.2	2) 79.8 (p<0.05)	
		normal weight	3) 14			3) 14.3	Mean BMI (kg/m2)	
		control					1) 34.8 (p<0.05)	
						38% male	2) 29.4 (p<0.05)	
						Mean BMI (kg/m2)		
						1) 59.2		
						2) 34.9		
						3) 19.1		
						Mean weight (kg)		
						1) 180.3		
						2) 92.7		
						3) 53.5		

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Author/Year Miranda 2013 ¹⁸⁵	Design Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) nutrition clinic management	Patients n=19 1) 13 2) 6	1) 4.2 years 2) 2.4 years	Patients with heart failure BMI >35 Age >18 years	Characteristics Mean age 1) 62 2) 69 31% male Mean BMI 1) 55 2) 42 Mean weight (kg) 1) 146 2) 132 Hypertension 1) 12 2) 6 Dyslipidemia 1) 11 2) 5 T2DM 1) 10 2) 2 Smoker 1) 4	Main Outcomes Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 47 (p<0.001) 2) -8 (p<0.001) Mean change in BMI 1) -15 (p<0.001) 2) +5 (p<0.001) Hypertension 1) 13 2) 6 Dyslipidemia 1) 8 2) 6 T2DM 1) 6 2) 3 p=0.049 Smoker 1) 1 2) 0 QoL scores	None reported
						2) 2 QoL scores 1) 3 2) 4.5	1) 7 (p=0.001) 2) 6 (p=NS) p=0.06	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Mognol 2005 ¹⁸⁶	Retro- spective	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=290 1) 179	18 months	>50 BMI	Mean age 40	Mean %EWL 1) 46%	Major intraoperative complications
	cohort	, -	2) 111			22% male	2) 73%	1) 1
						Mean weight	Mean change in	2,0
						1) 145 2) 162	BMI 1) -13	Early post-op complications
						Mean BMI	2) -21	1) 5 2) 11
						1) 54 2) 59	BMI <35 (%) 1) 23	p<0.01
						,	2) 58	Late post-op
							p<0.01	1) 44 (36 due to band
								slippage) 2) 18
								p<0.05
								Mortality
								2) 1 (0.9%) p=NS

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Mohos 2011 ¹⁸⁷	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=94 1) 47 2) 47	1) 38.3 months 2) 15.7 months	BMI>40 or BMI>35 with significant comorbidities Failure of previous weight loss treatment	Mean age 1) 38.8 2) 46 26% male Mean BMI 1) 46.1 2) 50.3 Mean weight 1) 132.8 2) 141	QoL (SF 36) 1) 671 points 2) 602 points p=NS QoL (MA II) 1) 2.09 2) 1.7 Mean change in BMI 1) -18 2) -16.8 p=NS Mean %EWL 1) 88% 2) 70% p=0.0001 Resolution of T2DM 1) 9/10 (90%) 2) 7/13 (55%) Resolution of hypertension 1) 14/19 (73%) 2) 10/23 (43%) Resolution of GERD 1) 22/24 (92%) 2) 6/24 (25%) Resolution of OSA	Postop Operations 1) 15 (32%) 2) 4 (8%) p=NR No deaths reported
							1) 5/7 (72%) 2) 1/16 (6%)	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Moon 2014 ¹⁸⁸	Retro-	1) RYBG	n=586	1) 15 months	NIH 1991	Mean age	Mean %EWL	Symptomatic
	spective	2) VSG	1) 367	2) 11.6 months	criteria	1) 42.6	1) 67.3%	cholelithiasis
	cohort	3) LAGB	2) 115	3) 18.6 months		2) 43.7	2) 59.9%	1) 21 (5.7%)
			3) 104			3) 45.8	3) 31.2%	2) 7 (6.1%)
							p<0.01	3) 0.0 (0.0%)
						24% male		1 vs. 2, p=NS
								3 vs. 1 and 2, p=0.02
						Mean BMI		
						1) 47.1		Cholecystectomy in
						2) 46.0		first year after surgery
						3) 41.5		1) 11 (53%)
								2) 5 (71%)
								p=NS

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Musella 2014 ¹⁸⁹	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) VSG	n=10 1) 6 2) 4	5 years	>60 years old ≥5 years of follow-up	Mean age 1) 65.8 2) 66.2 Mean BMI 1) 45.4 2) 48.2	Mean %EWL @ 1 year 1) 14.2 2) 13.9 Mean %EWL @ 5 years 1) 34.6 2) 37.2 Mean BMI @ 1 year 1) 39.0 2) 41.4 Mean BMI @ 5 years 1) 28.7 2) 30.4 p=NS for all outcomes Complete resolution of all comorbidities in both groups	No deaths or complications in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Nelson	Retro-	1) BPD/DS	n=130	2 years	Not reported	Mean age	Weight loss (kg)	RR score
2012b ¹⁹⁰	spective	2) VSG	1) 42			1) 38	1) 21	1) -2.7
	cohort	3) RYGB	2) 40			2) 46	2) 12	2) -1.9
			3) 48			3) 45	3) 16	3) -1.4
								1 vs. 2 and 3, p=0.005
						12% male	BMI (%)	
							1) -42	
						Mean BMI	2) -27	
						1) 52	3) -35	
						2) 43	1 vs. 2 and 3,	
						3) 44	p<0.01	
						ReynoBPD Risk Score	BPD had a	
						(for cardiovascular	significantly	
						risk)	greater reduction	
						1) 4.7	in cardiovascular	
						2) 3.9	risk scores	
						3) 3.8	compared to VSG	
							or RYGB (p=0.005)	

Author/Year Study Design r	arators ventio s Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Nguyen Retro- 2013 ¹⁹¹ Spective 2) LAGE cohort	n=1295 1) 609 2) 686	1) 2 years 2) 1.6 years	Per recommendatio ns of ASMBS	Mean age 1) 42.4 2) 37.2 19% male Mean BMI 1) 46.8 2) 40.4	BMI 1) -14.8 2) -2.9 p<0.001 No difference in weight loss between genders during the first 3- year post-surgery, but male LAGB patients had greater BMI reduction than females (-8.2 vs. -3.9, p=0.02) T2DM normalization 1) 26/83 (33%) 2) 22/27 (17%) p=0.02 Hyper- triglyceridemia normalization 1) 51/63 (81%) 2) 34/124 (27%) p<0.0001 OSA (no CPAP) 1) 10/100 (10%) 2) 4/130 (3%) p=0.04	Perioperative complications (%) 1) 8.0 2) .5 p<0.001 Reoperations (%) 1) 2.1 2) 8.9 p<0.001 LABG: long-term complications were less likely to occur in males than females (male: 2/131 vs. female: 59/555, p<0.001) RYGB: similar rates of long-term complications male: 0/131 vs. female: 4/555) No deaths in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Olivan 2009 ¹⁹²	Prospective cohort	1) T2DM RYGB 2) T2DM Diet WL 3) Non-T2DM obese controls	n=30 1) 11 2) 10 3) 9	Each participant followed until equivalent weight loss of 10 kg	BMI > 35 <60 years old Diagnosed with T2DM diagnosis <5 years Not on antidiabetic meds HbA1c <8%	Mean age 1) 44.12 2) 47.9 3) 37.4 Mean weight (kg) 1) 117.6 2) 110.6 3) 121.1 0% male Mean BMI 1) 47.4 2) 42.8 3) 45.5	Mean weight (kg) 1) 106.4 2) 100.7 p=0.429 Mean BMI 1) 41.4 2) 39.0 p=0.233	No severe adverse effects in either group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Omana	Retro-	1) VSG	n=123	1) 15	Not reported	Mean age	Mean weight (kg)	No mortality or major
2010 ¹⁹³	spective	2) LAGB	1) 49	2) 17 months		1) 45	1) 104.6	complications related
	cohort		2) 74			2) 41	2) 101.1	to procedures
						Mean BMI	ρ-145	Minor complications
						1) 52	Mean weight loss	(%)
						2) 44	(kg)	1) 12
							1) 39.2	2) 15
						Mean weight (kg)	2) 22.5	
						1) 144.0	p<0.01	
						2) 122.7		
							Mean change in	
						Mean EBW (kg)	BMI	
						1) 81.8	1) -14.2	
						2) 59	2) -8.0	
							p<0.01	
							Mean %EWL (%)	
							1) 50.6	
							2) 40.3	
							p=0.03	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Palikhe	RCT	1) VSG	n=31	12.5 months	20-75 years old;	Mean age	Change in weight	Major complication
2014 ¹⁹⁴		2) IMT	1) 14		BMI≥27.5	1) 47	(kg)	(esophageal
			2) 17		kg/m2; T2DM	2) 52	1) -28.0	perforation)
			,				2) -8.6	1) 2
						Mean BMI	p<0.001	2) 0
						1) 40.5	'	,
						2) 35.8	Change in BMI	No deaths in either
						_,	1) -11.3	group
						26% male	2) -3.3	0.000
							p<0.001	
						Mean weight (kg)		
						1) 99.5	Mean %EWL (%)	
						2) 90.4	1) 61.2	
						_,	2) 27.4	
							p<0.001	
							P	
							%EWL	
							1) 27.9	
							2) 9.4	
							p<0.001	
							p .01001	
							Resolution of	
							T2DM (%)	
							1) 36	
							2) 0	
							p=0.007	
							F	
							Resolution of	
							hypertension (%)	
							1) 29	
							2) 0	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Parikh 2014 ¹⁹⁵	RCT	1) LAGB 2) LSG 3) RYGB 4) Medical weight management (MWM)	n=56 1) 5 2) 16 3) 7 4) 28	6 months	T2DM; BMI 30- 35; Meets other NIH criteria for bariatric surgery	Mean age Surgery: 46.8 MWM: 53.9 Mean BMI Surgery: 32.8 MWM: 32.4 % Female Surgery: 79% MWM: 79%	Diabetes Remission (%) 1) 33 2) 91 3) 33 4) 0 P=0.025 No longer requires T2DM Medication (%) 1) 33 2) 100 3) 67 4) 12 P=0.016	 ≤30 day complications Surgery: 1 MWM: 0 >30 day complications Surgery: 1 MWM: 0
Pham 2014 ¹⁹⁶	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) VSG 3) RYGB	n=81 1) 20 2) 24 3) 23	24 months	Patients with T2DM diagnosis matched with obese patients without T2DM for age, sex, BMI, and surgery type	Mean age 45.7 Mean BMI 48	T2DM remission (%) 1) 20.0 2) 62.5 3) 52.0 2 vs. 1, p=0.0026 1 vs. 3, p=NS No difference between groups for resolution of hypertension Weight loss was not significantly between those with and without T2DM	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Pihlajamaki 2010 ¹⁹⁷	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=55 1) 29 2) 26	12 months	BMI >40 or >35 with significant comorbidity Prior failure of dietary/drug treatments No contra- indications for	Mean weight (kg) 1) 130 2) 145 27% male Mean BMI 1) 46 2) 50 1	Mean weight (kg) 1) 98 2) 123 p<0.001 Mean BMI 1) 34.6 2) 42.6 p<0.001	None reported
					Surgery	T2DM 1) 8/29 2) 19/26 Mean age 1) 45.2 2) 45.9	T2DM 1) 2/29 2) 1/26 p=NS	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Roslin 2012 ¹⁹⁸	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG 3) DS	n=38 1) 12 2) 13 3) 13	6 months	>18 years 1991 NIH criteria	Mean weight (lb) 1) 281.9 2) 279.8 3) 342.8 Mean BMI 1) 47.3 2) 45.7 3) 54.1 Mean fasting glucose (mg/dL) 1) 105.5 2) 98.2 3) 97.2 Mean HbA1c (%) 1) 6.8 2) 5.8 3) 6.1	Mean weight (lb) 1) 223.3 (b) 2) 214.8 (a) 3) 245 Mean BMI 1) 36.8 2) 35.3 3) 38.2 Mean fasting glucose (mh/dL) 1) 86.9 2) 83.0 3) 77.9 HbA1C (%) 1) 5.9 (b,c) 2) 5.4 (a) 3) 5.3 (a) a: p<0.05 compared to (1); b: p<0.05 compared to (2); c: p<0.05 compared to (3)	None reported
Rodriguez 2009 ¹⁹⁹	RCT	1) DJBL 2) Sham	n=18 1) 12 2) 6	24 weeks	Age 18-55 BMI 30-50 T2DM<10 years; HbA1c 7-10%	Mean age 47 % female 61 Mean BMI 38.9	Mean weight change at week 20 (kg) 1) -10.2 2) -7.1 p=NR	Device-related AE (n) 1) 12 2) N/A Device explant from AE (n) 1) 3 2) N/A

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Roslin 2014 ²⁰⁰	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG 3) DS	n=38 1) 13 2) 12 3) 13	12 months	Age >18 years 1991 NIH criteria	Mean weight (lb) 1) 281.1 2) 290.3 3) 353.0 Mean BMI 1) 47.7 2) 45.7 3) 55.9 Mean HbA1c (%) 1) 6.6 2) 5.8 3) 6.0	Mean weight (lb) 1) 184.4 2) 202.0 3) 182.2 Mean BMI (kg/m2) 1) 30.7 2) 31.1 3) 27.5 a: p<0.05 compared to (1); b: p<0.05 compared to (2); c: p<0.05 compared to (3)	None reported
Sabbagh 2010 ²⁰¹	Prospective cohort	1) VSG primary procedure 2) VSG after failed LAGB 3) LAGB	n=111 1) 50 2) 9 3) 52	24 months	Follow-up >24 months	Mean age 1) 39.4 2) 41.2 3) 36 Mean BMI 1) 50.4 2) 50.8 3) 43.8	Mean BMI 1) 33.8 2) 35.3 3) 33.2 p=NS Mean %EWL 1) 67.4 2) 60.3 3) 58.6 p=0.14 Mean %EBMIL 1) 32.77 2) 30.01 3) 24.42	Reoperations (%) 1) 2 2) 11 3) 30.76 p<0.0001 Late complications 1) 0 2) 0 3) 13 p=NR No deaths in any group

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Saunders 2007 ²⁰²	Retro- spective cohort	1) Vertical banded gastroplasty- RYGB (results not reported here) 2) RYGB 3) LAGB	n=2,823 1) 776 2) 1,185 3) 862	30 days	Not reported	Median age 42 25 % male Median BMI 2) 46 3) 44	Readmissions within 30 days 2) 86 3) 27 p=NR	Overall complications 2) 39 3) 10
Serrot 2011 ²⁰³	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) Medical management for T2DM	n=34 1) 17 2) 17	12 months	BMI <35 1991 NIH criteria	Median age (year) 1) 56.0 2) 62.0 Median BMI (kg/m2) 1) 34.6 2) 34.0	Median BMI 1) 25.8 2) 34.3 p<0.001 Median weight (lb) 1) 157	Readmission rate (%) 1) 18 2) 0 Mortality 1) 0
						Median weight (lb) 1) 214 2) 237 Female (n) 1) 13 2) 6	2) 233 p<0.001 Mean %EWL (%) 1) 70 2) -4 p<0.001 Resolution of T2DM 1) 11/17	2) 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Spivak 2012 ²⁰⁴	Retro- spective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=232 1) 127 2) 105	5-10 years	1991 NIH criteria	Mean age 1) 42.1 2) 40.6 14% male Mean weight (kg) 1) 124.4 2) 133.6 Mean BMI 1) 45.9 2) 48.2 EW (kg) 1) 61.8 2) 70.5	Mean %EWL 1) 43 2) 67 p<0.01 Mean change in BMI 1) 10 2) 16 p<0.01	Failure Rate (%) 1) 23.5 2) 7.1 Conversions to open 1) 2 1) 3 Late reoperations (%) 1) 24.1 2) 9.9 Morality 1) 0 2) 1
Stephens 2008 ²⁰⁵	Retro- spective cohort	1) Vertical banded gastroplasty- RYGB (results not reported here) 2) RYGB 3) LAGB	n=3,692 1) 1203 2) 1472 3) 1017	Not reported	Not reported	Median age 41 25% male Median BMI 46	Median hospital length of stay BMI<60 kg/m2 (days) 2) 2 3) 1 p=NR Median hospital length of stay BMI <u>></u> 60 kg/m2 (days) 2) 3 3) 1 p=NR	Mortality 2) 2 3) 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Strain 2007 ²⁰⁶	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) BPD	n=72 1) 50 2) 22	Mean follow-up (months) 1) 15.5 2) 19.5	Met NIH guidelines for bariatric surgery eligibility	Mean age 1) 46.2 2) 40.6 58% male Mean BMI (kg/m2) 1) 46.2 2) 53.6	Mean BMI 1) 31.5 2) 30.3 p=NS	Postoperative complications (%) 1) 10 2) 9 Reoperations 1) 0 2) 1 (reversal) No death in either
Tarnoff 2009 ²⁰⁷	RCT	1) DJBL 2) VLCD	n=39 1) 25 2) 14	12 weeks	Age 18-55; BMI 40-60 or >=35 with comorbidities; history of failure with nonsurgical WL; candidate for RYGB	Mean age 1) 38 2) 43 Male/female (n) 1) 10/15 2) 6/8 Mean BMI 1) 42 2) 40	%EWL at 12 weeks 1) 22.1 2) 5.3 p=0.02 % Participants with >=10%WL 1) 92 2) 21 p=0.0001 Improvement in diabetes (reduction in medication n/total) 1) 3/4 2) 1/1	group Early removal of device (n) 1) 5 2) N/A Multiple implantation attempts (n) 1) 5 2) N/A Overall participants with >=1 AE (n) 1) 16 2) 0 Severe events (n) 1) 5 2) 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Tedesco 2013 ²⁰⁸	Retro- spective cohort	 LAGB with history of substance abuse LAGB with no history of substance abuse VSG with history of substance abuse VSG with no history of substance abuse RYGB with history of substance abuse RYGB with no history of substance 	n=205 1) 11 2) 12 3) 22 4) 50 5) 41 6) 69	12 months	Veterans	Mean age 51.5 79.9% male Mean BMI 46.2	Mean %EWL (%) 1) 33.4 2) 34.0 3) 59.6 4) 57.3 5) 75.8 6) 69.5 p=NS	None reported
		abuse						

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Toelle 2012 ²⁰⁹	Cross- sectional	1) LAGB 2) VSG 3) RYGB 4) BPD	n=141 1) 39 2) 31 3) 43 4) 28	Time between pre- and post- measurement (months) 1) 49.33 2) 11.10 3) 11.12 4) 21.18	Patients who were taking no calcium and/or vitamin D supplements and had received bariatric procedure ~6 weeks prior	Mean age 1) 43.4 2) 44.0 3) 46.8 4) 46.0 19% male Mean BMI 1) 42.7 2) 45.7 3) 44.3 4) 45.2	Mean BMI 1) 33.1 2) 34.1 3) 33.2 4) 30.5 p=NS Mean change in BMI 1) -22.6 2) -24.9 3) -25.3 4) -32.4 p=0.001 Mean %EBMI 1) 56.2 2) 56.4 3) 60.6 4) 74.1 p=0.011	None reported
Topart 2012 ²¹⁰	Retro- spective cohort	1) VSG 2) RYGB 3) BPD	n=507 1) 88 2) 360 3) 59	3-4 months	BPD for patients with BMI ≥50 VSG selectively indicated according to the ASMBS position statement RYGB for patients with BMI ≥40 but ≤50	Mean age 1) 47.1 2) 40.9 3) 38.5 24% male Mean BMI 1) 49.2 2) 44.3 3) 54.9	Not reported	Major complications (%) 1) 6.8 2) 4.7 3) 8.4 Reoperations 1) 3 2) 14 3) 2 90-day mortality rate 1) 0 2) 1 3) 0

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Topart 2013 ²¹¹	Retro-	1) RYGB	n=180	Mean (months)	BMI <u>></u> 50	Mean age	Mean %EWL	Revisions
	spective	2) BPD	1) 97	1) 46		1) 41.0	1) 63.7	1) 13
	cohort		2) 83	2) 44.3		2) 38.3	2) 84.0	2) 5
							p<0.00001	
				Results reported		23% male		Reoperation
				for 3 years			Mean BMI	1) 2
						Mean BMI	1) 35.9	2) 7
						1) 54.6	2) 29.8	(all due to leaks)
						2) 55.5		
							Remission of OSA	Complications
						Prevalence of	(%)	1) 12
						comorbidities	1) 89	2) 23
							2) 90	p=0.0095
						OSA	p=NS	
						1) 41		Mortality
						2) 11	Remission of	1) 1
							T2DM (%)	2) 1
						T2DM	1) 92.3	
						1) 16	2) 86.6	
						2) 16	p=NS	
						Hypertension	Hypertension	
						1) 30	suspension of	
						2) 17	medication (%)	
							1) 66.6	
							2) 77.7	
							p=0.0039	

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Tsoli 2013 ²¹²	Prospective cohort	1) BPD (open) 2) VSG	n=24 1) 12 2) 12	12 months	T2DM diagnosis Morbidly obese classification	Mean age 1) 42.3 2) 40.3 38% male Mean BMI 1) 57.6 2) 43.7	Mean BMI 1) 32.4 2) 27.9 p=0.014 Mean %EWL 1) 73.4 2) 75 p=NS	None reported
Vidal 2007 ²¹³	Prospective cohort	1) VSG 2) RYGB	n=85 1) 35 2) 50	4 months	T2DM diagnosis Caucasian	Mean age 1) 49.4 2) 49.4 38% male Mean BMI 1) 52.0 2) 47.6 Metabolic syndrome (%) 1) 91.4 2) 94.0	Mean EBMIL (%) 1) 41.4 2) 45.3 p=NS Mean weight loss (% from B/L) 1) 20.6 2) 21.0 p=NS T2DM resolution 1) 18 2) 31 p=NS Resolution of metabolic syndrome (%) 1) 18 2) 31 p=NS	None reported

Author/Year	Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Vidal 2008 ²¹⁴	Prospective cohort	1) VSG 2) RYGB	n=91 1) 39 2) 52	12 months	T2DM diagnosis Metabolic syndrome diagnosis Caucasian T2DM treatment prior to surgery	Mean age (year) 1) 49.9 2) 49.3 37% male Mean BMI (kg/m2) 1) 51.9 2) 47.7	Mean EBMIL (%) 1) 63.00 2) 66.06 T2DM resolution 1) 33 2) 44 Metabolic syndrome resolution (%) 1) 62.2 2) 67.3 p=NS for all outcomes	None reported
Von Mach 2004 ²¹⁵	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB 3) Controls	n=19 1) 4 2) 9 3) 6	24 months	BMI >37	Mean age 1) 44.5 2) 41.1 3) 49.0 47% male Mean BMI 1) 42.7 2) 41.0 3) 41.2 Mean weight (kg) 1) 113.3 2) 117.2 3) 113.5	Mean BMI 1) 30.5 (c) 2) 34.0 (c) 3) 41.4 (a, b) Mean weight loss (%) 1) -28.6 (p<0.01) 2) -16.0 (p<0.01) 3) 0.5 (p=NS) a: p<0.05 compared to (1); b: p<0.05 compared to (2); c: p<0.05 compared to (3)	None reported

Author/Year Study Design	Comparators /Interventio ns	# of Patients	Mean/Media n Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Wahlroos 2007 ²¹⁶ Prospectir cohort	e 1) very low- calorie diet 2) LAGB	n=39 1) 14 2) 25	1) 6 weeks 2) 3 months	Weight ≤150 kg LAGB patients not prescribed pre-operative VLCD No diagnosis of T2DM or hepatic steatosis	Age range 1) 17-64 2) 20-62 0% male Mean weight (kg) 1) 118.8 2) 104.5 Mean waist circumference (cm) 1) 118.7 2) 110.7 Mean BMI 1) 45 00	Mean weight (kg) 1) 110.0 (p<0.001) 2) 94.9 (p<0.001) Mean waist circumference (cm) 1) 111.1 (p<0.001) 2) 101.5 (p<0.001) Mean BMI 1) 42 (p<0.001) 2) 35 (p<0.001)	None reported

Author/Yea r	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention	# of Patient	Mean/Median Time to	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Weiner 2013 ²¹⁷	Retro- spective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=2,031 1) 1,345 2) 686	5 days	1991 NIH criteria and German guidelines for bariatric surgery	Median age 1) 43 2) 39 44% male Mean BMI 1) 46.3 2) 57.8	None reported	Patients with complications on 5th day of hospital stay, prolonging stay 1) 66 2) 49 Leakage requiring reoperation (n) 1) 22 2) 12 p<0.05 Bleeding (n) 1) 10 2) 19 Early complications 1) 66 (4.9%) 2) 49 (7.14%) p=0.039 Mortality 1) 1 2) 1
Widhalm 2011 ²¹⁸	Prospective cohort	1) LAGB 2) RYGB	n=18 1) 8 2) 9 1 patient received VSG; results not reported here	42 months	Met the criteria for bariatric surgery in adolescents according to the interdisciplinary European guidelines	Mean age 17.7 33% male Mean BMI 1) 49.6 2) 52.0 Mean weight (kg) 1) 159 2) 154	Mean weight loss (kg) 1) -20 2) 36 Mean weight (kg) 1) 150 2) 118 Mean BMI 1) 49.1 2) 32.5 p=NR	Revision to RYGB 1) 4 2) 0 No adverse effects Mortality reported

Author/Yea r	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention s	# of Patient s	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Woel- nerhanssen 2011 ²¹⁹	RCT	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=23 1) 12 2) 11	12 months	No diagnosis of T2DM BMI >40 with at least 1 comorbidity Age <60 years 2 years of unsuccessful conservative treatment Approval for surgery by patient's health insurance	Mean age (year) 1) 41.4 2) 35.2 Mean BMI (kg/m2) 1) 47.6 2) 44.7 Mean weight (kg) 1) 133.3 2) 120.2	Mean weight (kg) 1) 87.3 2) 86.3 Mean weight loss (%) 1) 34.5 2) 27.9 p=NS for all between- group comparisons	None reported
Wong 2009 ²²⁰	Retro- spective cohort	 LAGB VSG RYGB Intragastric balloon 	n=225 1) 57 2) 71 3) 7 4) 120 (results not shown)	 24 months 8 months 3) 24 months 	Asian patients in Hong Kong with BMI >37 or >32 with T2DM or 2 other obesity- related comorbidities	Mean age 39.6 35% male Mean BMI 36.3	Mean %EWL 1) 34 2) 51 3) 61 Mean change in BMI (%) 1) 13 2) 22 3) 26	Overall complications 1) 5 2) 6 3) 3 No deaths in any group
Woodard 2010 ²²¹	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) LAGB	n=838 1) 765 2) 73	12 months	None reported	Mean age 1) 43.8 2) 46.6 37% male Mean BMI 1) 47.4 2) 44.4	Mean %EWL 1) 78 2) 47.6 p<0.05 Mean BMI 1) 31.4 2) 35.3 p<0.05	None reported

Author/Yea r	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention s	# of Patient s	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
Yong 2012 ²²²	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) exenatide therapy	n=23 1) 13 2) 10	6 months	BMI >32 T2DM diagnosis for less than 10 years	Median age 1) 42.2 2) 45.9 30% male	Mean %EWL 1) 57.3 2) 23.8 p<0.01 Abdominal girth loss (cm) 1) 15.3 2) 10.1 p<0.05 Mean BMI 1) 32 2) 36 p<0.05 Mean EBMIL (%) 1) 57 2) 24 p<0.01	None reported
Yousseif 2014 ²²³	Prospective cohort	1) RYGB 2) VSG	n=18 1) 10 2) 8	12 weeks	Female BMI 40–50 Age 60 years No prior bariatric procedure	Mean age (year) 1) 46.8 2) 41.4 0% male Mean BMI (kg/m2) 1) 45 2) 44	Mean BMI 1) 37.9 2) 37.4 p=NS Mean weight loss (kg) 1) 18.7 2) 19.9 p=NS Mean %EWL (%) 1) 39.4 2) 37.8 p=NS	None reported

Author/Yea r	Study Design	Comparators /Intervention s	# of Patient s	Mean/Median Time to Follow-up	Entry Criteria	Baseline Characteristics	Main Outcomes	Harms
r Zhang 2013 ²²⁴	Design Prospective cohort	s 1) VSG 2) RYGB	s n=558 1) 200 2) 358	Follow-up 12 months	1991 NIH criteria	Characteristics Mean age 1) 44.2 2) 47.5 24% male Mean BMI 1) 47.9 2) 46.1 OSA (%) 1) 34 2) 25.1 GERD (%) 1) 13 2) 13.7 Hyperlipidemia (%) 1) 25.5 2) 27.1 Hypertension (%) 1) 52 2) 52.5 T2DM (%) 1) 28	Mean %EWL (%) 1) 30.7 2) 33.4 P=NS OSA (%) 1) 3.26 2) 4.15 p=0.338 GERD (%) 1) 13.2 2) 7.3 p<0.001 Hyperlipidemia (%) 1) 11.1 2) 12 p=NS Hypertension (%) 1) 37.8 2) 25.8 p=NS T2DM (%) 1) 13.5 2) 10.4	None reported
						2) 31.8 Musculoskeletal disease (%) 1) 20 2) 18.7	p=NS Musculoskeletal disease (%) 1) 5.62 2) 3.7 p=NS	
Appendix C: Patient and Programmatic Factors Associated with the Effectiveness and Safety of Bariatric Surgery

Table C1: Patient and Programmatic Factors Associated with Success

Author, Year	Procedure	No. Patients	Duration follow-up	Factors AssociatedStatisticalwith SuccessTechnique
Alami, 2007 ²²⁵	RYGB	61	12 months	 Pre-operative weight loss decreases operating time and short term EWL Chi-square; Multiple linear regression
Becouarn, 2010 ²²⁶	RYGB or LAGB or VSG	539	4 years	Pre-operative weight loss not Logistic associated with post- regression operative weight loss
Birkmeyer, 2010 ²²⁷	LAGB vs. VSG vs. RYGB	15,275	30 days	High surgeonHigh hospital volumeregression
Bueter, 2007 ²²⁸	LAGB 1) Successful 2) Unsuccessful	71	27 months	 Baseline BMI Female Post-operative vomiting Eating behavior Physical activity Pearson chi-square; Logistic regression
Carlin, 2013 ⁹	RYGB 1) Single surgeon, cases 1-50 2) Single surgeon, cases 51-100 3)Multi-disciplinary team, cases 101- 200	200	12 months	 Team approach Logistic Female regression Learning curve
Chen, 2012 ²²⁹	RYGB	200	12 months	 Female Logistic Surgeon experience regression Team approach
Chevallier, 2007 ²³⁰	LAGB	1,238	2 years	 Younger age Logistic Lower baseline BMI regression Physical activity Eating habits High surgeon volume
Compher, 2012 ²³¹	RYGB	60	2 years	 Male Attend post-operative office visits Younger age Lower baseline BMI Mixed effects model
Courcoulas, 2003 ²³²	RYGB	4,685	3 years	 High surgeon High hospital volume MIXED procedure; linear

					model with binary outcomes
Dallal, 2009 ²³³	RYGB	1,168	3 years	Higher initial weightMale	Student's t-test; mixed-effects
Elakkary, 2006 ²³⁴	LAGB	38	12 months	 Post-operative support groups 	T-test
Gould, 2011 ²³⁵	RYGB or LAGB	32,509	3 years	High hospital volume	Random/fixed effects
Harnisch, 2008 ²³⁶	RYGB	1,629	2 years	 Pre-operative weight gain/loss not differentially associated with perioperative complications or EWL 	Not specified
Huerta, 2008 ²³⁷	RYGB	40	2 years	 Pre-operative weight loss associated with shorter operative time but not EWL or perioperative complications 	Student's t-test; chi-square; Fisher's exact test; Multivariate regression
Jamal, 2006 ²³⁸	RYGB	324	12 months	 No pre-operative dietary counseling 	ANOVA; Fisher's exact test; chi- square
Leahey, 2009 ²³⁹	RYGB or LAGB	32	10 weeks	 Post-operative patients more likely than pre-operative patients to complete interventions designed to reduce eating behaviors associated with weight gain 	Chi-square; t-test
Lier, 2011 ²⁴⁰	Not specified	141	2 years	 Unwillingness to participate in counselling groups predictors: Social phobia Avoidant personality disorder 	Pearson chi- square; Student's t-test
Lier, 2012 ²⁴¹	RYGB	141	12 months	 Pre-surgical counselling not associated with treatment adherence to lifestyle changes 	ANOVA; Contingency table analysis
Lutfi, 2006 ²⁴²	RYGB	180	12 months	Baseline BMI<50Single marital status	Logistic regression
Ma, 2006 ²⁴³	RYGB	494	12 months	 Younger age Lower baseline weight Male Non-T2DM 	Linear regression
Masoomi, 2011 ²⁴⁴	RYGB	226,452	Not reported	 Gl tract leaks: Congestive heart failure Chronic renal failure Age>50 years Medicare Male Chronic lung disease 	Logistic regression
Melton, 2008 ²⁴⁵	RYGB	495	12 months	Predictors of suboptimal weight loss:	Logistic regression

				Greater BMIT2DM	
Murr, 2007 ²⁴⁶	RYGB	19,174	5 years	 Male Younger age Female Low surgeon/hospital volume 	Logistic regression
Nguyen, 2004 ²⁴⁷	RYGB	24,166	3 years	High volume hospitals	Pearson chi- square; ANOVA
Nguyen, 2011 ²⁴⁸	RYGB vs. LAGB	304,515	Length of hospital stay	 Mortality predictors: Male Age >50 years Congestive heart failure Peripheral vascular disease Chronic renal failure 	Multivariate regression
Nguyen GC, 2013 ²⁴⁹	RYGB	115,507	8 years	 In-hospital mortality/Length of Stay: Non-Hispanic black Male Low hospital volume Medicare/Medicaid insurance 	Chi-square; Fisher's exact test; t-tests; logistic regression
Nguyen, 2013 ²⁵⁰	RYGB or LAGB or gastroplasty	105,287	8 years	 In-hospital mortality: Male RYGB Medicare insurance T2DM Age>60 years 	Logistic regression
Nijamkin, 2012 ²⁵¹	RYGB	144	12 months	 Post-operative comprehensive nutrition and lifestyle educational intervention 	T-test; chi- square; Wilcoxon signed rank; Mann-Whitney U test
Nijamkin, 2013 ²⁵²	RYGB	144	12 months	 Post-operative behavior change education Post-operative nutrition counselling 	T-tests; regression; intention to treat
Ortega, 2012 ¹¹²	RYGB vs. VSG	407	12.5 months	 Younger age Lower baseline BMI Higher waist circumference Lower HbA1c Lower triglycerides 	Multiple regression; logistic regression
Orth, 2008a ²⁵³	RYGB or LAGB or vertical banded gastroplasty	46	25 months	Attended post-operative support group	Mann-Whitney; Fisher's exact test
Padwal, 2013 ²⁵⁴	Not specified	15,394	10 years	 All-cause mortality predictors: T2DM Current smoker Male 	Logistic regression
Parikh, 2012 ²⁵⁵	LAGB	55	6 months	 Pre-operative medically supervised weight management not associated with post-operative weight loss or physical activity 	Intention to treat; completers' analysis

Perugini, 2003 ²⁵⁶ Pontiroli, 2007 ²⁵⁷ Ray, 2003 ²⁵⁸	RYGB LAGB RYGB	188 172 149	12 months 4 years 2 years	 EWL: Non-T2DM Complication predictors: Less surgeon experience Sleep apnea Hypertension BMI Compliance Attendance post-op appointments No. confidants Previous dieting Anticipated post-operative 	Logistic regression Stepwise regression Student t-test
				 diet-related stress Perceived obesity health problems Motivation unrelated to social distress about obesity 	
Sarwer, 2008 ²⁵⁹	RYGB	200	92 weeks	MaleBaseline cognitive restraintDietary adherence	Mixed model
Sarwer, 2012 ²⁶⁰	RYGB or LAGB	84	2 years	 Post-operative dietary counseling/Change in eating behavior 	Repeated measures mixed effects
Shen, 2004 ²⁶¹	LAGB vs. RYGB	301	12 months	Attendance to follow-up visits after LAGB	Student's t-test; Pearson's correlation
Smith, 2013 ²⁶²	RYGB	3,410	30 days	High-volume surgeons	Kruskal-Wallis test; Jonckheere- Terpstra trend test; relative risk; log linear regression
Sockalingam, 2013 ²⁶³	RYGB or VSG	363	2-4 months	 Associated with non-completion of surgery: Past Axis I psychiatric disorders Past anxiety disorders Past substance use disorders 	Chi-square; Fisher's exact; t- tests
Van Nieuwenhove, 2011 ²⁶⁴	RYGB	298	30 days	 Pre-operative diet not associated with differences in operating time or intraoperative complications Pre-operative diet group experienced fewer 30-day complications 	T-test; Mann- Whitney test; chi- square test
Weineland, 2012 ²⁶⁵	RYGB or VSG	39	6 weeks	Post-operative acceptance and commitment therapy	ANOVA
Weller, 2007 ²⁶⁶	RYGB or gastroplasty	7,868	30 days	High surgeon volumeHigh hospital volume	Logistic regression

Wittgrove,	RYGB	500	5 years	•	Non-T2DM	None
2000 ²⁶⁷						

Table C2: Summary of Studies that Assess Bariatric Surgery Center Accreditation

Author	Description of Study	Results
Year		
Birkmeyer 2010 ²²⁷	Retrospective analysis of 15,275 patients using data from the Michigan Bariatric Surgery Collaborative's prospective clinical registry from 2006-2009. Multilevel regression models were used to assess variation in risk-adjusted complication rates across hospitals and the effects of procedure volume and accreditation status.	 Serious complications: Accredited: 2.7% (95% CI: 2.5%-3.1%) Non-accredited: 2.0% (95% CI: 1.5%-2.4%); p=0.41
Dimick 2013 ²⁶⁸	Retrospective analysis of 273,252 Medicare and non- Medicare patients using hospital discharge data from 2004- 2009. A difference-in-differences approach was used to evaluate whether the 2006 CMS decision restricting bariatric surgery to accredited hospitals was associated with improved outcomes in Medicare patients above and beyond existing time trends.	Overall complications: • After vs. before NCD: 8.0% vs. 7.0% • RR: 1.14 (95% Cl: 0.95-1.33) • Accredited vs. non-accredited: 5.5% vs. 6.0% • RR: 0.98 (95% Cl: 0.90-1.06) Serious complications: • After vs. before NCD: 3.3% vs 3.6% • RR: 0.92 (95% Cl: 0.62-1.22) • Accredited vs. non-accredited: 2.2% vs 2.5% • RR: 0.92 (95% Cl: 0.84-1.00)
Flum 2011 ²⁶⁹	A cohort study of 47,030 patients using CMS data from 2004-2008 to determine the impact of the 2006 NCD. Logistic regression models were used with interrupted time- series to account for changes independent of other temporal trends.	 Impact of NCD on 90-day mortality: 0.21% (p=0.18)
Jafari 2013 ²⁷⁰	Retrospective analysis of the 2006-2010 Nationwide Inpatient Sample (n=277,766). Multivariate analysis was performed to examine risk- adjusted serious morbidity and in-hospital mortality between the low- and high-volume centers.	 In-hospital mortality for unaccredited centers: OR: 3.57 (95% CI: 1.49-8.33) Mortality of accredited centers alone (high volume vs. low volume): 0.22% vs. 0.17% Serious morbidity for unaccredited centers: OR: 0.84 (95% CI: 0.71-0.98)
Kohn 2010 ²⁷¹	Analysis of 102,069 bariatric operations using the 1998- 2006 Nationwide Inpatient Sample. Logistic regression was employed using generalized estimating equations and assuming a binomial distribution of the data.	 (ORs relative to non-accredited facilities) Any complication: ASMBS-accredited OR: 0.93 (95% Cl: 0.81-1.08; p=0.36) ACS-accredited OR: 0.85 (95% Cl: 0.70-1.03; p=0.09) Mortality: ASMBS-accredited: OR: 0.77 (95% Cl: 0.53-1.12; p=0.18) ACS-accredited: OR: 0.93 (95% Cl: 0.59-1.46; p=0.75)

Author	Description of Study	Results
Year		
Kwon 2013 ²⁷²	Retrospective cohort study of 30,755 non-Medicare patients between 2003-2009 using the MarketScan Commercial Claims and Encounter Database. A difference-in-differences approach was used to determine the impact of the 2006 NCD.	 Impact of NCD on inpatient mortality: -0.04% (p=0.1) Impact of NCD on 90-day complication rates: -2.7% (p=0.01)
Livingston 2009 ²⁷³	Analysis of the 2005 National Inpatient Survey to compare outcomes at accredited and non-accredited programs (n=253).	In-hospital mortality: • Accredited OR: 1.76 (95% CI: 0.73-4.26); p=0.21 Morbidity: • Accredited OR: 1.00 (95% CI: 0.87-1.15); p=0.97
Morton 2014 ²⁷⁴	Analysis of the 2010 Nationwide Inpatient Sample to compare accredited with non-accredited hospitals (n=145). Multivariate, multilevel, mixed-effects logistic regression analyses with hospital clustering adjustment to control for potential confounders.	 Any in-hospital complication: Unaccredited OR: 1.09 (95% CI: 1.03-1.16); p=0.005 Incidence of any complication: 12.3% in unaccredited vs. 11.3% in accredited hospitals; p=0.001 Mortality: 0.13% in unaccredited vs. 0.07% in accredited hospitals; p=0.019
Nguyen 2010 ²⁷⁵	Analysis of 6,264 Medicare and Medicaid patients using the University Health System Consortium database from October 1, 2004, through September 31, 2007. Differences in patient characteristics, complications, 30-day readmission rates, and observed in-hospital mortality between groups were analyzed with Pearson χ^2 tests.	 Overall complications: 12.2% before NCD vs. 10.0% after NCD; p<0.05 OR: 1.24 (95% CI: 1.06-1.45) In-hospital mortality: 0.3% before NCD vs. 0.2% after NCD; p=NS OR: 1.44 (95% CI: 0.57-4.05)
Nguyen 2012 ²⁷⁶	Analysis of 35,284 patients using the 2007-2009 University Health System Consortium database. Mortality and overall complications were compared at the patient level by relative risks using binomial regression with a log link function and robust standard errors.	 In-hospital mortality: 0.06% in accredited vs. 0.21% in unaccredited hospitals; p=0.003 RR: 3.5 (95% CI: 1.5-8.0) Overall complications: 2.3% in accredited vs. 2.2% in unaccredited hospitals; p=0.75 RR 0.96 (95% CI: 0.77-1.20)
Telem 2015 ²⁷⁷	 Retrospective analysis using data from the 2004-2010 New York Statewide Planning and Research Cooperative longitudinal administrative database (n=47,342). Outcomes were analyzed with and without temporal correlation to accreditation year using multivariable logistic regression analysis. Mortality was analyzed using a multiple cox proportional hazard model. 	Major complications: • Accredited OR: 0.72 (range 0.63-0.83); p<0.001 Mortality (>30 days): • HR: 0.93 (range 0.76-1.13); p=0.45

<u>Appendix D: Treatment Success with Medication or</u> <u>Lifestyle Management</u>

Methods

We conducted a Bayesian network meta-analysis to compare weight loss success with each drug of interest (defined as the proportion of patients achieving 10% or more total weight loss). Data were extracted from the peer-reviewed studies included in our sample and analyzed using WinBUGS software (MRC Biostatistics Unit, Cambridge, UK) via an Excel-based interface (NetMetaXL, Ottawa, Canada).²⁷>

We used a random-effects model with vague priors, as this approach is commonly understood to be appropriate when generalizations are to be made from larger and more diverse groups of studies and patients, or when there is heterogeneity across studies' methods and researchers; such models incorporate the most conservative assumptions around study characteristics.^{279,280} Our decision to report results based on the random-effects model is supported by comparison of diagnostic statistics, which suggest a slightly better goodness-of-fit than that of a fixed effect model.

Results

Figure D1. Network Meta-Analysis of Achievement of 10% Total Weight Loss



Appendix E: Evidence Tables for Harms of Bariatric Surgery & Medication

Table E1. Study details of good- and fair-quality RCTs and prospective comparative cohorts evaluating harms of bariatric surgery.

Study	Procedure	# of Patients	# of Complications	Median Complication Rate	# of Reoperations	Median Reoperation Rate	Total # of Deaths
Hedberg 2012 ²³	BPD	23	4	17.39%	3	13.04%	0
Mingrone 2012 ³²	BPD	19	6	31.58%	1	5.26%	0
Nanni 2012 ¹⁰⁶	BPD	30	5	16.67%	NR	NR	0
Risstad 2015* ⁴²	BPD	29	43	148.28%	7	24.14%	0
Scopinaro 2011 ¹²⁴	BPD	30	5	16.67%	NR	NR	0
Søvik 2010 ⁵⁰	BPD	29	23	79.31%	1	3.45%	0
Søvik 2011*51	BPD	29	10	34.48%	6	20.69%	0
TOTAL	BPD	29	6	31.58%	3	13.04	0
Angrisani 2007 ¹	LAGB	27	4	14.81%	4	14.81%	0
Angrisani 2013 ^{*58}	LAGB	22	3	13.64%	5	22.73%	0
Bowne 2006 ⁷	LAGB	46	54	117.39%	15	32.61%	1
Brunault 2011 ⁶³	LAGB	102	NR	NR	20	19.61%	NR
Cottam 2006 ⁶⁶	LAGB	181	NR	NR	43	23.76%	0
Courcoulas 2014 ¹⁰	LAGB	24	6	25.00%	1	4.17%	0
Dixon 2008 ¹¹	LAGB	30	6	20.00%	3	10.00%	NR
Dixon 2012 ¹²	LAGB	30	1	3.33%	1	3.33%	0
Himpens 2006 ⁸⁵	LAGB	40	16	40.00%	9	22.50%	NR
Hutter 2011 ⁸⁶	LAGB	12193	175	1.44%	112	0.92%	10
Nguyen 2009 ¹⁰⁸	LAGB	111	15	13.51%	11	9.91%	0
O'Brien 2006 ³³	LAGB	39	7	17.95%	5	12.82%	NR
O'Brien 2013 ³⁵	LAGB	57	31	54.39%	17	29.82%	0
Weber 2004 ¹³⁵	LAGB	103	63	61.17%	27	26.21%	0
TOTAL	LAGB	43	6.5	17.95%	7	14.81%	11

Study	Procedure	Total # of Patients	# of Complications	Median Complication Rate	# of Reoperations	Median Reoperation Rate	Total # of Deaths
Angrisani 200758	RYGB	24	4	16.67%	3	12.50%	0
Angrisani 2013*58	RYGB	21	3	14.29%	3	14.29%	0
Benaiges 2011 ⁶¹	RYGB	95	16	16.84%	NR	NR	0
Bowne 2006 ⁷	RYGB	40	19	47.50%	13	32.50%	0
Cottam 2006 ⁶⁶	RYGB	181	NR	NR	25	13.81%	0
Courcoulas 2014 ¹⁰	RYGB	22	1	4.55%	0	0.00%	0
Hedberg 2012 ²³	RYGB	24	3	12.50%	2	8.33%	1
Helmio 2012 ⁸⁴	RYGB	117	31	26.50%	4	3.42%	0
Hutter 2011 ⁸⁶	RYGB	14491	1005	6.94%	778	5.37%	59
Ikramuddin 2013 ²⁵	RYGB	60	22	36.67%	6	10.00%	0
Kashyap 2013 ⁹¹	RYGB	20	NR	NR	NR	NR	0
Kehagias 2011 ⁹²	RYGB	30	20	66.67%	1	3.33%	0
Laferrere 2008 ⁹⁶	RYGB	9	0	0.00%	NR	NR	NR
Leyba 2011 ⁹⁸	RYGB	75	0	0.00%	NR	NR	0
Liang 2013 ³⁰	RYGB	31	6	19.35%	0	0.00%	0
Mingrone 2012 ¹⁰⁴	RYGB	19	3	15.79%	1	5.26%	0
Nanni 2012 ¹⁰⁶	RYGB	20	1	5.00%	NR	NR	0
Nguyen 2009 ¹⁰⁸	RYGB	111	50	45.05%	14	12.61%	0
Paluszkiewics 2012 ¹¹⁴	RYGB	36	28	77.78%	1	2.78%	0
Peterli 2013 ¹¹⁸	RYGB	110	19	17.27%	0	0.00%	1
Risstad 2015*42	RYGB	31	10	32.26%	1	3.23%	1
Schauer 2012 ⁴⁵	RYGB	50	11	22.00%	3	6.00%	0
Schauer 2014*46	RYGB	48	16	33.33%	0	0.00%	0
Søvik 2010 ⁵⁰	RYGB	31	15	48.39%	2	6.45%	0

Study	Procedure	Total # of Patients	# of Complications	Median Complication Rate	# of Reoperations	Median Reoperation Rate	Total # of Deaths
Søvik 2011*51	RYGB	31	6	19.35%	1	3.23%	0
Weber 2004 ¹³⁵	RYGB	103	35	33.98%	11	10.68%	0
TOTAL	RYGB	34	13	19.35%	3	6.00%	62
Benaiges 2011 ⁶¹	VSG	45	4	8.89%	NR	NR	0
Brunault 2011 ⁶³	VSG	29	8	27.59%	5	17.24%	NR
Helmio 2012 ⁸⁴	VSG	1221	16	1.31%	3	0.25%	0
Himpens 2006 ⁸⁵	VSG	40	9	22.50%	4	10.00%	NR
Hutter 2011 ⁸⁶	VSG	944	53	5.61%	28	2.97%	2
Kashyap 2013 ⁹¹	VSG	20	NR	NR	NR	NR	0
Kehagias 2011 ⁹²	VSG	30	23	76.67%	1	3.33%	0
Leyba 2012 ⁹⁸	VSG	42	4	9.52%	NR	NR	0
Paluszkiewics 2012 ¹¹⁴	VSG	36	29	80.56%	0	0.00%	0
Peterli 2013 ¹¹⁸	VSG	107	9	8.41%	0	0.00%	0
Schauer 2012 ⁴⁵	VSG	50	4	8.00%	1	2.00%	0
Schauer 2014 ^{*46}	VSG	49	7	14.29%	0	0.00%	0
TOTAL	VSG	44	9	9.52%	1	2.00%	2

*Harms from studies with cumulative follow-up are subtracted from the previous report's data.

Author/Year	Intervention	# of Patients	Study Follow- up (years)	Patient Characteristics	Complications	Reoperations	Mortality
Cossu 2007 ²⁸¹	BPD	138	Mean: 5 Range: 2- 8	40% male Mean BMI 51.2	25 total 14 post- anastomotic stomal ulcers	11 total 7 for intestinal obstruction 2 for anastomotic ulcers 2 for post- anastomotic stomal ulcer	Early (<30 days): 3/141
Marceau 2007 ²⁸²	BPD	1423	Mean: 7.3 Range: 2- 15	Mean age 40.1 28% male Mean BMI 51.5	Kidney stones: 14.8% Malnutrition: 5.0% Anemia: 14%	259 total 83 for intestinal obstruction 176 for incisional hernia	Overall: 67/1423 Early (<30 days): 16/1423

Author/Year	Intervention	# of Patients	Study Follow- up (years)	Patient Characteristics	Complications	Reoperations	Mortality
Busetto 2014 ²⁸³	LAGB	318	Mean: 12.7	Mean age 38.6 18% male Mean BMI 46.7	 148 total 12 conversions to open surgery 136 band-related complications 136 	116 total (patients) - some patients required more than 1 redo surgery - primarily due to band-related complications	Overall: 15/318
Chevallier 2004 ²⁸⁴	LAGB	1000	7	Mean age 40.4 10% male Mean BMI 44.3	192 total 12 were life- threatening 12 conversions to open surgery	111 total 78 related to band slippage 22 related to port problems	Overall: 0
Jenkins 2006 ²⁸⁵	LAGB	125	Mean: 2.8 Range: 0.9-7.6	Median age 44 14% male Mean BMI 49	18 total 4 open conversions 1 failed band insertion 13 reoperations	13 total 8 for port problems 5 for band removal	Overall: 0
Naef 2007 ²⁸⁶	LAGB	128	Mean: 5 Range: 4.3-6.3	Mean age 40.2 32% male Mean BMI 44.5	22 total Early complications (<30 days): 8/128 -5 minor, 2 major Late complications (>30 days): 14/128 -2 minor, 12 major	15 total (including 2 band-removals and 7 re- bandings)	Overall: 0
Owers 2013 ²⁸⁷	LAGB	932	10	Mean age 43 14% male Mean BMI 43.3	347 total 133 for band- slippage 136 for port- related issues	98 total 82 for band removal related to: - 60 band- slippage - 17 for erosion - 5 band intolerance 16 for port issues (removal or replacement)	Overall: 1 death due to biliary peritonitis in a patient who had undergone simultaneous cholecystectomy

Author/Year	Intervention	# of Patients	Study Follow- up (vears)	Patient Characteristics	Complications	Reoperations	Mortality
Phillips 2009 ²⁸⁸	LAGB	276	3	Mean age 38.6 22% male Mean BMI 44.5	164 total 53 for gastroesophageal reflux 36 for dysphagia 18 for port-site pain	42 total 2 for band replacements 9 band revisions 5 port replacements 22 port revisions 4 explants	Early (<30 days): 0 Overall: 1/276 related to port replacement surgery
Silecchia 2008 ²⁸⁹	LAGB	448	Mean: 3.2	Mean age 39.4 17% male Mean BMI 43.1	Overall complications not reported	88 total 29 were minor 59 were major Most common reasons: 22 for pouch dilation 12 for band erosion	None reported
Edholm 2013 ²⁹⁰	RYGB	539	Mean: 11.4 Range: 7- 11	Mean age 37.9 17% male Mean BMI 44.5	Overall complications not reported	136 reoperations (including revisions, cholecystectomy, incisional hernias, and bowel obstruction)	None reported
Obeid 2012 ²⁹¹	RYGB	172	Range: 2- 5	Mean age 41 24% male Mean BMI 46	81 total 33 symptomatic internal hernias 22 marginal ulcers 19 gastro- jejunostomy strictures 7 other complications	34 reoperations 33 for internal hernia 1 for small bowel resection	None reported
Suter 2011 ²⁹²	RYGB	379	5	Mean age 39.4 26% male Mean BMI 46.3	136 total Majority of complications (43) were symptomatic internal hernia, followed by anastomotic stricture (25)	46 reoperations (all for obstruction and/or internal hernia)	Late deaths (≥2 years following surgery): 9 None were related to surgery

Methods

We conducted a Bayesian network meta-analysis to compare discontinuation from adverse events with each drug of interest. Data were extracted from the peer-reviewed studies included in our sample and analyzed using WinBUGS software (MRC Biostatistics Unit, Cambridge, UK) via an Excel-based interface (NetMetaXL, Ottawa, Canada).²⁷⁸

We used a random-effects model with vague priors, as this approach is commonly understood to be appropriate when generalizations are to be made from larger and more diverse groups of studies and patients, or when there is heterogeneity across studies' methods and researchers; such models incorporate the most conservative assumptions around study characteristics.^{279,280} Our decision to report results based on the random-effects model is supported by comparison of diagnostic statistics, which suggest a slightly better goodness-of-fit than that of a fixed effect model.

Results

Figure E1. Network Meta-Analysis of Discontinuation from Adverse Events: Medications and Lifestyle Management



Table E3. Harms associated with liraglutide.

Study	No. liraglutide / total sample	% female; mean age; mean BMI	Follow-up	Overall Adverse Events	Discontinuation from Adverse Events
Astrup 2012 ⁴	93/564	76.0; 45.9; 34.7	20 weeks (+84 week extension with crossover)	95.7%	7.5%
Pi-Sunyer 2015 ³⁸	2,487/3,731	78.5; 45.1; 38.3	56 weeks (+12 week partial crossover)	80.3%	9.9%
Wadden 2013 ⁵³	212/422	81.5; 46.2; 35.6	56 weeks	91.5%	8.5%

Table E4. Harms associated with Lorcaserin.

Study	No. lorcaserin (10 mg BID)/total sample	% female; mean age; mean BMI	Follow-up	Overall Adverse Events	Discontinuation from Adverse Events
Fidler 2011 ¹³	1,602/4,004	79.8; 43.8; 36.2	52 weeks	82.6%	7.2%
Martin 2011 ³¹	29/57	68.5; 48.7; 35.6	56 days	NR	0
O'Neil 2012 ³⁶	256/603	54.6; 52.7; 36.0	52 weeks	NR	8.6%
Smith 2010 ⁴⁹	1,595/3,182	84.5; 44.1; 36.2	52 weeks	NR	7.1%
Smith 2009 ⁴⁸	116/469	87%; 41.5; 36.4	12 weeks	NR	4.3%
NR=not reported	·			^	

Table E5. Harms associated with Naltrexone/Bupropion.

Study	No. NB/total sample	% female; mean age; mean BMI	Follow-up	Overall Adverse Events	Discontinuation from Adverse Events
Apovian 2013 ²⁹³	1,001/1,496	84.6; 44.4; 36.2	56 weeks	85.9%	24.3%
Greenway 2010 ²²	583/1,742	85; 44.2; 36.2	56 weeks	83.1%	19.5%
Hollander 2013 ²⁴	265/424	53.6; 53.9; 36.5	56 weeks	90.4%	29.3%
Wadden 2011 ⁵²	591/793	90.5; 45.8; 36.7	56 weeks	NR	25.4%
NR=not reported					

Table E6. Harms associated with Phentermine/Topiramate.

Study	No. P/T / total sample	% female; mean age; mean BMI	Follow-up	Dose	Overall Adverse Events	Discontinuation from Adverse Event
Allison 2012 ²⁹⁴	512/1,267	83.0; 42.6; 42.2	56 weeks	15/92	NR	16.0%
Aronne 2013 ²	107/567	79.0; 44.7; 36.2	28 weeks	7.5/46	NR	15.1%
Gadde 2011 ¹⁵	498/2,487	70.0; 51.1; 36.5	56 weeks	7.5/46	NR	12.0%
Garvey 2014a ²⁹⁴	75/130	69.0; 49.6; 35.4	28 weeks	15/92	94.7%	1.3%
Winslow 2012 ⁵⁴	22/45	47.0; 52.4; 35.7	28 weeks	15/92	90.9	9.1%
NR=not reported						

Appendix F: Economic Modeling

Mortality Relative Risk Multipliers All (≥ 30) 30-34.9 40+ Age 35 - 39.9 18-59 1.37 1.01 1.1 1.03 60-69 1.22 1.44 1.31 1.1 70+ 1.09 2.05 1.69 1.29

Table F1. Relative risk of mortality by age and BMI.

Table F2. Change in health related quality of life as assessed by EQ-5D for each BMI assuming a30% reduction in BMI.

BMI (kg/m²)						
Diabetes						
Age	All (≥ 30)	30-34.9	35-39.9	40+		
Baseline EQ-5D	0.85	0.91	0.86	0.81		
Baseline BMI	40.0	32.5	27.5	45.0		
Baseline co-morbidities	1.7	1.4	1.2	1.9		
Change in BMI – assume 30% reduction throughout	12.0	9.8	8.3	13.5		
Change in HRQoL as assessed by EQ-5D	0.0969	0.0639	0.1034	0.1214		
QALY gained (assumed gains Over year)	0.0969	0.0639	0.1034	0.1214		

BMI = Body mass index; kg = kilogram; m = meter

Table F3.	Cost-effectiveness of bariatric procedures by procedure and 5 year time horizon for
BMI≥30.	

BMI Level/	$Cost(\xi)$	Effectiveness	Cost-effectiveness			
Procedure	e	(QALYs)	Vs. SC	Vs. RYGB		
Standard	\$18,611	4.0632	NA	NA		
Care						
RYGB	\$41,532	4.3330	\$84,971	NA		
VSG	\$35,861	4.3116	\$69,464	Less expensive & less effective (ICER RYGB vs VSG =\$264,759)		
LAGB	\$34,147	4.2499	\$83,217	Less expensive & less effective (ICER RYGB vs LAGB =\$88,912)		
BPD/DS	\$53,846	4.4011	\$104,274	\$180,686		

BPD = biliopancreatic diversion; ICER = incremental cost-effectiveness ratio; LAGB = laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding; RYGB = Roux-en-Y gastric bypass; VSG = vertical sleeve gastrectomy.

NOTE: Because of rounding, performing calculations may not produce the exact results shown.

BMI Level/		Effectiveness	Cost-effectiveness		
Procedure	Cost (\$)	(QALYs)	Vs. SC	Vs. RYGB	
Standard care	\$71,602	15.4488	NA	NA	
RYGB	\$83,245	16.4441	\$5,444	NA	
VSG	\$78,151	16.3695	\$4,911	Less expensive & less effective (ICER RYGB vs VSG =\$68,351)	
LAGB	\$78,455	16.1419	\$5,077	Less expensive & less effective (ICER RYGB vs VSG =\$15,854)	
BPD/DS	\$92,489	16.8416	\$6,207	\$23,252	

Table F4. Cost-effectiveness of bariatric procedures by procedure and 25 year time horizon for BMI≥30.

BPD = biliopancreatic diversion; ICER = incremental cost-effectiveness ratio; LAGB = laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding; RYGB = Roux-en-Y gastric bypass; VSG = vertical sleeve gastrectomy. NOTE: Because of rounding, performing calculations may not produce the exact results shown

Table F5.	Proportion of patients in alive state with co-morbidities: diabetes, hyperlipidemia, an	۱d
hypertens	sion ²⁹⁵ .	

BMI (kg/m²)								
Diabetes	Diabetes							
Age	All (≥ 30)	30-34.9	35 - 39.9	40+				
0-19	1.3%	0.7%	1.4%	2.9%				
20-39	4.9%	2.9%	5.3%	10.2%				
40-59	17.2%	12.1%	19.2%	29.0%				
60+	32.9%	27.0%	36.1%	45.0%				
Hyperlipidemia								
0-19	2.9%	2.2%	3.3%	4.1%				
20-39	11.7%	10.9%	12.2%	13.4%				
40-59	37.7%	37.1%	38.6%	38.0%				
60+	56.7%	56.6%	57.6%	55.6%				
Hypertension								
0-19	2.8%	1.4%	3.2%	6.2%				
20-39	12.4%	9.0%	13.3%	20.8%				
40-59	39.2%	33.6%	42.1%	51.0%				
60+	64.5%	61.1%	66.9%	70.8%				

BMI = Body mass index; kg = kilogram; m = meter

Table F6. Results from probabilistic sensitivity analysis – Cost-effectiveness of bariatric procedures over a 10-year time horizon by procedure for BMI≥30.

BMI Level/ Procedure	Cost (\$)	Effectiveness (QALYs)	Cost-effectiveness (\$/QALY gained)	
			Vs. SC	Vs. RYGB
BMI≥30				
Standard	\$34,923	7.5680	NA	NA
care				
RYGB	\$54,089	8.0804	\$37,267	NA
VSG	\$48,692	8.0427	\$29,145	Less expensive & less effective
LAGB	\$47,582	7.9247	\$35,520	Less expensive & less effective
BPD/DS	\$65,875	8.2312	\$46,414	\$77,934

BPD = biliopancreatic diversion; ICER = incremental cost-effectiveness ratio; LAGB = laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding; RYGB = Roux-en-Y gastric bypass; VSG = vertical sleeve gastrectomy. NOTE: Because of rounding, performing calculations may not produce the exact results shown.

Appendix G: ICER Evidence Matrix

Formulary decisions require a rigorous evaluation of available evidence, a process that entails judgments regarding the quality of individual clinical studies and, ultimately, an assessment of the entire body of evidence regarding a therapeutic agent. To support this latter step, the Institute for Clinical and Economic Review (ICER) has developed the ICER Evidence Rating Matrix[™]. This user's guide to the ICER Matrix was developed with funding provided by the Comparative Effectiveness Research Collaborative Initiative (CER-CI), a joint initiative of the Academy of Managed Care Pharmacy, the International Society of Pharmacoeconomics and Outcomes Research, and the National Pharmaceutical Council (<u>http://www.npcnow.org/issue/cer-collaborative-initiative</u>). The ICER Matrix presents a framework for evaluating the comparative benefits and risks of therapies in a consistent, transparent system leading to an evidence rating that can guide coverage and formulary placement decisions. The purpose of this user's guide is to help members of Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committees and other decision-makers understand the approach embodied in the matrix, and to help them apply it in a reliable, consistent fashion.

The updated ICER Evidence Rating Matrix is shown below, with a key to the single letter ratings on the following page. Fundamentally, the evidence rating reflects a joint judgment of two critical components:

- a) The magnitude of the difference between a therapeutic agent and its comparator in "net health benefit" – the balance between clinical benefits and risks and/or adverse effects (horizontal axis); AND
- b) The level of **certainty** that you have in your best point estimate of net health benefit (vertical axis).



The letter ratings are listed below, according to the level of certainty in the best estimate of net health benefit.

High Certainty

A = Superior

- B = Incremental
- C = Comparable
- D = Inferior

Moderate Certainty

- **B+=Incremental or Better**
- C+=Comparable or Better
- P/I = Promising but Inconclusive
- I = Insufficient

Low Certainty

I = Insufficient

Steps in Applying the ICER Evidence Rating Matrix

1. Establish the specific focus of the comparison to be made and the scope of evidence you will be considering. This process is sometimes referred to as determining the "PICO" – the

Population, Intervention, **C**omparator(s), and **O**utcomes of interest. Depending on the comparison, it is often helpful to also define the specific **T**ime Horizon and **S**etting that will be considered relevant.

- 2. Estimate the magnitude of the comparative net health benefit. Working from the scope of evidence established, it is important to quantify findings from the body of evidence on specific clinical benefits, risks, and other potentially important outcomes, such as adherence, so you can compare these side-by-side for the therapeutic agent and comparator. Some organizations compare each outcome, risk, etc. separately without using a quantitative measure to try to sum the overall comparative balance of benefits and risks between the therapeutic agent and the comparator. For these organizations the estimate of comparative net health benefit must be made qualitatively. Other organizations summarize the balance of benefits and risks using formal mathematical approaches such as health utility analysis, which generates a quantitative summary measure known as the quality-adjusted life year (QALY). What is most important, however, is full and transparent documentation of your rationale for assigning the magnitude of comparative net health benefit into one of four possible categories:
 - Negative: the drug produces a net health benefit inferior to that of the comparator
 - **Comparable:** the drug produces a net health benefit comparable to that of the comparator
 - *Small:* the drug produces a small positive net health benefit relative to the comparator
 - **Substantial:** the drug produces a substantial (moderate-large) positive net health benefit relative to the comparator
- 3. Assign a level of certainty to the estimate of comparative net health benefit. Given the strength of the evidence on comparative benefits and risks, a "conceptual confidence interval" around the original estimate of comparative net health benefit can be made, leading you to an assignment of the overall level of certainty in that estimate. Rather than assigning certainty by using a fixed equation weighting different attributes of the body of evidence, we recommend formal documentation of the consideration of 5 major domains related to strength of evidence: (1) Level of Bias—how much risk of bias is there in the study designs that comprise the entire evidence base? (2) Applicability—how generalizable are the results to real-world populations and conditions? (3) Consistency—do the studies produce similar treatment effects, or do they conflict in some ways? (4) Directness—are direct or indirect comparisons of therapies available, and/or are direct patient outcomes measured or only surrogate outcomes, and if surrogate outcomes only, how validated are these measures? (5) Precision—does the overall database include enough robust data to provide precise estimates of benefits and harms, or are estimates/confidence intervals quite broad?

If you believe that your "conceptual confidence interval" around the point estimate of comparative net health benefit is limited to the boundaries of one of the four categories of comparative net health benefit above, your level of certainty is "high". "Moderate" certainty reflects conceptual confidence interval s extending across two or three categories, and may

include drugs for which your conceptual confidence interval includes a small likelihood of a negative comparative net health benefit. When the evidence cannot provide enough certainty to limit your conceptual confidence interval within two to three categories of comparative net health benefit, then you have "low" certainty.

4. Assign a joint rating in the Evidence Rating Matrix. The final step is the assignment of the joint rating of magnitude of comparative net health benefit and level of certainty. As shown again in the figure on the following page, when your certainty is "high," the estimate of net benefit is relatively assured, and so there are distinct labels available: an A rating indicates a high certainty of a substantial comparative net benefit. As the magnitude of comparative net health benefit decreases, the rating moves accordingly, to B (incremental), C (comparable), and finally D, indicating an inferior or negative comparative net health benefit for the therapeutic agent relative to the comparator.

When the level of certainty in the point estimate is only **"moderate,"** the summary ratings differ based on the location of the point estimate and the ends of the boundaries of the conceptual confidence interval for comparative net health benefit. The ratings associated with moderate certainty include **B**+ (incremental or better), which indicates a point estimate of small <u>or</u> substantial net health benefit and a conceptual confidence interval whose lower end does not extend into the comparable range. The rating **C**+ (comparable or better) reflects a point estimate of either comparable, small, <u>or</u> substantial net health benefit and a lower bound of the conceptual confidence interval that does not extend into the inferior range. These ratings may be particularly useful for new drugs that have been tested using noninferiority trial designs, or those involving modifications to an existing agent to provide adherence or safety advantages.

Another summary rating reflecting moderate certainty is **P/I** (promising but inconclusive). This rating is used to describe an agent with evidence suggesting that it provides a comparable, small, or substantial net benefit over the comparator. However, in contrast to ratings **B+** and **C+**, **P/I** is the rating given when the conceptual confidence interval includes a small likelihood that the comparative net health benefit might actually be negative. In our experience the **P/I** rating is a common rating when assessing the evidence on novel agents that have received regulatory approval with evidence of some benefit over placebo or the standard of care, but without robust evidence regarding safety profiles when used in community practice.

The final rating category is I (insufficient). This is used in two situations: (a) when there is moderate certainty that the best point estimate of a drug's comparative net health benefit is comparable, but there is judged to be a moderate-high likelihood that further evidence could reveal that the comparative net health benefit is actually negative; and (b) <u>any</u> situation in which the level of certainty in the evidence is **"low,"** indicating that limitations in the body of evidence are so serious that no firm point estimate can be given and/or the conceptual confidence interval for comparative net health benefit extends across all 4 categories. This rating would be a common outcome for assessments of the comparative effectiveness of two active drugs, when there are rarely good head-to-head data available; this rating might also commonly reflect the evidence available to judge the comparative effectiveness of a drug being used for an off-label indication.

Comparative Clinical Effectiveness



Comparative Net Health Benefit

<u>Appendix H: Head-to-Head Comparisons of</u> <u>Surgical Procedures</u>

Gastric Bypass vs. Sleeve Gastrectomy

We identified a total of six RCTs and six prospective comparative cohort studies that met our criteria for good or fair quality, involved comparisons of RYGB to VSG, and had at least 12 months of follow-up. An additional RCT described previously compared both RYGB and VSG to nonsurgical management.⁴⁵ Characteristics of these studies and main results can be found in Appendix B.

Impact on Measures of Body Weight

Across all seven RCTs of interest,^{41,45,92,114,117,118,134} reductions in BMI (11-15 points on average, irrespective of baseline values) and other measures of body weight change from baseline were substantial for both RYGB and VSG, but did not differ statistically in <u>any</u> of these studies. We conducted a meta-analysis of mean BMI at study end among those RCTs reporting these values along with appropriate measures of variance and drew similar conclusions (mean difference 0.30, 95% CI -0.83, 1.42) (see Figure G1 below). Similarly, no statistical differences were observed in any of the prospective cohort studies. One cohort of 136 patients (mean age 42, 72% female, mean BMI 45) reported a percentage of excess BMI loss of 76% for RYGB at 2 years vs. 63% for VSG, but this difference was not tested statistically.⁷⁹

Figure H1. Meta-analysis of mean BMI at study end: RYGB vs. VSG



Heterogeneity: Tau²= 0.28; Q=3.7; df=3; l²=20% Test for overall effect: Z=0.52 (p=0.605)

Impact on Resolution of Comorbidities

Resolution of comorbidities was assessed as a binary variable in a total of four studies comparing RYGB to VSG.^{61,62,114,118} Heterogeneity in study designs and patient populations precluded metaanalysis of these studies. As with body weight measures, comorbidity resolution was substantial for both types of surgery and did not statistically differ between groups for nearly all comparisons. In a cohort comparison of 140 patients (mean age 45, 82% female, mean BMI 46) who were followed for 12 months,⁶¹ resolution of hypertension did not differ between groups, but resolution of hyperlipidemia did (100% vs. 75% for RYGB and VSG respectively, p=0.014). An RCT of 217 patients (mean age 43, 72% female, mean BMI 44)¹¹⁸ found no statistical differences in one-year resolution of hypertension, dyslipidemia, diabetes, sleep apnea, back or joint pain, hyperuricemia (excess uric acid in blood), or depression between groups. A statistical difference was noted for resolution of gastroesophageal reflux disease (GERD), however (23% vs. 14% for RYGB vs. VSG, p=0.008).

Impact on Other Outcomes

Limited data were available from RCTs and prospective cohort studies on the comparative impact of RYGB vs. VSG on other key outcomes. In the Benaiges study of 140 patients,⁶¹ a 40-50% reduction in cardiovascular risk was observed using two scoring mechanisms with both procedures, but no significant differences were found between groups. In the previously-mentioned cohort study of 136 patients,⁷⁹ a specific focus was placed on nutritional deficiencies following surgery. At a mean of two years of follow-up, significantly fewer patients undergoing VSG developed incident deficiencies in vitamin B₁₂ (18% vs. 58% for RYGB, p<0.0001), and vitamin D (32% vs. 52%, p=0.02) as well as secondary hyperparathyroidism (14% vs. 33%, p=0.02).

Retrospective Cohort Studies

We identified 11 retrospective cohort studies of good- or fair-quality that compared outcomes for RYGB and VSG patients and had at least 12 months of follow-up.^{9,69,95,99,109,112,125,132,133,136,296} No statistically-significant differences were found in any key measure of clinical benefit in nine of the 11 studies. One of these studies involved a matched comparison of nearly 9,000 patients receiving VSG, RYGB, or LAGB in a voluntary state registry in Michigan (mean age 46, 74% female, mean BMI 48).⁹ In the pairwise comparison of RYGB to VSG, the former was found to result in statistically-significantly greater excess weight loss, greater resolution of type 2 diabetes and dyslipidemia, and improved quality of life and patient satisfaction at three years versus VSG. The other study was a single-center evaluation of 77 "super-obese" (BMI 50-59.9 kg/m²) patients who were followed for one year.¹³⁶ The percentage of excess weight lost at one year was significantly higher in the RYGB group (64% vs. 44% for VSG, p<0.05).

Gastric Bypass vs. Gastric Banding

We identified three RCT reports and four prospective comparative cohort studies of good- or fairquality that evaluated outcomes for RYGB and LAGB over a minimum of 12 months of follow-up. Details of each study and main results can be found in Appendix B. Of note, two of the RCT reports related to five- and 10-year follow-up from a single RCT (Angrisani 2007; Angrisani 2013).^{1,58} Differences in study design and the outcomes measured precluded formal meta-analysis of outcomes in this comparison set; study findings are nonetheless summarized descriptively below.

Impact on Measures of Body Weight

Angrisani and colleagues randomized 51 patients (mean age 34, 82% female, mean BMI 44) to receive RYGB or LAGB in a single-center evaluation in which patients were followed for five years;⁵⁸ one of the 27 LAGB patients was lost to follow-up during this period. At five years, mean BMI was statistically-significantly lower for RYGB relative to LAGB (29.8 vs. 34.9, p<0.001), while the percentage of excess weight loss was significantly greater for RYGB (67% vs. 48%, p<0.001). At 10 years, a total of 5/27 LAGB (19%) and 3/24 (13%) RYGB patients were lost to follow-up. Among remaining patients, BMI was essentially unchanged in the RYGB group (30.0 vs. 29.8 at five years), while BMI increased somewhat in the LAGB group (36.0 vs. 34.9 at five years). Excess weight loss remained in favor of RYGB (69% vs. 46% for LAGB, p=0.03).

The other RCT was a fair-quality evaluation of 111 RYGB and 86 LAGB patients (mean age 43, 77% female, mean BMI 47) who were followed for a mean of 4.2 years at a single bariatric surgical clinic.¹⁰⁸ Treatment groups were imbalanced because a greater number of LAGB patients could not obtain insurance approval for surgery. Excess weight loss was statistically-significantly higher in the RYGB group (68.4% vs. 45.4%, p<0.05). In addition, treatment failure, defined as conversion to another procedure because of failure to lose weight or <20% excess weight loss, occurred in 17% of LAGB patients and zero RYGB patients (not statistically tested).

Similar findings were observed in the five prospective cohort comparisons.^{7,66,121,135} The largest of these examined 1,733 individuals (1,102 and 631 for RYGB and LAGB respectively) (mean age 44, 85% female, mean BMI 50) at a single large institution, and followed patients for two years.¹²¹ Excess weight loss was statistically-significantly greater for RYGB at two years (75% vs. 44% for LAGB, p<0.0001), and RYGB patients achieved >40% excess weight loss more quickly than their LAGB counterparts.

Impact on Resolution of Comorbidities

Resolution of comorbidities was assessed in binary fashion in one of the RCTs and three cohort studies. Five-year data from the Angrisani RCT⁵⁸ indicated that diabetes, hyperlipidemia, and sleep

apnea had resolved in the four patients with these conditions at baseline, regardless of surgical assignment. The only measured comorbidity that remained unresolved was hypertension in three LAGB patients at baseline.

Results were somewhat mixed in the cohort studies. In an evaluation of 106 individuals (mean age 43, 80% female, mean BMI 56) followed for a median of 16 months,⁷ RYGB was associated with significantly greater resolution of sleep apnea (88% vs. 39%, p=0.01), but no statistical differences in resolution of diabetes, hypertension, dyslipidemia, asthma, or arthritis. In contrast, a matched evaluation of 362 patients (mean age 43, 84% female, mean BMI 47) followed for up to three years found statistically greater levels of resolution of diabetes, hyperlipidemia, and hypertension among those receiving RYGB.⁶⁶ Finally, another matched comparison of 206 patients (mean age 40, 79% female, mean BMI 48) showed statistically greater resolution of type 2 diabetes and dyslipidemia among RYGB patients, but no statistical difference in hypertension.

Impact on Other Outcomes

Limited data were available on the comparative impact of RYGB vs. LAGB with regard to other outcomes. The previously-mentioned Bowne cohort study of 106 patients⁷ measured patient satisfaction using a 4-point rating system, and found that 80% of RYGB patients reported that they were very satisfied with the procedure vs. 45% receiving LAGB (p=0.006). The Nguyen RCT evaluated the impact of surgery on health-related quality of life using the SF-36;¹⁰⁸ while some differences in certain domains were noted at earlier timepoints, no statistically-significant differences were noted in individual domains or summary scores by 12 months of follow-up.

Retrospective Cohort Studies

Comparisons of RYGB to LAGB were performed in 13 retrospective cohort studies following patients for at least one year.^{3,8,9,16,89,93,95,105,115,116,119,122,130,137} Details of these studies can be found in Appendix B. Findings mirrored those of available RCTs and prospective cohort studies in all but one of these retrospective evaluations. In an evaluation of 590 patients treated at a single center (mean age 41, 80% female, mean BMI 47), differences in excess weight loss at 12 months were similar to that reported in other studies (65% vs. 39%, p<0.001).¹⁶ By 18 months, however, differences had narrowed (63% vs. 55%) and were no longer statistically significant. No data were provided on attrition of the study sample from 12 to 18 months.

Gastric Bypass vs. Biliopancreatic Diversion (With or Without Duodenal Switch)

We identified five reports on three RCTs^{23,42,50,51,111} and one prospective cohort study¹⁰⁶ directly comparing RYGB with BPD, with or without DS, of good- or fair-quality, and with follow-up of at least 12 months. Details of each study and major findings are provided in Appendix B.

Impact on Measures of Body Weight

In the three available RCTs, there was consistent and statistically-significantly greater reductions in measures of body weight with BPD/DS relative to RYGB, with mean reductions of 6-8.5 BMI points in all three studies. Unfortunately, appropriate measures of variance were available in only two of these RCTs, so meta-analyses were not conducted. Findings were similar for the prospective cohort study,¹⁰⁶ but could not be included in a meta-analysis because of a lack of hypothesis testing of body-weight measures.

The durability of procedure performance was examined in the three reports of the Søvik RCT. In the 2010 Søvik study, 60 super-obese patients (mean age 35, 70% female, mean BMI 55) were randomized to RYGB or BPD/DS and followed for two years. Mean BMI at 12 months was statistically-significantly lower in the BPD/DS group (32.5 vs. 38.5 for RYGB, p<0.001). At 24 months of follow-up, BMI continued to decline in both groups but the magnitude of differences was similar (30.1 vs. 37.5, p<0.001).⁵¹ Significant differences in body weight and excess BMI lost were noted in both reports. After five years of follow-up, with a 92% retention rate, the mean BMI for the BPD/DS group remained significantly lower than for the RYGB group (33.1 vs. 41.2 respectively, p<0.001), but weight regain (9-10 kg) was comparable for the two groups.⁴²

Impact on Resolution of Comorbidities

Information on resolution of comorbidities in this comparison set was extremely limited. In an RCT of 47 super-obese patients (mean age 39, 47% female, mean BMI 54) who were followed for up to four years,²³ the percentage of patients achieving an HbA1c level <5% was reported to be 100% in the BPD/DS group vs. 82% in the RYGB group, although this was not statistically tested. In another small RCT of 30 super-obese patients (mean age 35, 67% female, mean BMI 55) who were followed for two years,¹¹¹ the presence of sleep apnea was self-reported by one patient in the BPD/DS group, but this was not tested statistically, nor was it compared to baseline prevalence. Long-term follow-up of the Søvik study in the super-obese (see above) yielded no statistically-significant differences in remission of type 2 diabetes or metabolic syndrome.⁴²

Impact on Other Outcomes

Limited data were available from RCTs and prospective cohort studies on the comparative impact of RYGB versus BPD/DS on other outcomes. A single report of an RCT⁴² included outcomes on health-related quality of life and nutritional deficiencies after five years of follow-up. Although there were statistically-significant improvements from baseline in domain-specific scores of the SF-36 as well as in the Obesity-related Problems Scale, there were no statistical differences between surgery groups. The rate of newly-diagnosed nutritional deficiencies also did not statistically differ.

Retrospective Cohort Studies

We identified five retrospective cohort studies that met our quality criteria and followed patients for at least 12 months.^{73,107,116,120,125} Findings with respect to weight-loss measures were similar to those seen in the prospective evaluations. One evaluation provided more detailed information on comorbidity resolution than presented in prospective studies. This was an analysis of data from a large multicenter registry database, comparing 1,545 BPD/DS patients with a control group of 77,406 undergoing RYGB.¹⁰⁷ Demographics were similar between the two groups (mean age 45, 78% female), but mean BMI was significantly higher in the BPD/DS group (52 vs. 48, p<0.001). Nonetheless, the pre-operative prevalence of hypertension and dyslipidemia was similar in the two groups, and these were resolved to a significantly greater extent by BPD/DS (58% vs. 47% for hypertension and 68% vs. 44% for dyslipidemia, p<0.001 for both comparisons).

Other Surgical Comparisons

Data were limited for other surgical comparisons. We identified a single RCT and single prospective cohort study that met quality and follow-up criteria and involved comparisons other than those described above.^{63,85} Both were comparisons of LAGB to VSG. In the RCT, 80 patients (mean age 38, 80% female, mean BMI 38) were randomized to LAGB or VSG and followed for three years.⁸⁵ VSG was associated with a statistically-significantly greater percentage of excess weight lost (66% vs. 48% for LAGB, p=0.0025), as well as statistically-significantly greater changes in BMI (median of - 27.5 vs. -18, p=0.0004) and body weight (-29.5 vs. -17, p<0.0001). Findings were less dramatic after one year of follow-up in a prospective cohort of 131 patients (mean age 40, 82% female, mean BMI 50),⁶³ but still favored VSG for excess weight loss (44% vs. 35%, p=0.02) as well as significant improvement on the psychosocial domain of the Quality of Life, Obesity, and Dietetics (QOLOD) rating scale.

Surgical comparisons were varied and heterogeneous in retrospective cohort comparisons. They are available for review in Appendix B.

Appendix I. Public and Representative Private Insurer Coverage Policies

Medicare and Medicaid

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS)

http://www.cms.gov/medicare-coverage-database/details/ncddetails.aspx?NCDId=57&ncdver=5&DocID=100.1&SearchType=Advanced&bc=IAAAAAgAAAAAA%33 d%3d& http://www.cms.gov/medicare-coverage-database/details/ncddetails.aspx?NCDId=38&ncdver=3&DocID=40.5&SearchType=Advanced&bc=IAAAAAgAAAAAA%33 %3d& http://www.cms.gov/medicare-coverage-database/details/lcddetails.aspx?LCDId=33362&ContrId=360&ver=13&ContrVer=1&Date=01%2f01%2f2015&DocID=L33 362&SearchType=Advanced&bc=KAAAAAgAAAAAA%3d%3d&

CMS covers open and laparoscopic RYGB, open and laparoscopic BPD with DS, and LAGB for Medicare beneficiaries who have a BMI ≥ 35 kg/m², one or more obesity-related comorbidities (including T2DM), and who have failed prior medical treatment for obesity. Medicare does not cover open AGB, open VSG, or gastric balloon. CMS permits regional Medicare Administrative Contractors (MACs) to determine coverage for laparoscopic VSG based on a determination that "the available evidence does not broadly or clearly distinguish" the patients who may benefit. The MAC with jurisdiction over California, Noridian Healthcare Solutions, permits coverage for laparoscopic VSG if the above three criteria are met but notes that the failure of medication management alone is insufficient to fulfill the prior treatment failure requirement.

In a separate national coverage determination or NCD (40.5), CMS specifies that non-surgical interventions to treat obesity are not covered unless they are essential to the treatment of another medical condition such as hypothyroidism, Cushing's disease, and hypothalamic lesions. Medicare allows Part D plans to determine coverage for weight-loss drugs.

Medi-Cal, California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS)

<u>http://files.medi-cal.ca.gov/pubsdoco/manuals_menu.asp</u> Choose "General Medicine", then "Surgery: Digestive System" <u>http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/Pages/FormularyFile.aspx</u> Medi-Cal covers RYGB, LAGB, BPD with DS, and VSG for patients with a BMI >40 kg/m² or a BMI >35 kg/m² and severe comorbidity including life-threatening cardiovascular or pulmonary disease, sleep apnea, uncontrolled diabetes mellitus, or neurological or musculoskeletal problems likely to improve following surgical treatment. All patients must have failed prior attempts to lose weight through conservative methods (i.e., severe obesity for five or more years despite six months of participation in a diet and/or exercise program).

The Medi-Cal formulary does not include liraglutide, lorcaserin, N/B, and P/T.

Representative National Private Insurer Policies

Aetna

http://www.aetna.com/cpb/medical/data/100_199/0157.html http://www.aetna.com/cpb/medical/data/1_99/0039.html

Aetna covers open and laparoscopic RYGB, VSG, BPD with or without DS, and LAGB for adults with a BMI >40 kg/m² or a BMI >35 kg/m² with a severe comorbidity such as clinically significant obstructive sleep apnea, coronary heart disease, medically refractory hypertension, or T2DM. The same procedures are covered for adolescents who have completed bone growth and have a BMI >40 kg/m² with severe comorbidities or a BMI >50 kg/m² with less serious comorbidities (e.g., impairment in completing daily life activities). All beneficiaries must have failed in prior attempts to lose weight, and they must complete either a physician-supervised nutrition and exercise program or a multi-disciplinary surgery preparatory regimen for at least six out of the past 24 months prior to the surgery.

Aetna considers the following procedures to be investigational and experimental: LAGB revision of RYGB or VSG, bariatric surgery to treat idiopathic intracranial hypertension or infertility, gastric bypass to treat gastroparesis, and RYGB to treat gastroesophageal reflux in non-obese patients. Intragastric balloons, gastrointestinal liners, and vagus nerve blockers are also considered experimental and investigational. Bariatric surgery is not considered a medically necessary treatment for T2DM in patients with a BMI <35 kg/m².

FDA-approved weight reduction medications (including liraglutide, lorcaserin, N/B, and P/T) are covered for patients who do not lose at least one pound per week after 6 months of a weight-loss regimen that includes diet, increased physical activity, and behavioral therapy. Additionally, patients must either have a BMI \geq 30 kg/m² or a BMI \geq 27 kg/m² and serious risk factors that include coronary heart disease, dyslipidemia, hypertension, obstructive sleep apnea, or T2DM.

Anthem

http://www.anthem.com

Anthem covers RYGB, BPD with DS, open and laparoscopic VSG, and LAGB for adults with a BMI \geq 40 kg/m² or a BMI \geq 35 kg/m² with an obesity-related comorbid condition. All candidates for surgery must participate in a documented non-surgical weight loss regimen for six consecutive months within the two years prior to surgery.

BPD *without* DS is considered investigational and not medically necessary, as are LAGB for patients with a BMI between 30 and 35 kg/m² and vagus nerve stimulation for all levels of obesity. Liraglutide, lorcaserin, N/B and P/T are not listed in the Anthem formulary.

CIGNA

https://cignaforhcp.cigna.com/public/content/pdf/coveragePolicies/medical/mm_0051_coveragep ositioncriteria_bariatric_surgery.pdf

CIGNA covers open and laparoscopic RYGB, AGB, and VSG for adults and adolescents who have completed bone growth with a BMI \geq 40 kg/m² or with a BMI \geq 35 kg/m² and clinically significant comorbidities related to obesity. BPD with DS is covered only for patients with a BMI >50 kg/m². All potential surgery candidates must participate in a medical weight-management program supervised by a physician or registered dietician for at least three consecutive months of the past year; pharmaceutical management alone does not satisfy this requirement.

Gastric banding adjustments are covered when performed to control the rate of weight loss and/or to treat other symptoms resulting from gastric banding. CIGNA does not cover RYGB with simultaneous gastric banding, BPD without DS, surgery to treat T2DM alone, intragastric balloon, duodenal-jejunal bypass liners, and vagus nerve blocking or stimulation. Liraglutide, lorcaserin, N/B and P/T are not listed in the CIGNA formulary.

Humana

http://apps.humana.com/tad/tad_new/home.aspx?type=provider

Humana covers open and laparoscopic RYGB, BPD with or without DS, VSG, and LAGB for adults with a BMI \geq 40 kg/m² or a BMI \geq 35 kg/m² with one or more comorbidities. Candidates for surgery must have failed prior medical treatment for obesity and be cleared for the procedure through psychological evaluation within 12 months of the planned surgery to rule out major psychiatric disorders. Humana does not cover open AGB, intragastric balloon, duodenal-jejunal bypass liners,

and vagus nerve blocking or stimulation. Lorcaserin, N/B, and P/T are not covered, and there is no listing for liraglutide in Humana's publicly accessible drug list.

UnitedHealthcare

https://www.unitedhealthcareonline.com

UnitedHealthcare (UHC) covers RYGB, BPD with or without DS, VSG, and LAGB for adults with a BMI >40 kg/m² or a BMI >35 kg/m² with one of the following: T2DM, cardiovascular disease, coronary artery disease with a prior surgical intervention, cardiopulmonary problems, or a history of cardiomyopathy. All patients must also show documented attempts to lose weight through a structured diet program that includes provider notes or weight loss logs for at least six months, and they must undergo a psychological evaluation to rule out major mental health disorders that could interfere with compliance and follow-up requirements after surgery. UHC covers bariatric procedures for adolescents who meet the above criteria if the adolescent patient has reached 95% of their estimated adult height and has a Tanner stage of at least 4 (a level of near-adult development on the Tanner scale).

UHC considers intragastric balloon, gastrointestinal liners, and vagus nerve stimulation or blocking to be unproven and medically unnecessary. All appetite-suppressing medications are in the third formulary tier.

Representative Regional Private Insurer Policies

Health Net

https://www.healthnet.com/portal/provider/content/iwc/provider/unprotected/working_with_HN_/content/medical_policies.action

Health Net covers laparoscopic VSG and open or laparoscopic RYGB and AGB for adults who have been severely obese for at least two years with a BMI \geq 40 kg/m² or a BMI \geq 35kg/m² and at least one comorbidity expected to improve through obesity surgery. The same procedures are covered for physiologically mature adolescents with a BMI >40 kg/m² and a serious obesity-related comorbidity or a BMI >50 kg/m² with a less severe comorbidity.

Other bariatric procedures are covered with restrictions. Long limb (between 100 and 200 cm) RYGB is restricted to patients with a BMI >50 kg/m², and BPD with DS is limited to patients with a BMI >50 kg/m² who will receive a common channel \geq 100 cm. For high risk patients, laparoscopic VSG may only be performed as part of a "planned staged approach." Health Net's policy notes that laparoscopic procedures are contraindicated in patients with a BMI >70 kg/m² and hepatomegaly. LAGB is not considered medically necessary in patients with a BMI between 30 and 35 kg/m²; BPD without DS and intragastric balloons are not considered medically necessary in any patient. Lorcaserin and P/T are specialty-tier drugs, per the public formulary document.

Blue Shield of California

https://www.blueshieldca.com/provider/content_assets/documents/download/public/bscpolicy/B ariatric_Surgery.pdf

Blue Shield of California (BSCA) covers open and laparoscopic RYGB with limb length up to 150 cm, LAGB, and VSG for patients with a BMI \geq 40 kg/m² or a BMI \geq 35 kg/m² and one or more obesity related comorbidities unmanageable through medication. Patients with a BMI \geq 50 kg/m² are eligible for BPD with DS. Adolescents are eligible for the same procedures with a BMI >40 kg/m² and at least one significant comorbidity that medication has failed to manage or a BMI \geq 50 kg/m² with less severe comorbidities. All patients must be psychologically cleared for bariatric surgery, receive a recommendation from a bariatric surgeon for the procedure, and provide documentation of failure from a previous weight loss attempt lasting at least six of the past 18 months.

BSCA considers BPD without DS and vagus nerve stimulation to be investigational and does not cover them. All anti-obesity drugs require prior authorization, regardless of formulary inclusion; in addition, P/T, lorcaserin, and N/B are all currently excluded from the BSCA formulary.
Appendix J. Previous Systematic Reviews

We identified six systematic reviews of surgical and non-surgical interventions of interest for this review.

Buchwald 2004

Buchwald H, Avidor Y, Braunwald E, et al. Bariatric surgery: a systematic review and meta-analysis. *JAMA*. 2004; 292(14):1724-1737.

A systematic review and meta-analysis evaluated 136 studies comparing the effectiveness and safety of bariatric surgery procedures for impact on weight loss, mortality, and obesity-related comorbidities (i.e., diabetes, hyperlipidemia, hypertension, and obstructive sleep apnea). The overall treatment effect for EWL was 61.2% for all procedures; patients undergoing LAGB, RYGB, VSG, and BPD (with or with DS) had a mean EWL of 47.5%, 61.6%, 68.2%, and 70.1%, respectively. Perioperative mortality ranged from 0.1% to 1.1%. All comorbid conditions either improved or were resolved in at least 62% of patients across all procedures.

Colquitt 2014

Colquitt JL, Pickett K, Loveman E, Frampton GK. Surgery for weight loss in adults. *Cochrane Database Syst Rev.* 2014; 8:CD003641.

A systematic review and meta-analysis of 22 RCTs conducted by the Cochrane Collaboration found that bariatric surgery is associated with greater improvements in weight loss outcomes and comorbidities for all procedures (LAGB, RYGB, BPD with DS, VSG, and VSG with duodenal-jejunal bypass) compared to nonsurgical treatments. Both RYGB and VSG produced greater weight reductions than LAGB, with comparable efficacy between them, and BPD±DS was associated with the greatest weight loss. AEs, including reoperations, were poorly reported and most studies were of short duration (1 to 2 years) so the long-term impact of surgery is unclear. There is a lack of evidence for resolution of comorbidities in people who do not meet the current standards for undergoing bariatric surgery.

Chan 2013

Chan EW, He Y, Chui CSL, Wong AYS, Lau WCY, Wong Ick. Efficacy and safety of lorcaserin in obese adults: a meta-analysis of 1-year RCTs and narrative review on short-term RCTs. *Obesity Reviews*. 2013; 14:383-392.

Chan and colleagues conducted a systematic review and meta-analysis of five RCTs to assess the efficacy and safety of lorcaserin in obese adults. At one-year follow-up, patients lost an average of 3.23 kg (95% confidence interval [CI]: 2.70, 3.75) and had a BMI reduction of 1.16 kg/m² (95% CI: 0.98, 1.34) compared with placebo; lorcaserin also decreased waist circumference, blood pressure, total cholesterol, low-density lipoprotein-cholesterol, and triglycerides. Although the majority of AEs were minor, lorcaserin patients experienced significantly more events of headache, nausea, and dizziness.

Chang 2013

Chang SH, Stoll CR, Song J, Varela JE, Eagon CJ, Colditz GA. The effectiveness and risks of bariatric surgery an updated systematic review and meta-analysis, 2003-2012. *JAMA Surg*. 2014; 149(3):275-287.

Chang and colleagues published a systematic review and meta-analysis of 164 studies evaluating the effectiveness and safety of bariatric surgery; meta-analyses for RCTs and observational studies were conducted separately. Perioperative and postoperative mortality rates were low in both RCT and observational study analyses, with the lowest mortality rate associated with LAGB. Complications were lower in observational studies compared with RCTs, with the lowest rates for VSG and LAGB. However, reoperation rates were the lowest with RYGB and highest with LAGB in both RCT and observational study evaluations. Across the RCTs, EWL increased in years one and two following surgery, but declined in year three. Similarly, observational studies showed that EWL increased between years 1 and 2, but there was no change between years 2 and 3. For comorbidity outcomes, all procedures were associated with significant improvements.

lmaz 2008

Imaz I, Martínez-Cervell C, García-Álvarez EE, Sendra-Gutiérrez JM, González-Enríquez J. Safety and Effectiveness of the Intragastric Balloon for Obesity. A Meta-Analysis. *Obes Surg*. 2008; 18:841-846.

Imaz and colleagues conducted a meta-analysis of 15 articles (3,608 patients) to evaluate the efficacy of the intragastric balloon for weight loss. The authors estimated that at balloon removal, patients lost 14.7 kg (12.2% of initial weight), reduced BMI by 5.7 kg/m², and lost 32.1% of excess weight; however, only two RCTs reported weight loss data at time points after balloon removal. Complications were predominantly mild, and the early removal rate was 4.2%. The sustainability of such weight loss over longer periods of time (i.e., \geq 1 year) is unclear.

Zechmeister-Koss 2014

Zechmeister-Koss I, Huic M, Fischer S. The Duodenal-Jejunal Bypass Liner for the Treatment of Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus and/or Obesity: a Systematic Review. *Obes Surg*. 2014; 24:310-323.

A systematic review of 10 studies with a total of 342 patients evaluated the efficacy and safety of the duodenal-jejunal bypass liner (DJBL) in both diabetic patients with Grade 1 (BMI 30.0-34.9) obesity and patients with Grade II or higher (BMI>=35.0 with comorbidities) obesity. In higher-BMI patients, 12-22% EWL was observed up to 12 weeks after implementation. For the remaining patient-relevant endpoints and patient populations, evidence was either not available or inconsistent. AEs occurred in 64–100% of DJBL patients compared to 0–27 % in the control groups. The authors concluded there is still a lack of sufficient evidence available to recommend the device for routine use.

Appendix K. Ongoing Studies

Title/ Trial Sponsor	Study Design	Comparators	Patient Population	Primary Outcomes	Estimated Completion Date
Gastric bypass				•	
Effect of Long Biliopancreatic	RCT	RYGB 75cm limb	N = 280	Weight reduction	December 2018
Limb RYBG on Weight Loss and			Age 18 – 65	Secondary Outcomes:	
Comorbidities (Elegance)		RYGB 150cm limb	Men and women	Decrease in comorbidities	
			BMI >40 or BMI > 35 with comorbidity	QOL	
NCT01686997		Primary and repeat	All BMI levels accepted in case of repeat	Complications	
		surgery	surgery	Reoperations	
Effects of Laparoscopic Roux-en-Y	Non-RCT	RYGB for patients	N = 200	Fasting plasma glucose up to 36	December 2017
Gastric Bypass on Non-severe		with BMI < 28	Age 18 – 65	months post-surgery	
Obesity with Type 2 Diabetes			Men and women	Other outcomes:	
Mellitus		RYGB for patients	T2DM for less than 15 years	HbA1c and weight loss up to 36	
		with BMI 28 – 35	No T1DM	months post-surgery	
NCT02091323					
Gastric Banding				•	•
HERO Study: Helping Evaluate	Obs. Cohort	LAGB (LAP-BAND AP)	N = 1,106	Change in weight, waist and hip	March 2016
Reduction in Obesity			Age > 18	circumference	
			Men and women	Change in concomitant medication	
NCT00953173			BMI > 40, BMI > 35 with comorbidity, or	use	
			weight 100lb over ideal	Change in health-related quality of life	
			No prior bariatric surgery		
			No type 1 diabetes		
Multiple Procedures or Interventi	ons				
Comparison of Laparoscopic	RCT	Sleeve Gastrectomy	N = 200	Effectiveness in terms of weight loss	August 2016
Sleeve Gastrectomy and Roux-Y-			Age 18 – 60	Reduction of comorbidity	
gastric bypass in the Treatment		Gastric Bypass	Men and women	QOL	
of Morbid Obesity			BMI > 40		

Title/ Trial Sponsor	Study Design	Comparators	Patient Population	Primary Outcomes	Estimated Completion Date
NCT00356213					
Medication Management		·			
A Study to Evaluate the Effect of Long-term Treatment with BELVIQ (Lorcaserin HCl) on the Incidence of Major Adverse Cardiovascular Events and Conversion to Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus in Obese and Overweight Subjects with Cardiovascular Disease or Multiple Cardiovascular Risk Factors (CAMELLIA-TIMI)	RCT	Lorcaserin HCl Placebo	N = 12,000 Age ≥ 40 Men and women BMI ≥ 27 Must have established CVD If no CVD, men ≥ 50 or women ≥ 55 with T2DM, no established CVD, and at least one CVD risk factor No moderate or greater congestive heart failure (CHF), pulmonary hypertension, renal impairment Not taking other weight loss drugs	Time from randomization to first major adverse cardiovascular event (MACE) Time from randomization to conversion to T2DM	September 2018
A Toolbox Approach to Obesity Treatment in Primary Care NCT01922934	RCT	Commercial weight loss program, group behavioral weight loss program, dietary supplement, Phentermine / topiramate Usual care	N = 350 Age 18 – 80 Men and Women BMI between 30 and 45 Obesity-related comorbidity No heart attack or stroke within 6 months No cancer in past 5 years No substance abuse No bipolar disorder or schizophrenia	Weight change at 1 year	December 2016
Cardiovascular Outcomes Study of Naltrexone SR/Bupropion SR in Overweight and Obese Subjects with Cardiovascular Risk Factors (The Light Study)	RCT	Naltrexone SR / bupropion SR and behavioral weight management program	N = 10,400 Women aged ≥ 50, men aged ≥ 45 BMI 27 – 50 CVD with at least one of: History of myocardial infarction (MI)	Time from randomization to first confirmed occurrence of MACE	July 2017

Title/ Trial Sponsor	Study Design	Comparators	Patient Population	Primary Outcomes	Estimated Completion Date
NCT01601704		Placebo and	History of coronary, carotid, or		
		behavioral weight	peripheral revascularization		
		management program			
			And/or T2DM with two of the following:		
			Hypertension		
			Dyslipidemia		
			Low HDL cholesterol		
			Current tobacco smoker		
			No planned barlatric surgery		
			nervosa, bulimia		
			No history of stroke		
			No MI within past 3 months		
			No angina pectoris Grade 3 or 4		
			No history of stroke		
Intragastric Balloon					
Intragastric Balloon, Air Versus	RCT	Air-filled intragastric	N = 300	Tolerability of device for 6 months	August 2016
Fluid Filled: Randomized		balloon	Men and women	Secondary outcome:	
Prospective Study			Morbid obesity	Weight loss by kg and BMI at 6	
		Liquid-filled	No mental health disorder	months	
NCT02129296		intragastric balloon	No esophageal varices, big hiatus hernia,		
			ulcers		
			No gastric vascular malformations		
Effect of Gastric Balloon in	Non-RCT	Intragastric balloon	N = 300	Effect of weight loss each month for 6	December 2016
Morbid Obesity: A Prospective		for BMI between 35	Men and women	months	
Study		and 45	Morbid obesity		
			No esophageal or gastric abnormalities		
NC102128165		Intragastric balloon	No psychological health issues		
		TOT BIVII > 45			

Title/ Trial Sponsor	Study Design	Comparators	Patient Population	Primary Outcomes	Estimated Completion Date
Duodenal-jejunal bypass liner					
Safety and Efficacy of EndoBarrier	RCT	Duodenal-jejunal	N = 500	Improvement in HbA1c at 12 months	December 2016
in Subjects With Type 2 Diabetes		bypass liner	Age 21 – 65	Secondary Outcome:	
Who Are Obese (ENDO)		(EndoBarrier)	Men and women	Weight loss at 12 months	
			BMI from 30 – 55	Improvement in cardiovascular risk	
NCT01728116		Sham device	HbA1c from 7.5% to 10%	factors at 12 months	
			No T1DM		
			No previous GI surgery or GI anatomical		
			findings		
			No prescription antithrombotic therapy		
Vagus nerve block devices	•		1	<u> </u>	
ReCharge Clinical Trial	RCT	Implantable vagus	N = 234	Number of patients achieving ≥ 10%	December 2016
		nerve stimulator	Age 18 – 65	EWL at 1 year post-randomization	
NCT01327976		(MAESTRO RC2)	Men and women	Rate of serious AEs	
			BMI 40 – 45		
		Sham device	BMI 35 – 39.9 and at least one severe		
			obesity-related comorbidity		
			T2DM allowable if well-controlled		
			Failed diet and exercise program in past		
			5 years		
			No GI surgery		
			No weight-loss medication during or 3		
			months before participation		
			No history of pulmonary embolism,		
			Crohn's disease, ulcerative colitis		

Appendix L. Outcomes by Baseline Mean BMI Category

Baseline Mean BMI Category									
		30-34.99		35-39.99		40-49.99		>50	
		Median	Range	Median	Range	Median	Range	Median	Range
	RYGB	25.4	(19.6-34.3)	26.0	(24.1-33.1)	32.2	(7.5-52.3)	34	(10.1-46.7)
	VSG	21.3	(21.3-21.3)	22.0	(19.1-22.5)	28.4	(15.0-37.1)	30.1	(11.0-39.4)
	LAGB	16.8	(11.8-21.7)	16.8	(13.0-17.5)	20.4	(6.0-46.8)	17.7	(1.0-31.8)
% Decrease BMI	BPD/DS	31.8	(17.3-46.3)			32.6	(15.9-50.8)	43.4	(39.2-47.7)
	Follow-up (months)	12.0	(3.0-45.2)	15.3	(12.0-60.0)	12.0	(0.5-120.0)	22.6	(1.2-84.0)
	No. Studies	7		6		79		22	
	Good/Fair/Poor	2/3/2		3/1/2		9/34/36		4/10/8	
	RYGB	70.0		77.0	(61.0-92.9)	67.0	(27.1-88.0)	61.8	(43.8-72.3)
	VSG			58.5	(51.0-66.0)	59.2	(30.7-83.0)	47.5	(25.4-75.0)
0/ F)4/I	LAGB	87.2		50.1	(34.0-62.5)	43.5	(18.2-78.8)	45.9	(31.0-73.0)
% EWL	BPD/DS					52.7	(34.9-70.4)	73.4	63.0-84.0)
	Follow-up (months)	18.0	(12.0-24.0)	30.0	(18.7-60.0)	24.0	(0.47-120)	24.0	(12.0-84.0)
	No. Studies	2		4		57		15	
	Good/Fair/Poor	1/0/1		1/1/2		6/27/24		1/8/6	
	RYGB			90.0		71.0	(22.0-100.0)	62.6	(60.7-69.2)
	VSG					64.3	(23.5-100.0)		
~ .	LAGB			40.0		57.5	(18.0-100.0)	54.3	(33.3-66.7)
% Improvement Hypertension	BPD/DS	67.0				81.4	(68.6-87.0)	68.3	(66.7-69.9)
	Follow-up (months)	36.0		60.0		21.0	(3.5-84.0)	24.0	(12.0-50.4)
	No. Studies	1		1		29		5	
	Good/Fair/Poor	0/1/0		0/0/1		4/12/13		1/3/1	

Baseline Mean BMI Category									
		30-34.99		35-39.99		40-49.99		>50	
		Median	Range	Median	Range	Median	Range	Median	Range
	RYGB	51.1	(33.0-92.3)	73.4	(66.7-80.0)	79.0	(33.0-100.0)	77.1	(40.0-100.0)
	VSG	50.0	(50.0-50.0)			77.3	(36.0-100.0)	88.9	(88.9-88.9)
0/ 1	LAGB	33.0	(21.1-100.0)	50.0	(25.0-73.0)	50.0	(17.0-100.0)	52.3	(36.4-66.7)
% Improvement	BPD/DS	84.8	(83.0-84.8)			87.1	(81.5-92.7)	91.4	(82.7-100.0)
12010	Follow-up (months)	12.0	(3.0-45.2)	24.0	(12.0-60.0)	16.0	(1.0-62.7)	24.0	(1.5-50.4)
	No. Studies	6		3		35		7	
	Good/Fair/Poor	0/3/3		2/0/1		3/14/18		1/4/2	
	RYGB	89.0				70.5	(10.0-100.0)	56.7	(49.3-88.0)
	VSG					62.0	(6.0-99.0)		
	LAGB					29.0	(3.0-55.0)	46.2	(39.3-66.7)
% Improvement	BPD/DS	90.0						79.5	(78.9-80.0)
oleep / plied	Follow-up (months)	45.15				21.6	(12.0-36.0)	20.1	(12.0-20.1)
	No. Studies	1		0		11		4	
	Good/Fair/Poor	0/0/1				2/5/4		1/3/0	
	RYGB			100.0		64.5	(6.0-100.0)	52.9	(27.3-58.8)
	VSG					67.5	(35.0-67.5)		
	LAGB			38.0		36.5	(0.0-36.5)	34.4	(23.3-45.5)
% Improvement	BPD/DS					90.0	(90.0-90.0)		
Dysiipidemia	Follow-up (months)			60.0		24.0	(12.0-62.7)	16.2	(12.0-50.4)
	No. Studies	0		1		18		3	
	Good/Fair/Poor	0	0		0/0/1		2/9/7		1/1/1

References

Note: the references listed below are numbered differently from those in the associated report.

- Angrisani L, Lorenzo M, Borrelli V. Laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding versus Rouxen-Y gastric bypass: 5-year results of a prospective randomized trial. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2007;3(2):127-132. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2006.12.005.
- Aronne LJ, Wadden T a., Peterson C, Winslow D, Odeh S, Gadde KM. Evaluation of phentermine and topiramate versus phentermine/topiramate extended-release in obese adults. *Obesity*. 2013;21(11):2163-2171. doi:10.1002/oby.20584.
- Arterburn D, Powers JD, Toh S, et al. Comparative Effectiveness of Laparoscopic Adjustable Gastric Banding vs Laparoscopic Gastric Bypass. *JAMA Surg*. 2014;149(12):1279-1287. doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2014.1674.
- 4. Astrup A, Carraro R, Finer N, et al. Safety, tolerability and sustained weight loss over 2 years with the once-daily human GLP-1 analogue, liraglutide. *Int J Obes*. 2012;36(6):890-890. doi:10.1038/ijo.2011.203.
- 5. Astrup A, Rössner S, Van Gaal L, et al. Effects of liraglutide in the treatment of obesity: a randomised, double-blind, placebo-controlled study. *Lancet*. 2009;374(9701):1606-1616. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(09)61375-1.
- Benaiges D, Flores-Le-Roux J a., Pedro-Botet J, et al. Impact of restrictive (Sleeve Gastrectomy) vs hybrid bariatric surgery (roux-en-y gastric bypass) on lipid profile. *Obes Surg.* 2012;22:1268-1275. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0662-8.
- Bowne WB, Julliard K, Castro AE, Shah P, Morgenthal CB, Ferzli GS. Laparoscopic gastric bypass is superior to adjustable gastric band in super morbidly obese patients: A prospective, comparative analysis. *Arch Surg.* 2006;141(July 2006):683-689. doi:10.1001/archsurg.141.7.683.
- Campos GM, Rabl C, Roll GR, et al. Better weight loss, resolution of diabetes, and quality of life for laparoscopic gastric bypass vs banding: results of a 2-cohort pair-matched study. Arch Surg. 2011;146(2):149-155. doi:10.1001/archsurg.2010.316.

- 9. Carlin AM, Zeni TM, English WJ, et al. The comparative effectiveness of sleeve gastrectomy, gastric bypass, and adjustable gastric banding procedures for the treatment of morbid obesity. *Ann Surg*. 2013;257(5):791-797. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e3182879ded.
- Courcoulas AP, Goodpaster BH, Eagleton JK, et al. Surgical vs Medical Treatments for Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus: A Randomized Clinical Trial. *JAMA Surg.* 2014;15213(7):707-715. doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2014.467.
- 11. Dixon JB, Brien PEO, Playfair J, et al. Adjustable Gastric Banding and Conventional Therapy for Type 2 Diabetes. *JAMA*. 2008;299(3):316-323.
- Dixon J, Mbbs P, Schachter L, et al. Surgical vs Conventional Therapy for Weight Loss Treatment of Obstructive Sleep Apnea: A Randomized Controlled Trial. Jama. 2012;308:1142-1149. http://ovidsp.ovid.com/ovidweb.cgi?T=JS&PAGE=reference&D=ovftn&NEWS=N&AN=00 005407-201209190-00034.
- Fidler MC, Sanchez M, Raether B, et al. A one-year randomized trial of lorcaserin for weight loss in obese and overweight adults: The BLOSSOM Trial. *J Clin Endocrinol Metab*. 2011;96(10):3067-3077. doi:10.1210/jc.2011-1256.
- Fuller NR, Pearson S, Lau NS, et al. An intragastric balloon in the treatment of obese individuals with metabolic syndrome: A randomized controlled study. *Obesity*. 2013;21(8):1561-1570. doi:10.1002/oby.20414.
- 15. Gadde KM, Allison DB, Ryan DH, et al. Effects of low-dose, controlled-release, phentermine plus topiramate combination on weight and associated comorbidities in overweight and obese adults (CONQUER): A randomised, placebo-controlled, phase 3 trial. *Lancet*. 2011;377(9774):1341-1352. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(11)60205-5.
- Galvani C, Gorodner M, Moser F, et al. Laparoscopic adjustable gastric band versus laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass: ends justify the means? *Surg Endosc*. 2006;20:934-941. doi:10.1007/s00464-005-0270-y.
- Garvey W, Ryan D, Look M, et al. Two-year sustained weight loss and metabolic benefits with controlled-release phentermine. *Am J Clin Nutr*. 2012;95(2):297-308. doi:10.3945/ajcn.111.024927.INTRODUCTION.

- Garvey WT, Ryan DH, Bohannon NJ V., et al. Weight-Loss Therapy in Type 2 Diabetes: Effects of Phentermine and Topiramate Extended Release. *Diabetes Care*. 2014;37(12):3309-3316. doi:10.2337/dc14-0930.
- 19. Garvey WT, Ryan DH, Henry R, et al. Prevention of type 2 diabetes in subjects with prediabetes and metabolic syndrome treated with phentermine and topiramate extended release. *Diabetes Care*. 2014;37(4):912-921. doi:10.2337/dc13-1518.
- 20. Genco A, Cipriano M, Bacci V, et al. BioEnterics Intragastric Balloon (BIB): a short-term, double-blind, randomised, controlled, crossover study on weight reduction in morbidly obese patients. *Int J Obes*. 2006;30(1):129-133. doi:10.1038/sj.ijo.0803094.
- 21. Genco A, Maselli R, Frangella F, et al. Effect of consecutive intragastric balloon (BIB[®]) plus diet versus single BIB[®] plus diet on eating disorders not otherwise specified (EDNOS) in obese patients. *Obes Surg*. 2013;23(12):2075-2079. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-1028-6.
- 22. Greenway FL, Fujioka K, Plodkowski R a., et al. Effect of naltrexone plus bupropion on weight loss in overweight and obese adults (COR-I): A multicentre, randomised, doubleblind, placebo-controlled, phase 3 trial. *Lancet*. 2010;376(9741):595-605. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(10)60888-4.
- 23. Hedberg J, Sundbom M. Superior weight loss and lower HbA1c 3 years after duodenal switch compared with Roux-en-Y gastric bypass A randomized controlled trial. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2012;8(3):338-343. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2012.01.014.
- Hollander P, Gupta AK, Plodkowski R, et al. Effects of naltrexone sustained-release/bupropion sustained-release combination therapy on body weight and glycemic parameters in overweight and obese patients with type2 diabetes. *Diabetes Care*. 2013;36(12):4022-4029. doi:10.2337/dc13-0234.
- Ikramuddin S, Korner J, Lee W-J, et al. Roux-en-Y Gastric Bypass vs Intensive Medical Management for the Control of Type 2 Diabetes, Hypertension, and Hyperlipidemia. JAMA. 2013;309(21):2240-2249.
- 26. Ikramuddin S, Blackstone RP, Brancatisano A, et al. Effect of Reversible Intermittent Intra-abdominal Vagal Nerve Blockade on Morbid Obesity. *JAMA*. 2014;312(9):915. doi:10.1001/jama.2014.10540.
- 27. Koehestanie P, de Jonge C, Berends FJ, Janssen IM, Bouvy ND, Greve JWM. The Effect of the Endoscopic Duodenal-Jejunal Bypass Liner on Obesity and Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus, a

Multicenter Randomized Controlled Trial. *Ann Surg*. 2014;260(6):984-992. doi:10.1097/SLA.0000000000000794.

- 28. Konopko-Zubrzycka M, Baniukiewicz a., Wróblewski E, et al. The effect of intragastric balloon on plasma ghrelin, leptin, and adiponectin levels in patients with morbid obesity. *J Clin Endocrinol Metab*. 2009;94(5):1644-1649. doi:10.1210/jc.2008-1083.
- 29. Lean M, Carraro R, Finer N, et al. Tolerability of nausea and vomiting and associations with weight loss in a randomized trial of liraglutide in obese, non-diabetic adults. *Int J Obes*. 2014;38(5):689-697. doi:10.1038/ijo.2013.149.
- 30. Liang Z, Wu Q, Chen B, Yu P, Zhao H, Ouyang X. Effect of laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass surgery on type 2 diabetes mellitus with hypertension: A randomized controlled trial. *Diabetes Res Clin Pract*. 2013;101(1):50-56. doi:10.1016/j.diabres.2013.04.005.
- 31. Martin CK, Redman LM, Zhang J, et al. Lorcaserin, a 5-HT2C receptor agonist, reduces body weight by decreasing energy intake without influencing energy expenditure. *J Clin Endocrinol Metab.* 2011;96(3):837-845. doi:10.1210/jc.2010-1848.
- 32. Mingrone G, Panunzi S, De Gaetano A, et al. Bariatric Surgery versus Conventional Medical Therapy for Type 2 Diabetes. *N Engl J Med*. 2012;366:1577-1585. doi:10.1056/NEJMoa1200111.
- 33. O'Brien PE, Dixon JB, Laurie C, et al. Treatment of mild to moderate obesity with laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding or an intensive medical program: a randomized trial.[Summary for patients in Ann Intern Med. 2006 May 2;144(9):I12; PMID: 16670127]. Ann Intern Med. 2006;144:625-633. http://ezproxy.library.usyd.edu.au/login?url=http://ovidsp.ovid.com/ovidweb.cgi?T=JS& CSC=Y&NEWS=N&PAGE=fulltext&D=med4&AN=16670131\nhttp://dd8gh5yx7k.search.se rialssolutions.com/?sid=OVID:medline&id=pmid:16670131&id=doi:&issn=0003-4819&isbn=&volume=144&is.
- 34. O'Brien PE, Sawyer SM, Laurie C, et al. Laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding in Severely Obese Adolescents. *JAMA J Am Med Assoc.* 2010;303(6):519-526.
- 35. O'Brien PE, Brennan L, Laurie C, Brown W. Intensive medical weight loss or laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding in the treatment of mild to moderate obesity: Long-term follow-up of a prospective randomised trial. *Obes Surg*. 2013;23:1345-1353. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-0990-3.

- O'Neil PM, Smith SR, Weissman NJ, et al. Randomized Placebo-Controlled Clinical Trial of Lorcaserin for Weight Loss in Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus: The BLOOM-DM Study. *Obesity*. 2012;20(7):1426-1436. doi:10.1038/oby.2012.66.
- Peker Y, Coskun H, Bozkurt S, Cin N, Atak T, Genc H. Comparison of results of laparoscopic gastric banding and consecutive intragastric balloon application at 18 months: a clinical prospective study. *J Laparoendosc Adv Surg Tech A*. 2011;21(6):471-475. doi:10.1089/lap.2010.0439.
- Pi-Sunyer X, Astrup A, Fujioka K, et al. A Randomized, Controlled Trial of 3.0 mg of Liraglutide in Weight Management. *N Engl J Med*. 2015;373(1):11-22. doi:10.1056/NEJMoa1411892.
- Ponce J, Quebbemann BB, Patterson EJ. Prospective, randomized, multicenter study evaluating safety and efficacy of intragastric dual-balloon in obesity. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2013;9:290-295. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2012.07.007.
- 40. Raffaelli M, Guidone C, Callari C, Iaconelli A, Bellantone R, Mingrone G. Effect of gastric bypass versus diet on cardiovascular risk factors. *Ann Surg.* 2014;259(4):694-699. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e31829d6989.
- 41. Ramón JM, Salvans S, Crous X, et al. Effect of Roux-en-Y Gastric Bypass vs Sleeve Gastrectomy on Glucose and Gut Hormones: A Prospective Randomised Trial. *J Gastrointest Surg.* 2012;16:1116-1122. doi:10.1007/s11605-012-1855-0.
- Risstad H, Søvik TT, Engström M, et al. Five-Year Outcomes After Laparoscopic Gastric Bypass and Laparoscopic Duodenal Switch in Patients With Body Mass Index of 50 to 60. JAMA Surg. 2015:E1-E10. doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2014.3579.
- 43. Romero F, Nicolau J, Flores L, et al. Comparable early changes in gastrointestinal hormones after sleeve gastrectomy and Roux-En-Y gastric bypass surgery for morbidly obese type 2 diabetic subjects. *Surg Endosc*. 2012;26:2231-2239. doi:10.1007/s00464-012-2166-y.
- 44. Sarr MG, Billington CJ, Brancatisano R, et al. The EMPOWER Study: Randomized, prospective, double-blind, multicenter trial of vagal blockade to induce weight loss in morbid obesity. *Obes Surg.* 2012;22(11):1771-1782. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0751-8.

- 45. Schauer PR, Kashyap SR, Wolski K, et al. Bariatric Surgery versus Intensive Medical Therapy in Obese Patients with Diabetes. *N Engl J Med*. 2012;366(17):1567-1576. doi:10.1056/NEJMoa1407764.
- 46. Schauer PR, Bhatt DL, Kirwan JP, et al. Bariatric Surgery versus Intensive Medical Therapy for Diabetes 3-Year Outcomes. *N Engl J Med*. 2014:1-12. doi:10.1056/NEJMoa1401329.
- 47. Shikora SA, Wolfe BM, Apovian CM, et al. Sustained Weight Loss with Vagal Nerve Blockade but Not with Sham: 18-Month Results of the ReCharge Trial. *J Obes*. 2015;2015:1-8.
- Smith SR, Prosser W a, Donahue DJ, Morgan ME, Anderson CM, Shanahan WR. Lorcaserin (APD356), a Selective 5-HT 2C Agonist, Reduces Body Weight in Obese Men and Women. *Obesity*. 2009;17(3):494-503. doi:10.1038/oby.2008.537.
- Smith SR, Weissman NJ, Anderson CM, et al. Multicenter, Placebo-Controlled Trial of Lorcaserin for Weight Management. *N Engl J Med*. 2010;363(3):245-256. doi:10.1056/NEJMc1009975.
- 50. Søvik TT, Taha O, Aasheim ET, et al. Randomized clinical trial of laparoscopic gastric bypass versus laparoscopic duodenal switch for superobesity. *Br J Surg*. 2010;97:160-166. doi:10.1002/bjs.6802.
- 51. Søvik TT, Aasheim ET, Taha O, et al. Weight Loss, Cardiovascular Risk Factors, and Quality of Life After Gastric Bypass and Duodenal Switch. *Ann Intern Med*. 2011;155:281-291.
- 52. Wadden T a, Foreyt JP, Foster GD, et al. Weight Loss With Naltrexone SR/Bupropion SR Combination Therapy as an Adjunct to Behavior Modification: The COR-BMOD Trial. *Obesity*. 2011;19(1):110-120. doi:10.1038/oby.2010.147.
- 53. Wadden T, Hollander P, Klein S, et al. Weight maintenance and additional weight loss with liraglutide after low-calorie-diet-induced weight loss: The SCALE Maintenance randomized study. *Int J Obes*. 2013;37:1443-1451. doi:10.1038/ijo.2013.162.
- 54. Winslow DH, Bowden CH, DiDonato KP, McCullough P a. A Randomized, Double-Blind, Placebo-Controlled Study of an Oral, Extended-Release Formulation of Phentermine/Topiramate for the Treatment of Obstructive Sleep Apnea in Obese Adults. *Sleep*. 2012. doi:10.5665/sleep.2204.

- 55. Alam ML, Van der Schueren BJ, Ahren B, et al. Gastric bypass surgery, but not caloric restriction, decreases dipeptidyl peptidase-4 activity in obese patients with type 2 diabetes. *Diabetes Obes Metab.* 2011;13:378-381. doi:10.1111/j.1463-1326.2011.01358.x.
- Alfa Wali M, Ashrafian H, Schofield KL, et al. Is Social Deprivation Associated with Weight Loss Outcomes Following Bariatric Surgery? A 10-Year Single Institutional Experience. Obes Surg. 2014:2126-2132. doi:10.1007/s11695-014-1290-2.
- 57. Alley JB, Fenton SJ, Harnisch MC, Tapper DN, Pfluke JM, Peterson RM. Quality of life after sleeve gastrectomy and adjustable gastric banding. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2012;8(1):31-40. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2011.03.009.
- 58. Angrisani L, Cutolo PP, Formisano G, Nosso G, Vitolo G. Laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding versus Roux-en-Y gastric bypass: 10-year results of a prospective, randomized trial. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2013;9:405-416. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2006.12.005.
- 59. Ballantyne GH, Farkas D, Laker S, Wasielewski a. Short-term changes in insulin resistance following weight loss surgery for morbid obesity: Laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding versus laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass. *Obes Surg*. 2006;16:1189-1197. doi:10.1381/096089206778392158.
- 60. Bayham BE, Greenway FL, Bellanger DE, O'Neil CE. Early Resolution of Type 2 Diabetes Seen After Roux-en-Y Gastric Bypass and Vertical Sleeve Gastrectomy. *Diabetes Technol Ther*. 2012;14(1):30-34. doi:10.1089/dia.2011.0151.
- 61. Benaiges D, Goday A, Ramon JM, Hernandez E, Pera M, Cano JF. Laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy and laparoscopic gastric bypass are equally effective for reduction of cardiovascular risk in severely obese patients at one year of follow-up. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2011;7(5):575-580. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2011.03.002.
- Benaiges D, Flores Le-Roux J a, Pedro-Botet J, et al. Sleeve gastrectomy and Roux-en-Y gastric bypass are equally effective in correcting insulin resistance. *Int J Surg*. 2013;11(4):309-313. doi:10.1016/j.ijsu.2013.02.007.
- 63. Brunault P, Jacobi D, Léger J, et al. Observations regarding "quality of life" and "comfort with food" after bariatric surgery: Comparison between laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding and sleeve gastrectomy. *Obes Surg.* 2011;21:1225-1231. doi:10.1007/s11695-011-0411-4.

- Busetto L, Mirabelli D, Petroni ML, et al. Comparative long-term mortality after laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding versus nonsurgical controls. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2007;3:496-502. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2007.06.003.
- 65. Chen C-Y, Lee W-J, Asakawa a, et al. Insulin secretion and interleukin-1β dependent mechanisms in human diabetes remission after metabolic surgery. *Curr Med Chem*. 2013;20:2374-2388. doi:10.2174/0929867311320180008.
- 66. Cottam D, Atkinson J, Anderson A, Grace B, Fisher B. A Case-Controlled Matched-Pair Cohort Study of Laparoscopic Roux-en-Y Gastric Bypass and Lap-Band[®] Patients in a Single US Center with Three-Year Follow-up. *Obes Surg*. 2006;16(5):534-540. doi:10.1381/096089206776944913.
- 67. Cotugno M, Nosso G, Saldalamacchia G, et al. Clinical efficacy of bariatric surgery versus liraglutide in patients with type 2 diabetes and severe obesity: a 12-month retrospective evaluation. *Acta Diabetol*. 2015;52:331-336. doi:10.1007/s00592-014-0644-5.
- Coupaye M, Breuil MC, Rivière P, et al. Serum vitamin D increases with weight loss in obese subjects 6 months after roux-en-y gastric bypass. *Obes Surg.* 2013;23:486-493. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0813-y.
- 69. Cutolo PP, Nosso G, Vitolo G, Brancato V, Capaldo B, Angrisani L. Clinical efficacy of laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy vs laparoscopic gastric bypass in obese type 2 diabetic patients: A retrospective comparison. *Obes Surg.* 2012;22(June 2010):1535-1539. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0657-5.CLINICAL.
- 70. Davidson MH, Tonstad S, Oparil S, Schwiers M, Day WW, Bowden CH. Changes in Cardiovascular Risk Associated With Phentermine and Topiramate Extended-Release in Participants With Comorbidities and a Body Mass Index ≥27 kg/m2. Am J Cardiol. 2013;111(8):1131-1138. doi:10.1016/j.amjcard.2012.12.038.
- 71. Del Genio F, Alfonsi L, Marra M, et al. Metabolic and nutritional status changes after 10% weightloss in severely obese patients treated with laparoscopic surgery vs integrated medical treatment. *Obes Surg*. 2007;17:1592-1598. doi:10.1007/s11695-007-9286-9.
- 72. Demaria EJ, Winegar D a, Pate VW, Hutcher NE, Ponce J, Pories WJ. Early postoperative outcomes of metabolic surgery to treat diabetes from sites participating in the ASMBS bariatric surgery center of excellence program as reported in the Bariatric Outcomes

Longitudinal Database. *Ann Surg*. 2010;252(3):559-566; discussion 566-567. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e3181f2aed0.

- 73. Deveney CW, MacCabee D, Marlink K, Welker K, Davis J, McConnell DB. Roux-en-Y divided gastric bypass results in the same weight loss as duodenal switch for morbid obesity. *Am J Surg*. 2004;187:655-659. doi:10.1016/j.amjsurg.2004.01.001.
- Dixon JB, Strauss BJG, Laurie C, O'Brien PE. Changes in Body Composition with Weight Loss: Obese Subjects Randomized to Surgical and Medical Programs*. *Obesity*. 2007;15(5):1187-1198. doi:10.1038/oby.2007.639.
- 75. Dolan K, Hatzifotis M, Newbury L, Fielding G. A Comparison of Laparoscopic Adjustable Gastric Banding and Biliopancreatic Diversion in Superobesity. 2004:165-169.
- 76. Dorman RB, Rasmus NF, Al-Haddad BJS, et al. Benefits and complications of the duodenal switch/biliopancreatic diversion compared to the Roux-en-Y gastric bypass. *Surg (United States)*. 2012;152(4):758-767. doi:10.1016/j.surg.2012.07.023.
- DuPree CE, Blair K, Steele SR, Martin MJ. Laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy in patients with preexisting gastroesophageal reflux disease : a national analysis. *JAMA Surg*. 2014;149:328-334. doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2013.4323.
- Garrido-Sanchez L, Murri M, Rivas-Becerra J, et al. Bypass of the duodenum improves insulin resistance much more rapidly than sleeve gastrectomy. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2012;8(2):145-150. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2011.03.010.
- 79. Gehrer S, Kern B, Peters T, Christofiel-Courtin C, Peterli R. Fewer nutrient Deficiencies after laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy (LSG) than after Laparoscopic Roux-Y-gastric bypass (LRYGB)-a prospective study. *Obes Surg*. 2010;20:447-453. doi:10.1007/s11695-009-0068-4.
- 80. Genco A, Balducci S, Bacci V, et al. Intragastric balloon or diet alone? A retrospective evaluation. *Obes Surg.* 2008;18(8):989-992. doi:10.1007/s11695-007-9383-9.
- Genco A, Cipriano M, Materia A, et al. Laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy versus intragastric balloon: A case-control study. *Surg Endosc Other Interv Tech*. 2009;23(8):1849-1853. doi:10.1007/s00464-008-0285-2.

- 82. Genco A, Cipriano M, Bacci V, et al. Intragastric balloon followed by diet vs intragastric balloon followed by another balloon: A prospective study on 100 patients. *Obes Surg*. 2010;20(11):1496-1500. doi:10.1007/s11695-010-0231-y.
- 83. Halperin F, Ding S-A, Simonson DC, et al. Roux-en-Y Gastric Bypass Surgery or Lifestyle With Intensive Medical Management in Patients With Type 2 Diabetes: Feasibility and 1-Year Results of a Randomized Clinical Trial. JAMA Surg. 2014;02215. doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2014.514.
- 84. Helmiö M, Victorzon M, Ovaska J, et al. SLEEVEPASS: A randomized prospective multicenter study comparing laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy and gastric bypass in the treatment of morbid obesity: preliminary results. *Surg Endosc*. 2012;26:2521-2526. doi:10.1007/s00464-012-2225-4.
- Himpens J, Dapri G, Cadière GB. A prospective randomized study between laparoscopic gastric banding and laparoscopic isolated sleeve gastrectomy: Results after 1 and 3 years. *Obes Surg.* 2006;16:1450-1456. doi:10.1381/096089206778869933.
- Hutter MM, Schirmer BD, Jones DB, et al. First Report from the American College of Surgeons Bariatric Surgery Center Network. *Ann Surg.* 2011;254(3):410-422. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e31822c9dac.
- Iesari S, le Roux CW, De Gaetano A, Manco M, Nanni G, Mingrone G. Twenty-four hour energy expenditure and skeletal muscle gene expression changes after bariatric surgery. *J Clin Endocrinol Metab.* 2013;98(February 2013):E321-E327. doi:10.1210/jc.2012-2876.
- 88. Inabnet WB, Winegar D a., Sherif B, Sarr MG. Early outcomes of bariatric surgery in patients with metabolic syndrome: An analysis of the bariatric outcomes longitudinal database. *J Am Coll Surg*. 2012;214(4):550-556. doi:10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2011.12.019.
- 89. Jan JC, Hong D, Bardaro SJ, July L V., Patterson EJ. Comparative study between laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding and laparoscopic gastric bypass: singleinstitution, 5-year experience in bariatric surgery. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2007;3:42-50. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2006.11.005.
- 90. Karlsen TI, Lund RS, Røislien J, et al. Health related quality of life after gastric bypass or intensive lifestyle intervention: a controlled clinical study. *Health Qual Life Outcomes*. 2013;11:17. doi:10.1186/1477-7525-11-17.

- 91. Kashyap SR, Bhatt DL, Wolski K, et al. Metabolic Effects of Bariatric Surgery. *2Diabetes care*. 2013;36:2175-2182. doi:10.2337/dc12-1596.
- 92. Kehagias I, Karamanakos SN, Argentou M, Kalfarentzos F. Randomized Clinical Trial of Laparoscopic Roux-en-Y Gastric Bypass Versus Laparoscopic Sleeve Gastrectomy for the Management of Patients with BMI < 50 kg/m2. *Obes Surg*. 2011;21:1650-1656. doi:10.1007/s11695-011-0479-x.
- 93. Kim TH, Daud a, Ude a O, et al. Early U.S. outcomes of laparoscopic gastric bypass versus laparoscopic adjustable silicone gastric banding for morbid obesity. *Surg Endosc*. 2006;20:202-209. doi:10.1007/s00464-005-0243-1.
- 94. Kokkinos A, Alexiadou K, Liaskos C, et al. Improvement in cardiovascular indices after Roux-en-Y gastric bypass or sleeve gastrectomy for morbid obesity. *Obes Surg*. 2013;23:31-38. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0743-8.
- Kruger RS, Pricolo VE, Streeter TT, Colacchio D a., Andrade U a. A bariatric surgery center of excellence: Operative trends and long-term outcomes. *J Am Coll Surg*. 2014;218(6):1163-1174. doi:10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2014.01.056.
- 96. Laferrère B, Teixeira J, McGinty J, et al. Effect of weight loss by gastric bypass surgery versus hypocaloric diet on glucose and incretin levels in patients with type 2 diabetes. *J Clin Endocrinol Metab*. 2008;93(January):2479-2485. doi:10.1210/jc.2007-2851.
- Leonetti F, Capoccia D, Coccia F, et al. Obesity, Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus, and Other Comorbidities: A Prospective Cohort Study of Laparoscopic Sleeve Gastrectomy vs Medical Treatment. *Arch Surg.* 2012;147(8):694-700. doi:10.1001/archsurg.2012.222.
- 98. Leyba JL, Aulestia SN, Llopis SN. Laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass versus laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy for the treatment of morbid obesity. a prospective study of 117 patients. *Obes Surg.* 2011;21:212-216. doi:10.1007/s11695-010-0279-8.
- 99. Lim DM, Taller J, Bertucci W, Riffenburgh RH, O'Leary J, Wisbach G. Comparison of Laparoscopic Sleeve Gastrectomy to Laparoscopic Roux-en-Y Gastric Bypass for Morbid Obesity in a Military Institution. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2012;10(2):269-276. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2012.08.012.
- 100. Lips M a., De Groot GH, De Kam M, et al. Autonomic nervous system activity in diabetic and healthy obese female subjects and the effect of distinct weight loss strategies. *Eur J Endocrinol*. 2013;169:383-390. doi:10.1530/EJE-13-0506.

- 101. Lips M a., De Groot GH, Van Klinken JB, et al. Calorie restriction is a major determinant of the short-term metabolic effects of gastric bypass surgery in obese type 2 diabetic patients. *Clin Endocrinol (Oxf)*. 2014;80:834-842. doi:10.1111/cen.12254.
- 102. Martins C, Strømmen M, Stavne O a, Nossum R, Mårvik R, Kulseng B. Bariatric surgery versus lifestyle interventions for morbid obesity--changes in body weight, risk factors and comorbidities at 1 year. *Obes Surg*. 2011;21:841-849. doi:10.1007/s11695-010-0131-1.
- 103. Messiah SE, Lopez-Mitnik G, Winegar D, et al. Changes in weight and co-morbidities among adolescents undergoing bariatric surgery: 1-year results from the Bariatric Outcomes Longitudinal Database. Surg Obes Relat Dis. 2013;9:503-513. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2012.03.007.
- 104. Mingrone G, Greco a. V., Giancaterini A, Scarfone A, Castagneto M, Pugeat M. Sex hormone-binding globulin levels and cardiovascular risk factors in morbidly obese subjects before and after weight reduction induced by diet or malabsorptive surgery. *Atherosclerosis*. 2002;161:455-462. doi:10.1016/S0021-9150(01)00667-0.
- Müller MK, Wenger C, Schiesser M, Clavien PA, Weber M. Quality of life after bariatric surgery - A comparative study of laparoscopic banding vs. bypass. *Obes Surg*. 2008;18:1551-1557. doi:10.1007/s11695-008-9522-y.
- 106. Nanni G, Familiari P, Mor A, et al. Effectiveness of the transoral endoscopic vertical gastroplasty (TOGa??): A good balance between weight loss and complications, if compared with gastric bypass and biliopancreatic diversion. *Obes Surg.* 2012;22:1897-1902. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0770-5.
- 107. Nelson DW. Analysis of Obesity-Related Outcomes and Bariatric Failure Rates With the Duodenal Switch vs Gastric Bypass for Morbid Obesity. *Arch Surg.* 2012;147:847. doi:10.1001/archsurg.2012.1654.
- Nguyen NT, Slone J a, Nguyen X-MT, Hartman JS, Hoyt DB. A prospective randomized trial of laparoscopic gastric bypass versus laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding for the treatment of morbid obesity: outcomes, quality of life, and costs. *Ann Surg*. 2009;250(4):631-641. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e3181b92480.
- 109. Nocca D, Guillaume F, Noel P, et al. Impact of laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy and laparoscopic gastric bypass on HbA1c blood level and pharmacological treatment of type
 2 diabetes mellitus in severe or morbidly obese patients. Results of a multicenter

prospective study at 1 year. *Obes Surg*. 2011;21:738-743. doi:10.1007/s11695-011-0385-2.

- Nordstrand N, Hertel JK, Hofsø D, et al. A controlled clinical trial of the effect of gastric bypass surgery and intensive lifestyle intervention on nocturnal hypertension and the circadian blood pressure rhythm in patients with morbid obesity. *Surgery*. 2012;151(5):674-680. doi:10.1016/j.surg.2011.12.007.
- Fagevik Olsen M. Respiratory Function in Superobese Patients before and after Bariatric Surgery- a Randomised Controlled Trial. *Open Obes J.* 2012;4:28-34. doi:10.2174/1876823701204010028.
- 112. Ortega E, Morínigo R, Flores L, et al. Predictive factors of excess body weight loss 1 year after laparoscopic bariatric surgery. *Surg Endosc Other Interv Tech*. 2012;26:1744-1750. doi:10.1007/s00464-011-2104-4.
- 113. Padwal RS, Rueda-Clausen CF, Sharma a M, et al. Weight Loss and Outcomes in Waitlisted, Medically Managed, and Surgically Treated Patients Enrolled in a Population-based Bariatric Program: Prospective Cohort Study. *Med Care*. 2014;52(3):208-215. doi:10.1097/MLR.000000000000070.
- 114. Paluszkiewicz R, Kalinowski P, Wróblewski T, et al. Prospective randomized clinical trial of laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy versus open Roux-en-Y gastric bypass for the management of patients with morbid obesity. *Videosurgery Other Miniinvasive Tech*. 2012;4:225-232. doi:10.5114/wiitm.2012.32384.
- Parikh MS, Shen R, Weiner M, Siegel N, Ren CJ. Laparoscopic bariatric surgery in superobese patients (BMI>50) is safe and effective: A review of 332 patients. *Obes Surg*. 2005;15:858-863. doi:10.1381/0960892054222632.
- 116. Parikh M, Lo H, Chang C, Collings D, Fielding G, Ren C. Comparison of outcomes after laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding in African-Americans and whites. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2006;2:607-610. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2006.08.012.
- 117. Peterli R, Steinert RE, Woelnerhanssen B, et al. Metabolic and hormonal changes after laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass and sleeve gastrectomy: A randomized, prospective trial. *Obes Surg*. 2012;22:740-748. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0622-3.
- 118. Peterli R, Borbély Y, Kern B, et al. Early results of the Swiss Multicentre Bypass or Sleeve Study (SM-BOSS): a prospective randomized trial comparing laparoscopic sleeve

gastrectomy and Roux-en-Y gastric bypass. *Ann Surg*. 2013;258(5):690-694; discussion 695. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e3182a67426.

- Pohle-Krauza RJ, McCarroll ML, Pasini DD, Dan AG, Zografakis JG. Age and gender exert differential effects on blood lipids in patients after LAGB and LRYGB. Surg Obes Relat Dis. 2011;7(2):170-175. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2010.11.004.
- Prachand VN, DaVee RT, Alverdy JC. Duodenal Switch Provides Superior Weight Loss in the Super-Obese (BMI ≥50kg/m2) Compared With Gastric Bypass. Ann Surg. 2006;244(4):611-619. doi:10.1097/01.sla.0000239086.30518.2a.
- 121. Puzziferri N, Nakonezny P a, Livingston EH, Carmody TJ, Provost D a, Rush a J. Variations of weight loss following gastric bypass and gastric band. *Ann Surg*. 2008;248(2):233-242. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e3181820cbc.
- 122. Romy S, Donadini A, Giusti V, Suter M. Roux-en-Y Gastric Bypass vs Gastric Banding for Morbid Obesity: A Case-Matched Study of 442 Patients. *Arch Surg.* 2012;147(5):460-466. doi:10.1001/archsurg.2011.1708.
- 123. Schouten R, Rijs CS, Bouvy ND, et al. A multicenter, randomized efficacy study of the EndoBarrier Gastrointestinal Liner for presurgical weight loss prior to bariatric surgery. Ann Surg. 2010;251(2):236-243. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e3181bdfbff.
- 124. Scopinaro N, Adami GF, Papadia FS, et al. Effects of biliopanceratic diversion on type 2 diabetes in patients with BMI 25 to 35. Ann Surg. 2011;253(4):699-703. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e318203ae44.
- 125. Skroubis G, Karamanakos S, Sakellaropoulos G, Panagopoulos K, Kalfarentzos F. Comparison of early and late complications after various bariatric procedures: Incidence and treatment during 15 years at a single institution. *World J Surg*. 2011;35:93-101. doi:10.1007/s00268-010-0816-6.
- 126. Spaniolas K, Trus TL, Adrales GL, Quigley MT, Pories WJ, Laycock WS. Early morbidity and mortality of laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy and gastric bypass in the elderly: a NSQIP analysis. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2014;10(4):584-588. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2014.02.010.
- 127. Strain GW, Gagner M, Pomp A, et al. Comparison of weight loss and body composition changes with four surgical procedures. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2009;5(5):582-587. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2009.04.001.

- 128. Takihata M, Nakamura A, Aoki K, et al. Comparison of intragastric balloon therapy and intensive lifestyle modification therapy with respect to weight reduction and abdominal fat distribution in super-obese Japanese patients. *Obes Res Clin Pract*. 2014;8(4):e331-e338. doi:10.1016/j.orcp.2013.07.002.
- Tayyem R, Obondo C, Ali A. Short-term outcome and quality of life of endoscopically placed gastric balloon and laparoscopic adjustable gastric band. *Saudi J Gastroenterol*. 2011;17(6):400. doi:10.4103/1319-3767.87182.
- 130. Te Riele WW, Sze YK, Wiezer MJ, van Ramshorst B. Conversion of failed laparoscopic gastric banding to gastric bypass as safe and effective as primary gastric bypass in morbidly obese patients. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2008;4(6):735-739. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2008.03.001.
- 131. Viana EC, Araujo-Dasilio KL, Miguel GPS, et al. Gastric bypass and sleeve gastrectomy: The same impact on IL-6 and TNF-α. Prospective clinical trial. *Obes Surg.* 2013;23:1252-1261. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-0894-2.
- 132. Vidal P, Ramón JM, Goday A, et al. Laparoscopic gastric bypass versus laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy as a definitive surgical procedure for morbid obesity. Mid-term results. *Obes Surg*. 2013;23:292-299. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0828-4.
- Vilarrasa N, De Gordejuela AGR, Gómez-Vaquero C, et al. Effect of bariatric surgery on bone mineral density: Comparison of gastric bypass and sleeve gastrectomy. *Obes Surg*. 2013;23:2086-2091. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-1016-x.
- 134. Vix M, Diana M, Liu KH, et al. Evolution of glycolipid profile after sleeve gastrectomy vs. roux-en-Y gastric bypass: Results of a prospective randomized clinical trial. *Obes Surg*. 2013;23:613-621. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0827-5.
- Weber M, Müller MK, Bucher T, et al. Laparoscopic gastric bypass is superior to laparoscopic gastric banding for treatment of morbid obesity. *Ann Surg*. 2004;240(6):975-982; discussion 982-983. doi:10.1097/01.sla.0000145924.64932.8f.
- 136. Zerrweck C, Sepúlveda EM, Maydón HG, et al. Laparoscopic gastric bypass vs. sleeve gastrectomy in the super obese patient: Early outcomes of an observational study. *Obes Surg*. 2014;24:712-717. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-1157-y.

- Zuegel NP, Lang R a., Hüttl TP, et al. Complications and outcome after laparoscopic bariatric surgery: LAGB versus LRYGB. *Langenbeck's Arch Surg*. 2012;397:1235-1241. doi:10.1007/s00423-012-0945-5.
- 138. Albeladi B, Bourbao-Tournois C, Huten N. Short- and midterm results between laparoscopic roux-en-Y gastric bypass and laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy for the treatment of morbid obesity. J Obes. 2013;2013(January 2008). doi:10.1155/2013/934653.
- Angrisani L, Lorenzo M, Borrelli V, Giuffré M, Fonderico C, Capece G. Is bariatric surgery necessary after intragastric balloon treatment? *Obes Surg.* 2006;16(9):1135-1137. doi:10.1381/096089206778392365.
- 140. Batsis J a, Lopez-Jimenez F, Collazo-Clavell ML, Clark MM, Somers VK, Sarr MG. Quality of life after bariatric surgery: a population-based cohort study. *Am J Med*. 2009;122(11):1055.e1-e1055.e10. doi:10.1016/j.amjmed.2009.05.024.
- 141. Bekheit M, Katri K, Ashour MH, et al. Gender influence on long-term weight loss after three bariatric procedures: gastric banding is less effective in males in a retrospective analysis. *Surg Endosc*. 2014;28:2406-2411. doi:10.1007/s00464-014-3489-7.
- Biertho L, Steffen R, Ricklin T, et al. Laparoscopic gastric bypass versus laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding: A comparative study of 1,200 cases. J Am Coll Surg. 2003;197(03):536-547. doi:10.1016/S1072-7515(03)00730-0.
- 143. Boza C, Gamboa C, Awruch D, Perez G, Escalona A, Ibañez L. Laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass versus laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding: Five years of follow-up. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2010;6(5):470-475. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2010.02.045.
- 144. Breznikar B, Dinevski D. Bariatric surgery for morbid obesity: pre-operative assessment, surgical techniques and post-operative monitoring. *J Int Med Res.* 2009;37(5):1632-1645.
- 145. Busetto L, Segato G, De Luca M, et al. Preoperative weight loss by intragastric balloon in super-obese patients treated with laparoscopic gastric banding: A case-control study. *Obes Surg.* 2004;14(5):671-676. doi:10.1381/096089204323093471.
- 146. Chen T, Godebu E, Horgan S, Mirheydar HS, Sur RL. The Effect of Restrictive Bariatric Surgery on Urolithiasis. *J Endourol*. 2013;27(2):242-244. doi:10.1089/end.2012.0408.

- 147. Christ-Crain M, Stoeckli R, Ernst A, et al. Effect of gastric bypass and gastric banding on proneurotensin levels in morbidly obese patients. *J Clin Endocrinol Metab*. 2006;91(January):3544-3547. doi:10.1210/jc.2006-0256.
- 148. Christou N, Efthimiou E. Five-year outcomes of laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding and laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass in a comprehensive bariatric surgery program in Canada. *Can J Surg*. 2009;52(6):E249-E258.
- Conason A, Teixeira J, Hsu C-H, Puma L, Knafo D, Geliebter A. Substance Use Following Bariatric Weight Loss Surgery. *JAMA Surg*. 2013;148(2):145-150. doi:10.1001/2013.jamasurg.265.
- 150. Coupaye M, Puchaux K, Bogard C, et al. Nutritional consequences of adjustable gastric banding and gastric bypass: A 1-year prospective study. *Obes Surg.* 2009;19:56-65. doi:10.1007/s11695-008-9571-2.
- 151. Cozacov Y, Roy M, Moon S, et al. Mid-term results of laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy and Roux-en-Y gastric bypass in adolescent patients. *Obes Surg*. 2014;24:747-752. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-1169-7.
- 152. De Gordejuela AGR, Pujol Gebelli J, García NV, Alsina EF, Medayo LS, Masdevall Noguera C. Is sleeve gastrectomy as effective as gastric bypass for remission of type 2 diabetes in morbidly obese patients? *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2011;7(4):506-509. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2011.01.003.
- 153. DiGiorgi M, Daud A, Inabnet WB, et al. Markers of bone and calcium metabolism following gastric bypass and laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding. *Obes Surg.* 2008;18:1144-1148. doi:10.1007/s11695-007-9408-4.
- Dittmar M, Heintz a., Hardt J, Egle UT, Kahaly GJ. Metabolic and psychosocial effects of minimal invasive gastric banding for morbid obesity. *Metabolism*. 2003;52(March 2002):1551-1557. doi:10.1016/j.metabol.2003.07.008.
- 155. Doldi SB, Micheletto G, Perrini MN, Librenti MC, Rella S. Treatment of morbid obesity with intragastric balloon in association with diet. *Obes Surg*. 2002;12(4):583-587. doi:10.1381/096089202762252398.
- 156. Ducarme G, Parisio L, Santulli P, Carbillon L, Mandelbrot L, Luton D. Neonatal outcomes in pregnancies after bariatric surgery: a retrospective multi-centric cohort study in three

French referral centers. *J Matern Neonatal Med*. 2013;26(3):275-278. doi:10.3109/14767058.2012.735723.

- 157. Eldar SM, Heneghan HM, Brethauer S a., et al. Laparoscopic bariatric surgery for those with body mass index of 70-125 kg/m2. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2012;8(6):736-740. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2011.09.024.
- 158. Facchiano E, Iannelli A, Santulli P, Mandelbrot L, Msika S. Pregnancy after laparoscopic bariatric surgery: Comparative study of adjustable gastric banding and Roux-en-Y gastric bypass. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2012;8(4):429-433. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2011.06.006.
- 159. Fenske WK, Dubb S, Bueter M, et al. Effect of bariatric surgery-induced weight loss on renal and systemic inflammation and blood pressure: A 12-month prospective study. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2013;9(4):559-568. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2012.03.009.
- 160. Fredheim JM, Rollheim J, Sandbu R, et al. Obstructive sleep apnea after weight loss: a clinical trial comparing gastric bypass and intensive lifestyle intervention. *J Clin Sleep Med*. 2013;9(5):427-432. doi:10.5664/jcsm.2656.
- Fridman A, Moon R, Cozacov Y, et al. Procedure-related morbidity in bariatric surgery: A retrospective short- and mid-term follow-up of a single institution of the American College of Surgeons Bariatric Surgery Centers of Excellence. J Am Coll Surg. 2013;217(4):614-620. doi:10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2013.05.013.
- 162. Friedrich AE, Damms-Machado A, Meile T, et al. Laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy compared to a multidisciplinary weight loss program for obesity--effects on body composition and protein status. *Obes Surg*. 2013;23:1957-1965. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-1036-6.
- 163. Gan SSH, Talbot ML, Jorgensen JO. Efficacy of surgery in the management of obesityrelated type 2 diabetes mellitus. *ANZ J Surg*. 2007;77:958-962. doi:10.1111/j.1445-2197.2007.04290.x.
- 164. Gersin KS, Rothstein RI, Rosenthal RJ, et al. Open-label, sham-controlled trial of an endoscopic duodenojejunal bypass liner for preoperative weight loss in bariatric surgery candidates. *Gastrointest Endosc*. 2010;71(6):976-982. doi:10.1016/j.gie.2009.11.051.
- 165. Göthberg G, Gronowitz E, Flodmark C-E, et al. Laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass in adolescents with morbid obesity--surgical aspects and clinical outcome. *Semin Pediatr Surg*. 2014;23(1):11-16. doi:10.1053/j.sempedsurg.2013.10.015.

- 166. Gracia-Solanas JA, Elia M, Aguilella V, et al. Metabolic syndrome after bariatric surgery. results depending on the technique performed. *Obes Surg.* 2011;21:179-185. doi:10.1007/s11695-010-0309-6.
- 167. Hofsø D, Nordstrand N, Johnson LK, et al. Obesity-related cardiovascular risk factors after weight loss: A clinical trial comparing gastric bypass surgery and intensive lifestyle intervention. *Eur J Endocrinol.* 2010;163:735-745. doi:10.1530/EJE-10-0514.
- 168. Jiménez A, Casamitjana R, Flores L, et al. Long-Term Effects of Sleeve Gastrectomy and Roux-en-Y Gastric Bypass Surgery on Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus in Morbidly Obese Subjects. Ann Surg. 2012;256(6):1. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e318262ee6b.
- 169. Jiménez A, Ceriello A, Casamitjana R, Flores L, Viaplana-Masclans J, Vidal J. Remission of Type 2 Diabetes After Roux-en-Y Gastric Bypass or Sleeve Gastrectomy Is Associated With a Distinct Glycemic Profile. *Ann Surg*. 2015;261(2):316-322. doi:10.1097/SLA.00000000000586.
- 170. Johnson LK, Andersen LF, Hofsø D, et al. Dietary changes in obese patients undergoing gastric bypass or lifestyle intervention: a clinical trial. *Br J Nutr.* 2013:127-134. doi:10.1017/S0007114512004631.
- 171. Karamanakos SN, Vagenas K, Kalfarentzos F, Alexandrides TK. Weight loss, appetite suppression, and changes in fasting and postprandial ghrelin and peptide-YY levels after Roux-en-Y gastric bypass and sleeve gastrectomy: a prospective, double blind study. Ann Surg. 2008;247(3):401-407. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e318156f012.
- 172. Keidar A, Hershkop KJ, Marko L, et al. Roux-en-Y gastric bypass vs sleeve gastrectomy for obese patients with type 2 diabetes: A randomised trial. *Diabetologia*. 2013;56:1914-1918. doi:10.1007/s00125-013-2965-2.
- 173. Khoo CM, Chen J, Pamuklar Z, Torquati A. Effects of Roux-en-Y gastric bypass or diabetes support and education on insulin sensitivity and insulin secretion in morbidly obese patients with type 2 diabetes. *Ann Surg*. 2014;259(3):494-501. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e318294d19c.
- 174. Korner J, Inabnet W, Febres G, et al. Prospective study of gut hormone and metabolic changes after adjustable gastric banding and Roux-en-Y gastric bypass. *Int J Obes (Lond)*. 2009;33(7):786-795. doi:10.1038/ijo.2009.79.

- 175. Lee H, Kim D, Lee S, Nam K, Kim E. Initial evaluation of Laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass and adjustable gastric banding in Korea: A single institution study. *Obes Surg*. 2010;20:1096-1101. doi:10.1007/s11695-008-9528-5.
- 176. Lee DY, Guend H, Park K, et al. Outcomes of laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass versus laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding in adolescents. *Obes Surg*. 2012;22:1859-1864. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0742-9.
- 177. Lee Y-M, Low HC, Lim LG, et al. Intragastric balloon significantly improves nonalcoholic fatty liver disease activity score in obese patients with nonalcoholic steatohepatitis: a pilot study. *Gastrointest Endosc*. 2012;76(4):756-760. doi:10.1016/j.gie.2012.05.023.
- Leeman MF, Ward C, Duxbury M, De Beaux a. C, Tulloh B. The intra-gastric balloon for pre-operative weight loss in bariatric surgery: Is it worthwhile? *Obes Surg*. 2013;23(8):1262-1265. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-0896-0.
- 179. Lennerz BS, Wabitsch M, Lippert H, et al. Bariatric surgery in adolescents and young adults--safety and effectiveness in a cohort of 345 patients. *Int J Obes (Lond)*. 2014;38:334-340. doi:10.1038/ijo.2013.182.
- 180. Leslie DB, Dorman RB, Serrot FJ, et al. Efficacy of the Roux-en-Y gastric bypass compared to medically managed controls in meeting the american diabetes association composite end point goals for management of type 2 diabetes mellitus. *Obes Surg*. 2012;22:367-374. doi:10.1007/s11695-011-0494-y.
- 181. Li VK, Pulido N, Martinez-Suartez P, et al. Symptomatic gallstones after sleeve gastrectomy. *Surg Endosc*. 2009;23:2488-2492. doi:10.1007/s00464-009-0422-6.
- 182. Mathus-Vliegen EMH, Eichenberger RI. Fasting and meal-suppressed ghrelin levels before and after intragastric balloons and balloon-induced weight loss. *Obes Surg.* 2014;24:85-94. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-1053-5.
- Mathus-Vliegen E, Tygat G. Gastro-oesophageal reflux in obese subjects: influence of overweight, weight loss and chronic gastric balloon distension. *Scand J Gastroenterol*. 2002;37:1246-1252. doi:10.1080/003655202761020498.
- Matsuo Y, Oberbach A, Till H, et al. Impaired HDL function in obese adolescents: Impact of lifestyle intervention and bariatric surgery. *Obesity*. 2013;21(12):687-695. doi:10.1002/oby.20538.

- Miranda WR, Batsis J a., Sarr MG, et al. Impact of bariatric surgery on quality of life, functional capacity, and symptoms in patients with heart failure. *Obes Surg*. 2013;23:1011-1015. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-0953-8.
- 186. Mognol P, Chosidow D, Marmuse J-P. Laparoscopic gastric bypass versus laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding in the super-obese: a comparative study of 290 patients. *Obes Surg*. 2005;15:76-81. doi:10.1381/0960892052993486.
- 187. Mohos E, Schmaldienst E, Prager M. Quality of life parameters, weight change and improvement of co-morbidities after laparoscopic roux y gastric bypass and laparoscopic gastric sleeve resection-comparative study. *Obes Surg*. 2011;21:288-294. doi:10.1007/s11695-010-0227-7.
- 188. Moon RC, Teixeira AF, DuCoin C, Varnadore S, Jawad M a. Comparison of cholecystectomy cases after Roux-en-Y gastric bypass, sleeve gastrectomy, and gastric banding. Surg Obes Relat Dis. 2014;10(1):64-68. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2013.04.019.
- 189. Musella M, Milone M, Maietta P, et al. Bariatric surgery in elderly patients . A comparison between gastric banding and sleeve gastrectomy with fi ve years of follow up. *Int J Surg*. 2014;12:S69-S72. doi:10.1016/j.ijsu.2014.08.377.
- 190. Nelson D, Porta R, Blair K, Carter P, Martin M. The duodenal switch for morbid obesity: Modification of cardiovascular risk markers compared with standard bariatric surgeries. *Am J Surg.* 2012;203(5):603-607. doi:10.1016/j.amjsurg.2011.12.004.
- Nguyen NQ, Game P, Bessell J, et al. Outcomes of Roux-en-Y gastric bypass and laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding. *World J Gastroenterol*. 2013;19(36):6035-6043. doi:10.3748/wjg.v19.i36.6035.
- Oliván B, Teixeira J, Bose M, et al. Effect of weight loss by diet or gastric bypass surgery on peptide YY3-36 levels. *Ann Surg.* 2009;249:948-953. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e3181a6cdb0.
- 193. Omana JJ, Nguyen SQ, Herron D, Kini S. Comparison of comorbidity resolution and improvement between laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy and laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding. *Surg Endosc Other Interv Tech*. 2010;24(June 2001):2513-2517. doi:10.1007/s00464-010-0995-0.
- 194. Palikhe G, Gupta R, Behera BN, Sachdeva N, Gangadhar P, Bhansali A. Efficacy of laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy and intensive medical management in obese patients

with type 2 diabetes mellitus. *Obes Surg*. 2014;24:529-535. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-1114-9.

- 195. Parikh M, Chung M, Sheth S, et al. Randomized Pilot Trial of Bariatric Surgery Versus Intensive Medical Weight Management on Diabetes Remission in Type 2 Diabetic Patients Who Do NOT Meet NIH Criteria for Surgery and the Role of Soluble RAGE as a Novel Biomarker of Success. *Ann Surg*. 2014;260(4):617-624. doi:10.1097/SLA.00000000000919.
- 196. Pham S, Gancel A, Scotte M, et al. Comparison of the effectiveness of four bariatric surgery procedures in obese patients with type 2 diabetes: A retrospective study. *J Obes*. 2014;2014:1-7. doi:10.1155/2014/638203.
- 197. Pihlajamäki J, Grönlund S, Simonen M, et al. Cholesterol absorption decreases after Roux-en-Y gastric bypass but not after gastric banding. *Metabolism*. 2010;59(6):866-872. doi:10.1016/j.metabol.2009.10.004.
- 198. Roslin MS, Dudiy Y, Weiskopf J, Damani T, Shah P. Comparison between RYGB, DS, and VSG effect on glucose homeostasis. *Obes Surg.* 2012;22:1281-1286. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0686-0.
- 199. Rodriguez L, Reyes E, Fagalde P, et al. Pilot clinical study of an endoscopic, removable duodenal-jejunal bypass liner for the treatment of type 2 diabetes. *Diabetes Technol Ther*. 2009;11(11):725-732. doi:10.1089/dia.2009.0063.
- Roslin MS, Dudiy Y, Brownlee A, Weiskopf J, Shah P. Response to glucose tolerance testing and solid high carbohydrate challenge: Comparison between Roux-en-Y gastric bypass, vertical sleeve gastrectomy, and duodenal switch. *Surg Endosc Other Interv Tech*. 2014;28:91-99. doi:10.1007/s00464-013-3176-0.
- 201. Sabbagh C, Verhaeghe P, Dhahri A, et al. Two-year results on morbidity, weight loss and quality of life of sleeve gastrectomy as first procedure, sleeve gastrectomy after failure of gastric banding and gastric banding. *Obes Surg.* 2010;20:679-684. doi:10.1007/s11695-009-0007-4.
- Saunders JK, Ballantyne GH, Belsley S, et al. 30-Day readmission rates at a high volume bariatric surgery center: Laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding, laparoscopic gastric bypass, and vertical banded gastroplasty-Roux-en-Y gastric bypass. *Obes Surg*. 2007;17:1171-1177. doi:10.1007/s11695-007-9210-3.

- 203. Serrot FJ, Dorman RB, Miller CJ, et al. Comparative effectiveness of bariatric surgery and nonsurgical therapy in adults with type 2 diabetes mellitus and body mass index <35 kg/m2. Surgery. 2011;150(4):684-691. doi:10.1016/j.surg.2011.07.069.
- 204. Spivak H, Abdelmelek MF, Beltran OR, Ng AW, Kitahama S. Long-term outcomes of laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding and laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass in the United States. *Surg Endosc.* 2012;26:1909-1919. doi:10.1007/s00464-011-2125-z.
- 205. Stephens DJ, Saunders JK, Belsley S, et al. Short-term outcomes for super-super obese (BMI ???60 kg/m2) patients undergoing weight loss surgery at a high-volume bariatric surgery center: laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding, laparoscopic gastric bypass, and open tubular gastric bypass. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2008;4:408-415. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2007.10.013.
- 206. Strain GW, Gagner M, Inabnet WB, Dakin G, Pomp A. Comparison of effects of gastric bypass and biliopancreatic diversion with duodenal switch on weight loss and body composition 1-2 years after surgery. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2007;3:31-36. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2006.09.002.
- 207. Tarnoff M, Rodriguez L, Escalona a., et al. Open label, prospective, randomized controlled trial of an endoscopic duodenal-jejunal bypass sleeve versus low calorie diet for pre-operative weight loss in bariatric surgery. *Surg Endosc Other Interv Tech*. 2009;23(3):650-656. doi:10.1007/s00464-008-0125-4.
- 208. Tedesco M, Hua WQ, Lohnberg J a., Bellatorre N, Eisenberg D. A prior history of substance abuse in veterans undergoing bariatric surgery. J Obes. 2013;2013. doi:10.1155/2013/740312.
- Toelle P, Peterli R, Zobel I, Noppen C, Christoffel-Courtin C, Peters T. Risk factors for secondary hyperparathyroidism after bariatric surgery: A comparison of 4 different operations and of vitamin D-receptor-polymorphism. *Exp Clin Endocrinol Diabetes*. 2012;120:629-634. doi:10.1055/s-0032-1321811.
- 210. Topart P, Becouarn G, Ritz P. Comparative early outcomes of three laparoscopic bariatric procedures: Sleeve gastrectomy, Roux-en-Y gastric bypass, and biliopancreatic diversion with duodenal switch. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2012;8(3):250-254. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2011.05.012.

- 211. Topart P, Becouarn G, Ritz P. Weight loss is more sustained after biliopancreatic diversion with duodenal switch than Roux-en-Y gastric bypass in superobese patients. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2013;9(4):526-530. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2012.02.006.
- Tsoli M, Chronaiou A, Kehagias I, Kalfarentzos F, Alexandrides TK. Hormone changes and diabetes resolution after biliopancreatic diversion and laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy: A comparative prospective study. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2013;9(5):667-677. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2012.12.006.
- 213. Vidal J, Ibarzabal a, Nicolau J, et al. Short-term effects of sleeve gastrectomy on type 2 diabetes mellitus in severely obese subjects. *Obes Surg*. 2007;17:1069-1074. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/entrez/query.fcgi?cmd=Retrieve&db=PubMed&dopt=Citati on&list_uids=17953241.
- Vidal J, Ibarzabal a., Romero F, et al. Type 2 diabetes mellitus and the metabolic syndrome following sleeve gastrectomy in severely obese subjects. *Obes Surg*. 2008;18:1077-1082. doi:10.1007/s11695-008-9547-2.
- Von Mach M–., Stoeckli R, Bilz S, Kraenzlin M, Langer I, Keller U. Changes in bone mineral content after surgical treatment of morbid obesity. *Metabolism*. 2004;53(7):918-921. doi:10.1016/j.metabol.2004.01.015.
- 216. Wahlroos S, Phillips ML, Lewis MC, et al. Rapid significant weight loss and regional lipid deposition: Implications for insulin sensitivity. *Obes Res Clin Pract*. 2007;1:7-16. doi:10.1016/j.orcp.2006.08.002.
- 217. Weiner R a., El-Sayes I a., Theodoridou S, Weiner SR, Scheffel O. Early post-operative complications: Incidence, management, and impact on length of hospital stay. A retrospective comparison between laparoscopic gastric bypass and sleeve gastrectomy. *Obes Surg.* 2013;23:2004-2012. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-1022-z.
- 218. Widhalm K, Fritsch M, Widhalm H, et al. Bariatric surgery in morbidly obese adolescents: long-term follow-up. *Int J Pediatr Obes*. 2011;6 Suppl 1(July):65-69. doi:10.3109/17477166.2011.606817.
- 219. Woelnerhanssen B, Peterli R, Steinert RE, Peters T, Borbély Y, Beglinger C. Effects of postbariatric surgery weight loss on adipokines and metabolic parameters: Comparison of laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass and laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomya

prospective randomized trial. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2011;7(5):561-568. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2011.01.044.

- 220. Wong SKH, Mui WLM, Ng EKW. Development of bariatric surgery: The effectiveness of a multi-disciplinary weight management programme in Hong Kong. *Ann Acad Med Singapore*. 2009;38(1):9-14.
- 221. Woodard G a., Peraza J, Bravo S, Toplosky L, Hernandez-Boussard T, Morton JM. One year improvements in cardiovascular risk factors: A comparative trial of laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass vs. adjustable gastric banding. *Obes Surg*. 2010;20:578-582. doi:10.1007/s11695-010-0088-0.
- 222. Yong W, Shibo W, Jingang L. Remission of insulin resistance in type 2 diabetic patients after gastric bypass surgery or exenatide therapy. *Obes Surg*. 2012;22:1060-1067. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0632-1.
- 223. Yousseif A, Emmanuel J, Karra E, et al. Differential effects of laparoscopic sleeve gastrectomy and laparoscopic gastric bypass on appetite, circulating acyl-ghrelin, peptide YY3-36 and active GLP-1 levels in non-diabetic humans. *Obes Surg.* 2014;24:241-252. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-1066-0.
- 224. Zhang N, Maffei A, Cerabona T, Pahuja A, Omana J, Kaul A. Reduction in obesity-related comorbidities: Is gastric bypass better than sleeve gastrectomy? *Surg Endosc Other Interv Tech*. 2013;27:1273-1280. doi:10.1007/s00464-012-2595-7.
- 225. Alami RS, Morton JM, Schuster R, et al. Is there a benefit to preoperative weight loss in gastric bypass patients? A prospective randomized trial. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2007;3:141-145. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2006.11.006.
- 226. Becouarn G, Topart P, Ritz P. Weight loss prior to bariatric surgery is not a pre-requisite of excess weight loss outcomes in obese patients. *Obes Surg*. 2010;20:574-577. doi:10.1007/s11695-010-0083-5.
- 227. Birkmeyer NJO, Dimick JB, Share D, et al. Hospital Complication Rates with Bariatric Surgery in Michigan. *JAMA*. 2010;304(4):435-442.
- 228. Bueter M, Thalheimer A, Lager C, Schowalter M, Illert B, Fein M. Who benefits from gastric banding? *Obes Surg*. 2007;17:1608-1613. doi:10.1007/s11695-007-9263-3.

- 229. Chen W, Chang C-C, Chiu H-C, Shabbir A, Perng D-S, Huang C-K. Use of individual surgeon versus surgical team approach: surgical outcomes of laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass in an Asian Medical Center. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2012;8(2):214-219. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2011.02.011.
- Chevallier J-M, Paita M, Rodde-Dunet M-H, et al. Predictive factors of outcome after gastric banding: a nationwide survey on the role of center activity and patients' behavior. *Ann Surg.* 2007;246(6):1034-1039. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e31813e8a56.
- Compher CW, Hanlon A, Kang Y, Elkin L, Williams NN. Attendance at clinical visits predicts weight loss after gastric bypass surgery. *Obes Surg*. 2012;22:927-934. doi:10.1007/s11695-011-0577-9.
- 232. Courcoulas A, Schuchert M, Gatti G, Luketich J. The relationship of surgeon and hospital volume to outcome after gastric bypass surgery in Pennsylvania: A 3-year summary. *Surgery*. 2003;134:613-623. doi:10.1016/S0039-6060(03)00306-4.
- 233. Dallal RM, Quebbemann BB, Hunt LH, Braitman LE. Analysis of weight loss after bariatric surgery using mixed-effects linear modeling. *Obes Surg*. 2009;19:732-737. doi:10.1007/s11695-009-9816-8.
- Elakkary E, Elhorr A, Aziz F, Gazayerli MM, Silva YJ. Do support groups play a role in weight loss after laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding? *Obes Surg*. 2006;16(248):331-334. doi:10.1381/096089206776116499.
- 235. Gould JC, Kent KC, Wan Y, Rajamanickam V, Leverson G, Campos GM. Perioperative safety and volume: Outcomes relationships in bariatric surgery: A study of 32,000 patients. *J Am Coll Surg*. 2011;213(6):771-777. doi:10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2011.09.006.
- 236. Harnisch MC, Portenier DD, Pryor AD, Prince-Petersen R, Grant JP, DeMaria EJ. Preoperative weight gain does not predict failure of weight loss or co-morbidity resolution of laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass for morbid obesity. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2008;4:445-450. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2007.09.016.
- 237. Huerta S, Dredar S, Hayden E, et al. Preoperative weight loss decreases the operative time of gastric bypass at a veterans administration hospital. *Obes Surg.* 2008;18:508-512. doi:10.1007/s11695-007-9334-5.
- 238. Jamal MK, DeMaria EJ, Johnson JM, et al. Insurance-mandated preoperative dietary counseling does not improve outcome and increases dropout rates in patients

considering gastric bypass surgery for morbid obesity. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2006;2:122-127. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2006.01.009.

- 239. Leahey TM, Bond DS, Irwin SR, Crowther JH, Wing RR. When is the best time to deliver behavioral intervention to bariatric surgery patients: before or after surgery? *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2009;5:99-103. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2008.10.001.
- 240. Lier H, Biringer E, Stubhaug B, Eriksen HR, Tangen T. Psychiatric disorders and participation in Pre- and postoperative counselling groups in bariatric surgery patients. *Obes Surg.* 2011;21:730-737. doi:10.1007/s11695-010-0146-7.
- 241. Lier H, Biringer E, Stubhaug B, Tangen T. The impact of preoperative counseling on postoperative treatment adherence in bariatric surgery patients: A randomized controlled trial. *Patient Educ Couns*. 2012;87:336-342. doi:10.1016/j.pec.2011.09.014.
- 242. Lutfi R, Torquati a, Sekhar N, Richards WO. Predictors of success after laparoscopic gastric bypass: a multivariate analysis of socioeconomic factors. *Surg Endosc*. 2006;20:864-867. doi:10.1007/s00464-005-0115-8.
- 243. Ma Y, Pagoto SL, Olendzki BC, et al. Predictors of weight status following laparoscopic gastric bypass. *Obes Surg*. 2006;16:1227-1231. doi:10.1381/096089206778392284.
- 244. Masoomi H, Kim H, Reavis KM, Mills S, Stamos MJ, Nguyen NT. Analysis of Factors Predictive of Gastrointestinal Tract Leak in Laparoscopic and Open Gastric Bypass. *Arch Surg.* 2011;146(9):1048-1051. doi:10.1001/archsurg.2011.203.
- 245. Melton GB, Steele KE, Schweitzer M a., Lidor AO, Magnuson TH. Suboptimal weight loss after gastric bypass surgery: Correlation of demographics, comorbidities, and insurance status with outcomes. *J Gastrointest Surg*. 2008;12:250-255. doi:10.1007/s11605-007-0427-1.
- 246. Murr MM, Martin T, Haines K, et al. A state-wide review of contemporary outcomes of gastric bypass in Florida: does provider volume impact outcomes? *Ann Surg*. 2007;245(5):699-706. doi:10.1097/01.sla.0000256392.04141.04.
- 247. Nguyen NT, Paya M, Stevens CM, Mavandadi S, Zainabadi K, Wilson SE. The relationship between hospital volume and outcome in bariatric surgery at academic medical centers. *Ann Surg*. 2004;240(4):586-593; discussion 593-594. doi:10.1097/01.sla.0000140752.74893.24.
- 248. Nguyen NT, Masoomi H, Laugenour K, et al. Predictive factors of mortality in bariatric surgery: Data from the Nationwide Inpatient Sample. *Surgery*. 2011;150(2):347-351. doi:10.1016/j.surg.2011.05.020.
- 249. Nguyen GC, Patel AM. Racial disparities in mortality in patients undergoing bariatric surgery in the USA. *Obes Surg*. 2013;23:1508-1514. doi:10.1007/s11695-013-0957-4.
- 250. Nguyen NT, Nguyen B, Smith B, Reavis KM, Elliott C, Hohmann S. Proposal for a bariatric mortality risk classification system for patients undergoing bariatric surgery. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2013;9:239-246. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2011.12.010.
- 251. Nijamkin MP, Campa A, Sosa J, Baum M, Himburg S, Johnson P. Comprehensive Nutrition and Lifestyle Education Improves Weight Loss and Physical Activity in Hispanic Americans Following Gastric Bypass Surgery: A Randomized Controlled Trial. *J Acad Nutr Diet*. 2012;112(3):382-390. doi:10.1016/j.jada.2011.10.023.
- 252. Nijamkin MP, Campa A, Samiri Nijamkin S, Sosa J. Comprehensive behavioralmotivational nutrition education improves depressive symptoms following bariatric surgery: A randomized, controlled trial of obese hispanic Americans. *J Nutr Educ Behav*. 2013;45(6):620-626. doi:10.1016/j.jneb.2013.04.264.
- Orth WS, Madan AK, Ternovits Ca., Tichansky DS. Effect of preoperative knowledge on weight loss after laparoscopic gastric bypass. *Obes Surg*. 2008;18:768-771. doi:10.1007/s11695-007-9317-6.
- 254. Padwal RS, Klarenbach SW, Wang X, et al. A simple prediction rule for all-cause mortality in a cohort eligible for bariatric surgery. *JAMA Surg*. 2013;148(12):1109-1115. doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2013.3953.
- 255. Parikh M, Dasari M, McMacken M, Ren C, Fielding G, Ogedegbe G. Does a preoperative medically supervised weight loss program improve bariatric surgery outcomes? A pilot randomized study. *Surg Endosc*. 2012;26:853-861. doi:10.1007/s00464-011-1966-9.
- 256. Perugini R a, Mason R, Czerniach DR, et al. Predictors of complication and suboptimal weight loss after laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass: a series of 188 patients. *Arch Surg*. 2003;138:541-545; discussion 545-546. doi:10.1001/archsurg.138.5.541.
- 257. Pontiroli AE, Fossati A, Vedani P, et al. Post-surgery adherence to scheduled visits and compliance, more than personality disorders, predict outcome of bariatric restrictive

surgery in morbidly obese patients. *Obes Surg*. 2007;17:1492-1497. doi:10.1007/s11695-008-9428-8.

- 258. Ray EC, Nickels MW, Sayeed S, Sax HC. Predicting success after gastric bypass: The role of psychosocial and behavioral factors. *Surgery*. 2003;134:555-564. doi:10.1016/S0039-6060(03)00279-4.
- 259. Sarwer DB, Wadden T a., Moore RH, et al. Preoperative eating behavior, postoperative dietary adherence, and weight loss after gastric bypass surgery. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2008;4:640-646. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2008.04.013.
- 260. Sarwer DB, Moore RH, Spitzer JC, Wadden T a., Raper SE, Williams NN. A pilot study investigating the efficacy of postoperative dietary counseling to improve outcomes after bariatric surgery. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2012;8:561-568. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2012.02.010.
- Shen R, Dugay G, Rajaram K, Cabrera I, Siegel N, Ren CJ. Impact of patient follow-up on weight loss after bariatric surgery. *Obes Surg*. 2004;14:514-519. doi:10.1381/096089204323013523.
- 262. Smith MD, Patterson E, Wahed AS, et al. Can technical factors explain the volumeoutcome relationship in gastric bypass surgery? *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2013;9:623-629. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2012.09.013.
- 263. Sockalingam S, Cassin S, Crawford S a., et al. Psychiatric predictors of surgery noncompletion following suitability assessment for bariatric surgery. *Obes Surg*.
 2013;23:205-211. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0762-5.
- 264. Van Nieuwenhove Y, Dambrauskas Z, Campillo-Soto a., et al. Preoperative Very Low-Calorie Diet and Operative Outcome After Laparoscopic Gastric Bypass: A Randomized Multicenter Study. Arch Surg. 2011;146(11):1300-1305. doi:10.1001/archsurg.2011.273.
- 265. Weineland S, Arvidsson D, Kakoulidis TP, Dahl J. Acceptance and commitment therapy for bariatric surgery patients, a pilot RCT. *Obes Res Clin Pract*. 2012;6:e21-e30. doi:10.1016/j.orcp.2011.04.004.
- 266. Weller WE, Rosati C, Hannan EL. Relationship Between Surgeon and Hospital Volume and Readmission after Bariatric Operation. J Am Coll Surg. 2007;204(3):383-391. doi:10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2006.12.031.

- 267. Wittgrove a C, Clark GW. Laparoscopic gastric bypass, Roux-en-Y- 500 patients: technique and results, with 3-60 month follow-up. *Obes Surg*. 2000;10:233-239. doi:10.1381/096089200321643511.
- 268. Dimick JB, Nicholas LH, Ryan AM, Thumma JR, Birkmeyer JD. Bariatric surgery complications before vs after implementation of a national policy restricting coverage to centers of excellence. *JAMA*. 2013;309(8):792-799. doi:10.1016/j.jemermed.2013.05.040.
- 269. Flum DR, Kwon S, MacLeod K, et al. The Use, Safety and Cost of Bariatric Surgery Before and After Medicare's National Coverage Decision. *Ann Surg.* 2011;254(6):860-865. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e31822f2101.
- Jafari MD, Jafari F, Young MT, Smith BR, Phalen MJ, Nguyen NT. Volume and outcome relationship in bariatric surgery in the laparoscopic era. *Surg Endosc Other Interv Tech*. 2013;27(12):4539-4546. doi:10.1007/s00464-013-3112-3.
- Kohn GP, Galanko J a., Overby DW, Farrell TM. High Case Volumes and Surgical Fellowships Are Associated with Improved Outcomes for Bariatric Surgery Patients: A Justification of Current Credentialing Initiatives for Practice and Training. J Am Coll Surg. 2010;210(6):909-918. doi:10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2010.03.005.
- 272. Kwon S, Wang B, Wong E, et al. The Impact of Accreditation on Safety and Cost of Bariatric Surgery. Surg Obes Relat Dis. 2013;9(5):617-622. doi:10.1016/j.biotechadv.2011.08.021.Secreted.
- 273. Livingston EH. Bariatric surgery outcomes at designated centers of excellence vs nondesignated programs. *Arch Surg*. 2009;144(4):319-325; discussion 325. doi:10.1016/S0739-5930(09)79326-2.
- 274. Morton JM, Garg T, Nguyen N. Does Hospital Accreditation Impact Bariatric Surgery Safety ? *Ann Surg*. 2014;260(3):504-508. doi:10.1097/SLA.00000000000891.
- 275. Nguyen NT, Hohmann S, Slone J, Varela E, Smith BR, Hoyt D. Improved bariatric surgery outcomes for Medicare beneficiaries after implementation of the medicare national coverage determination. *Arch Surg*. 2010;145(1):72-78. doi:10.1001/archsurg.2009.228.
- Nguyen NT, Nguyen B, Nguyen VQ, Ziogas A, Hohmann S, Stamos MJ. Outcomes of bariatric surgery performed at accredited vs nonaccredited centers. *J Am Coll Surg*. 2012;215(4):467-474. doi:10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2012.05.032.

- 277. Telem DA, Talamini M, Altieri M, Yang J, Zhang Q, Pryor AD. The effect of national hospital accreditation in bariatric surgery on perioperative outcomes and long-term mortality. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2015;11(4):749-757. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2014.05.012.
- Brown S, Hutton B, Clifford T, et al. A Microsoft-Excel-based tool for running and critically appraising network meta-analyses--an overview and application of NetMetaXL. *Syst Rev*. 2014;3(1):110.
- 279. Armitage P, Berry G, Matthews J. *Statistical Methods in Medical Research*. Vol 4th ed. Malden, MA: Blackwell Science; 2002.
- Fu R, Gartlehner G, Grant M, et al. Conducting quantitative synthesis when comparing medical interventions: AHRQ and the Effective Health Care Program. J Clin Epidemiol. 2011;64(11):1187-1197.
- 281. Cossu ML, Meloni GB, Alagna S, et al. Emergency surgical conditions after biliopancreatic diversion. *Obes Surg*. 2007;17:637-641. doi:10.1007/s11695-007-9107-1.
- 282. Marceau P, Biron S, Hould FS, et al. Duodenal switch: Long-term results. *Obes Surg*. 2007;17:1421-1430. doi:10.1007/s11695-008-9435-9.
- 283. Busetto L, De Stefano F, Pigozzo S, Segato G, De Luca M, Favretti F. Long-term cardiovascular risk and coronary events in morbidly obese patients treated with laparoscopic gastric banding. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2014;10:112-120. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2013.03.010.
- 284. Chevallier J-M, Zinzindohoué F, Douard R, et al. Complications after laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding for morbid obesity: experience with 1,000 patients over 7 years. *Obes Surg.* 2004;14:407-414. doi:10.1381/096089204322917954.
- 285. Jenkins JT, Modak P, Galloway DJ. Prospective study of laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding in the west of Scotland. *Scott Med J*. 2006;51(1):37-41. doi:10.1258/rsmsmj.51.1.37.
- 286. Naef M, Naef U, Mouton W, Wagner H. Outcome and complications after laparoscopic Swedish adjustable gastric banding: 5-year results of a prospective clinical trial. *Obes Surg*. 2007;17:195-201. doi:10.1007/s11695-007-9034-1.
- 287. Owers C, Ackroyd R. A study examining the complications associated with gastric banding. *Obes Surg*. 2013;23:56-59. doi:10.1007/s11695-012-0760-7.

- Phillips E, Ponce J, Cunneen S a., et al. Safety and effectiveness of Realize adjustable gastric band: 3-year prospective study in the United States. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2009;5:588-597. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2008.12.007.
- 289. Silecchia G, Bacci V, Bacci S, et al. Reoperation after laparoscopic adjustable gastric banding: analysis of a cohort of 500 patients with long-term follow-up. *Surg Obes Relat Dis.* 2008;4:430-436. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2007.09.007.
- 290. Edholm D, Svensson F, Näslund I, Karlsson FA, Rask E, Sundbom M. Long-term results 11 years after primary gastric bypass in 384 patients. *Surg Obes Relat Dis*. 2013;9:708-713. doi:10.1016/j.soard.2012.02.011.
- 291. Obeid A, Long J, Kakade M, Clements RH, Stahl R, Grams J. Laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass: long term clinical outcomes. *Surg Endosc*. 2012;26:3515-3520. doi:10.1007/s00464-012-2375-4.
- 292. Suter M, Donadini A, Romy S, Demartines N, Giusti V. Laparoscopic Roux-en-Y gastric bypass: significant long-term weight loss, improvement of obesity-related comorbidities and quality of life. *Ann Surg*. 2011;254(2):267-273. doi:10.1097/SLA.0b013e3182263b66.
- 293. Apovian CM, Aronne L, Rubino D, et al. A randomized, phase 3 trial of naltrexone SR/bupropion SR on weight and obesity-related risk factors (COR-II). *Obesity*. 2013;21(5):935-943. doi:10.1002/oby.20309.
- Allison DB, Gadde KM, Garvey WT, et al. Controlled-Release Phentermine/Topiramate in Severely Obese Adults: A Randomized Controlled Trial (EQUIP). *Obesity*. 2012;20(2):330-342. doi:10.1038/oby.2011.330.
- 295. Crawford AG, Cote C, Couto J, et al. Prevalence of obesity, type II diabetes mellitus, hyperlipidemia, and hypertension in the United States: findings from the GE Centricity Electronic Medical Record database. *Popul Health Manag*. 2010;13(3):151-161. doi:10.1089/pop.2009.0039.
- 296. Iannelli a, Anty R, Schneck a S, Tran a, Hébuterne X, Gugenheim J. Evolution of low-grade systemic inflammation, insulin resistance, anthropometrics, resting energy expenditure and metabolic syndrome after bariatric surgery: a comparative study between gastric bypass and sleeve gastrectomy. *J Visc Surg*. 2013;150(4):269-275. doi:10.1016/j.jviscsurg.2013.08.005.